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About us

Seraphine has a simple purpose:
to be with mums for the journey.

Our products support women in
their changing bodies, not only
with style and choice, but with
innovative technical aspects
that help ease the journey
of motherhood.

The group prides itself on its
in-house design and production,
whereby the group has full
ownership of product creation.

This allows the group to ensure that

the brand remains relevant and

high quality output is maintained.

The brand’s product range is

underpinned by a core ‘continuity’

offering of timeless, staple pieces
and supported by two seasonal
lines covering spring/summer
and autumn/winter.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
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Seraphine at a glance

With mums
for the journey

Pregnoncy brings oll kinds of surprises; there ore
decisions to make, piles of information to abscrb
ond chonging bodies to contend with,

At Seraphine, we help women through it oll.

Founded in 2002, we're led by CEO Dovid Willioms,
CFO Lee Willioms ond Creative and Brand Director,
Chelsey Oliver - 0 mother of four who's been designing
maternity and nursing clothes for over 15 years.

Seriously clever clothing

We're proud of our technical expertise. Our clothes
aren’t just stylish, they're seriously clever too.
Our in-house product team love innovoting and
every time we find a new solution for o motherhaod
challenge, it’s o victory for us.

Style and comfort in equal measure

When you're pregnant, comfort is everything, but
you don't need to cornpromise on style. We wont
women to look and feel greot, so soft fobrics
and adjustable fits are ot the foundation
of everything we do.

Sustainable and responsible fashion

We take sustoinability and responsible fashion
seriously and put thought into what we muake, always
designing with longevity in mind. We're helping rurture
the next generation ofter olf so we have to look
after the world they’'ll inherit.

Mum-approved

We test on real mums and mums-to-be of oll shapes,
sizes, and motherhood stages. We show our committment
to parents in other woys 100, such as with our
'eading parentol leave policies and Corporate Secial
Responsibility initiatives.

We're mum-first,
through and through

SERAPHINE GROUF PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
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Annual Highlights

Three new market specific websites

Canada, Switzerland, Netherlands

Eleven markels with dedicated websites

Austrolia, Cnnddﬁ, France, Germany, Italy, Netherlands, Spain,
Switzerland, Rest of Europe, United Kingdom, United States

Two new digital partnerships

Zalande and Next

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
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Aunnual Highlights

Currency sales growth,

+25.9/

Digital Piatform

+33.17%

Noarth America

+30,97%

European Union

+0 4.0 /0

Digital Partnerships

+33.0%

Total Group

-~

€135.5

Average Basket Value

15.6m

Visits

307

Conversion

SERAPHINE GROUF PLC
ANNUAL REPORT 8 ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
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Revenue Performance
By Channef

Own Digital Platform

Retail Stores

Digital Partnerships

Own Digital Platfarm*
Financial Year 2022
Financicl Year 2021

f L o RERE T +25 . 5%

Digital Partnership*
Financial Year 2022
Finoncial Year 2021

+8/7.5%

Retail Stores*
Financiol Year 2022
Financial Year 2021

* Constant currency

£1.2m,

+125%

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANMUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDER 3 APRIL 2022
10



Revenue Perlormance
By Geography

Rest of World

4%

United Kingdom

22%

North America

European Union

United Kingdom
Financial Year 2022
Finoncial Yeer 2021

A — +12.49%

European Union*
Financial Year 2022
Financial Year 2021

e —— ! +36.5%

North America*
Financial Yeor 2022
Finoncial Year 2021

i | +53.19%

Rest of World*
Financia! Yeor 2022
Finonciafl Year 2021

* Constont currency

T +5.99%

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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In a challengimg
year, we have
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Chair’s Statement

The year under review — our first as a listed
company - has been challenging in many
ways. Throughout it all, however, Seraphine
has continued to follow its purpose to be
‘with mums for the journey’, providing
fashionable, affordable, sustainable and
innovative clothing and products for
expectant women and parents.

The world emerged from Covid straight into the challenges
presentad by the tragic invesion of Ukraine, together with
o backdrop of unprecedented supply chain disruptions,
affecting both the production and movement of goods
globaliy.

Sergphine faced chollenges in navigating the resulting
complexities which included supply chain delays ond
additionol costs, an increase in costs associated with
cross-border transactions, shifting patterns in consumer
demand ond substontial inflation in custemer acguisition
costs which impacted profitability. Unfortunately, we were
olso impacted by unforeseen duty and returns costs as we
entered new markets ond channels.

The agitity of our business model and the deep relationships
we have built with third parties throughout our supply
chain have meant thot we were able to adopt and take
steps to mitigate some of the impoct, however | am

still disappointed with the finol FY22 results which are
significantly below the guidance set out ot IPQ. In the

CEO review, David Williams sets out in detgil the octions
management have taken to strengthen the business.

Despite these chulienges, we delivered our highest ever
gross product numbers ond we continued to see very
encouraging internotional growth. In this period we
lounched new websites in Canoda, Switzerland, ond the
Netherlands as well as delivering continued high growth
from our successful US business.

Qur innovative product range, international reach and
strong underlying economics put us in o robust position to
focus on returning the business to profitoble growth. Most
importantly, our product continues to be highly sought
after and desired by our customers, which is the core of our
SUCCESS.

The business now hos greoter clority on the heodwinds

it faces ond has put plans in ploce to address these
chalienges. The newly strengthened management team is
focused on executing its stated strotegy of using in-house
design expertise to deliver on innovative ronge of products
te an expanding customer base, including in the key market
of North America.

On behalf of the boord, | would like to sincerely thank oli our
new shareholders for their support during this challenging
year. The actions taken by executive management to
strengthen the business, together with the investment in
our team since IPO means we start our new financial year
in o more resilient position to face the challenges chead
ond convert the continyed growth in customer demand

for our products into profitable margin growth. We remoin
committed to delivering a business that delivers strong
future returns for shareholders in o sustainable way.

Haoving reviewed the performance for the 52 weeks to

3 April 2022 and the likely headwinds in the economy

for the yeor aheod, the boord is recommending thata
finol dividend should not be declared for this year. It is
very much hoped that the normal dividend commitment
can be restored as soon as possible.

Board and governance

We are committed to the highest stondords of corperote
governance ond 1o operating with a strong, experienced
ond diverse board of directors,

| arm very pleased with the interaction ond discussions
which have taken place ot boord level.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THIE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 3 aPRIL 2022
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Chair’s Statement

The board is working very well with the Executive Leadership
Teom of the business, fostering healthy chollenge as well os
prooctive sharing of experience, knowledae and insight to
help Seraphine achieve our strotegic gools.

During the yeor we onnounced the oppointment of Lee
Williams as CFO, from French Connection {3roup, where

he wos CFO ond Compony Secretory, following John
Bailey's decision to siep down. Lee's deep experience in our
sector, both ot French Connection and ASQS, mokes him

& strong commercial and strategic CFO and he is currently
very focused on rmaking the necessary improvements to
our financiol management capability to strengthen our
finoncial function going forword. Further details of this ore
loid out in the CEQ Review.

In June 2021 we were pleased to welcome two additional
non-executive directors 1o the boord - Bill Ronaid end Sorah
Highfield - who bring @ wealth of experience ond skilis
including particulor expertise in public compony motters
and high growth businesses. Bill will focus on remuneration,
Sarch on audit ond risk, 1o support ond guide Serophine
through life os o public company. They hove olready been
providing huge support to the executive teom ond to me.

Sustainability

Sustainability is ot the heort of our business and we have
worked throughout the yeor 1o develop on approach that
aligns with our customers. A sustainable supply chain is
fundamental ond we continue to invest in ensuring the
quality of our factories, understanding our full supply chain
and pursuing initiotives such os the Better Cotton Initiotive,
improving our pockaging and creating innovative product
thot con be worn throughout pregnoncy ond nursing,
dramaticolly increasing the wears per garment. The thriving
second-hond morketploce for our product is 1estoment to
these actions in o market that is historicolly characterised
os ‘disposoble’ In addition we hove undertaken o significont
exercise to understand our carbon footprint which will ferm
the bosis for the developrent of our strotegy to net zero.

This yeor we have established the framewark of what will
become cur new sustainability strotegy. At the heart of
the new fromework are three key pillars: Product, Paople
and Plonet. Our strotegy recognises the importonce of
managing the risks ond opportunities connected to these
pillars, in order to secure the long-term success of the
business. We look forward 1o developing the mecsurernent,
monagement and disclosure of our ESG octivities in line
with best proctice and to sharing further detoils in due
course.

Conclusion .
Seraphine has grown enormously since our foundotion in
2002 ond we ore ready for the next stoge of our jourpey,
underpinned by our clear strategic gools.

Hoving taken firm steps to strengthen the business and
rmaoke it fit for the future, | om sotisfied thot we ore now
better positioned to focus an driving profitable growth.

! would like to finish by thanking everyane at Seraphine for
their expertise, professionslism ond commitment.

oo Tond

Sharon Floed
Choairman
31 July 2022

SERAPHINE GROUFP PLC
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Chiel Executive OfTicer’s Statement

This is our maiden full year results
following our [PO on the London Stock
Exchange in July 2021. I would like to
begin by thanking all our shareholders
for their support during what has been a
challenging year for the business.

All commentury is for the 32 week period ending 3 April 2022
against the non-statutory comparatives of 32 weeks 1o § April
2021. Please refer to page 29 for further deeaid,

In ouwr first year as a pukblic company, we have been
materiolly impocted by external factors and have also
faced some internal chollenges. The externol factors are
well known: the global supply chain crisis which emerged
in summer 2021, the effect of increasing energy prices on
warehousing ond distribution costs and, maore recently,
the significant downturn in global consumer sentiment
have all creoted headwinds cgoinst the execution of our
growth plons, Nonetheless, | om proud that despite these
setbocks we have delivered significant sales growth in the
period, remained Adjusted EBITDA positive, and exponded
our own digitaol plotform into three new markets - Canada,
Switzerland and the Netherlands - whilst onboarding with
two new partners, Zolando and Next.

Turning 1o the internal chollenges. The failure to correctly
calculote sales tax and duty costs in relotion 10 movement
of goods inte and out of new markets, or te mitigate them
with oppropriate registrations, resulted in an impact to
profitability.

I light of both the external facters and internal challenges
experienced we have token significont monagement
actions to strengthen our business as follows:

o Our new CFO Lee Williams initiated o full review of the
group's finance function. This led to the recruitment of
additiong! resources ond identified greos of improvement
through gnhancing the group's internal infermation
systems and processes

« The company’s executive comrmittee hos been
strengthened with the appointment of Fran Pillar
as COO ond Seb Tarleton os Trading Director.

* Astrategic re-pricing has been implemented post
period end, protecting entry level product pricing while
increasing more premium iterns which have traditionolly
delivered exceptional value,

Strategy

Seraphine has o simple purpose: to be with mums for

their journey. Qur products support women in their

chonging bodies, not only with style and choice, but with

innovative technical aspects that help ease the journey

of motherhood. Our in-house design team remains

os committed s ever 1o developing exciting product

Innovations - and the whole team remains committed

1o bringing these to more and more expectont and new

mothers, worldwide,

We will continue to invest in our customer propaosition by:

e Enhancing the customer experience

e Continuing to innovate our product range

e Building our international reach porticularly in the highly
successful North American markets

e Strengthening our supply chaoin ond embedding
sustainability in everything we do.

Operating review

We have delivered product revenve growth of 33.0% on o
constant currency (CCY) basis (28.8% varioble currency)
in the period with strong growth in North Americo of
53.2% CCY. Growth across our Eusopeon markets totolled
346.3% CCY and in the UK we delivered double digit growth
of 11.7%.

EBITDA wos impacted by a number of foctars including
pressure on customer goquisition costs, increased costs of
freight ond distribution and unexpected costs of entering
new markets - standing ot £2.6m, {FY21: £6.2m) down
({58.6)% YoY.

Own digital platform

The core of our business, cur own digitol platform continues
to drive our growth delivering +25.2% CCY in the yeor.
Despite economic headwinds, we have seen key customer
KPls improve YoY, with Traffic (+12.7%), Conversion
(+20bps) and Basket Size (+6.5%) all growing, reassuring
us as to the strength of our core customer proposition.

In the period we invested most significantly in North
Americo, primarily through our existing US site but
complemented by the lounch of o new dedicated site for
Canada. Qur US site is now the single largest contributor
0 our sales.

SERAPHINE GROUP FLC
ANNLUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PCRIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022



Chiefl Executive Officer’s Statement

Qur European sites oise performed well in the period,

with growth in our established markets and the lounch of
Switzerland and the Netherlands. The UK, our home market
and the longest established, was particularly hard hit by the
economic downturn in the finof gquarter but still delivered
growth on the prior yeaor.

Whilst digital growth overall fell short of our initic)
expectations for the year, the performance delivered
reinforces our belief that our digital first approach
to serving our custormners should remain our primary
strategy across all morkets.

Delivering this growth cgaoinst the backdrop of huge
chollenges did not come without mistakes or leornings

- natably the cforementioned issues around sales taxes
and duty rotes in markets outside of the EU -but we end
the year with o better capability to execute than before.

With the lounch of Canade, Switzerlond ond the
Netherlonds in the period the number of markets served
by our own digitol plotform stands ot 11 (United Kingdorn,
Germany, France, Spain, ltaly, Netherlonds, Rest of Europe,
Switzerland, United States, Canada, Australia). Qur
platformn was designed to allow us to launch new markets
quickly ond in a copitol-efficient woy —ond is o key pillor of
our growth strotegy. We intend to lounch dedicoted sites in
the Nordics before the end of the next financiol year.

Digital partnerships

We befieve in putting product where the customer shops
-knowing that our marketing cannot reach everyone. To
that end, we laounched with Zolando in Gerrnany, Austria,
Switzerlond, Befgium and the Netherlands during the

year and with Next in the UK in February, helping our
digital portner business deliver £2.0m (+87.8% CCY) in
incrementol product revenue. Whilst this product revenue
growth wos above expectations, the profitability of Zolondo
has been disappointing and we are currently reviewing
options by morket. The profitability of Next has been in line
with management expectotions and we see encouraging
opportunities to geow this business alongside continuing
to explore other partnership opportunities.

Retail stores

We believe thot having a small selection of flagship stores,
in strategic focations, adds value to the brand. However,
we continue to evaluate the perforrmance of our partfolio
of seven physical retail stores on o store-by-store, maorket-
by-market basis. Our target remains to drive the portfolio
as a whole t¢ breck even and we will make investments,

or disposals, as oppropriate to achieve this. The retail
environment remoined challenging for the entire period and
well below manogement expectotions of a return 1o FY19
levels, felt especially i our UK and US stores. Post period
end we closed cur Madison Avenue store in New York but
retain both our Soho store and concession in Mocy's Herald
Square in the some city. We continue to operote our other
stores in the UX ond France. Qur two Macy's concessions,
operating on a turnover rent model, hove delivered on our
target of breck even or better contribution.

Digital marketing

Digitol marketing continues to be the primary channel
by which we reach our customers, by showing relevant
ond inspiring content and products to women in the early
stages of pregnancy, or copturing demand for specific
product searches.

DOuring the year, we experienced o number of headwinds
that impoacted our return on investment. |n the first half,
the well-publicised supply chain issues meant thot our
product cotalogue was fragmented for a number of weeks,
hoving o direct impact on the quality of our marketing
which is primarily product and needs driven. We saw this
recover strongly in fine with our stock position earty in H2,
however in the second half of this period we were impocted
by significont inflation in advertising costs, along with a
decline in broader consumer sentiment.

We operate o number of successful targeting strategies
and are working to reailocote investment across these
and 1o deploy spend into other channels, including more
traditional marketing, but it is likely that it will take some
time to fully mitigote the increoses in cost.

The overoll blended Customer Acquisition Cast (CAC) in the
period was £16 vs £13 in the prior year.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Chiel Executive Officer’s Statement

People

Our people are our greatest strength ond core to everything
we do. Qur culture is inclusive, innovative ond collaborative
-ond it is a testoment te this that in @ chollenging year

it wos ultimotely our own people thot uncovered and

solved probleins, it is glso the reason why we can do so
much in house - including design, prototyping ond creative
imwtkeling. [T provides us with ogility and flexibility ot the
very core of our business - and | om extremely proud of the
entire team.

We have made a sighificant investment in people during
the year, strengthening our team for the future. This began
with the sppointment of our new CFO, Lee Willioms, who
hcs mode good progress in impraving our Finance function,
reinforcing expertise in the areas of financial planning,
occounting, and reparting.

Looking to the wider executive committee, we have
appointed o COO, who will [eod the transformation of our
business systems and in-house logistics and operotions
copability, and o Troding Director who will define ond
execute our multi-channel and multi-market trading
strategy.

Product update

In the period we lounched our new athleisure range,
bringing our expertise in superior fit 1o another category.
We continued to innovate in our outerwear range,
launching multi-seoson couts with bobywearing
functionality, thus further extending the longevity of
wear. Responding to o resurgence in custemer demand
for occasian wear os lockdown measures eased, we grew
our gccusion wear collection with o porticular focus on
innovative nursing functionality. Across the range we
balonced the maximisatien of our strong, core continuity
range with en-trend style and choice in our seasonoal lines
- all with the cornmon threod of delivering fantastic-locking
products thot solve common motherhood issues.

We olso continued 10 invest in the core Serophine
proposition - products that look incredible whilst aiso
supporting women with technical innovotions thot ease
ond enhance the journey of motherhood. We designed two
new products with innovations we believe to be unique in
the spoce - one of which, a Bobygro with on easy-change
zip system, launched post period end and the other, which
will see us enter a new category, will be brought to market
loter in FY23.

At the end of the period we conducted the first broad-
bosed pricing review since 2017, ensuring that whilst we
protect key entry level products and price points, we
rmaximise profitability on mid-maorket and higher-end
products where we have troditionally offered exceptionol
value, We will continue to review pricing regulorly.

Our competitive position within our markets
Seraphine differentiotes itself from its competitors in three
key woys: :

1. Product innovation

Every garment is designed to not only to help our customers
ook and feel stylish, but with integrated technical
functionalities designed specifically for pregnant and
nursing wormen - all with a focus on long-term use {almost
all proeducts can be worn both during pregnancy ond post-
portum) and sustainability.

2. Affordable premium price point

We target the mid-market customer and above, balancing
a large and resilient custorner base with a commitment 1o
strong gross mMargins

3. Digital first ]

Qur business is primarily driven by our own digitol platform,
giving us o cost bose advantage over cormpetitors ond the
flexibility to launch new markets in o capital-efficient way.

The unique creative in-house force behind our digital
marketing translates well across markets ond is key to our
market lounch stroteqgy.

Supgply chain

Like meony retailers, we have not been immune to globat
supply chain disruption coused os ¢ knock-on effect of
Covid-19. Beginning in July 2021 we were impocted by the
late arrivel of product, which slowed momentum over the
surmnmer, resulted in less customers being enboorded, and
impacted repeat custom in the early ourtumn. Once the
stock issues were identified, we octed quickly and were
able to restore the stock position back to plonned levels
by the end of the August holidays. We have had no further
impocts since.

We have long-standing relationships with our suppliers buikt
up over mare than 20 years, which hove proved involucble
in providing our design ond production teoms with the
necessory flexibility 1o minimise externcl impocts - both
during the pandemic, when we were able to quickly pivot
our product mix bosed on changing customer demand, and
meore fecently as we novigated supply chain disruption.

SER APHINE GROUP PLC
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Chiel Executive Oflicer’s Stalemenl

In addition, we have worked with our freight forwarding
pariners to improve the management information we
receive and have strengthened our internal logistics
function ond processes to minimise future risk.

We ended the year with a stock position much higher than
historic yeors os o result of conservotive planning oround
global supply chain challenges and lower thon expected
demand during the final quarter of the finoncial year.
Subsequently we hove taken the decision to reduce future
stock intakes whilst preserving newness and innovation. This
is achievable due to the high continuity product mix of the
business and the losting appeal of seasonal stock.

ESG

As a business that is synonymous with the creation of
life, aspiring to leave o better planet for our children has
always been ot the heort of what we do and is ingrained
in our culture. Every new product innovation considers
sustoinability from the outset, whether it be materials,
packaging, or sourcing - ond each yeor we also moke
striges in reducing our iImpoct on the environrment across
our existing product range. This yeor initiotives included
reducing plastic in packaging, increasing the tongevity of
our products, and improving visibility in our supply chain.

Further details on our E5G strategy and progress made are
set out later in our Annuot Report.

Outlook

The current troding environment remains challenging ond
n particular we continue to experience significant inflation
in marketing costs. Rather than being driven by cur own
customner KPis, this is primorily a result of inflation in the
cost of disploying advertising im our primory channels which
we believe to be influenced by the more chollenging mocro
environment and weaker broader consumer sentiment. Ag
o result, we are spending circa 33% more 1o mointain prior
year revenue levels, with blended CAC up circe 60% an prior
year ot £25.4 portially offset by higher gross basket sizes.
Product revenue in the first quarter of FY23 was below lost
year, however trading improved throughout the quarter,
with June sales in line with prior yeor.

Our customer KPls remain resilient, Return rotes have
increased marginally above budget but haove been offset by
increased basket sizes. As o result, net baskets (the omount
custamers keep) hove improved in oll markets YoY, and the
average net revenue per customer visit is only marginally
softer thon the prier year, which is a testament to the
strength of our customer proposition.

The biggest challenge for the group today is the inflation
experienced in morketing costs, as our customer KPis
demonstrate the success of our brand when we are oble
10 put our products in fromt of customers, Therefore,
management is focused on optimising our digital
moarketing spend and redeploying budget to traditional
maorketing channels and portnerships, but it is too eorly to
provide guidance on potential mitigations to CAC for the
remuoinder of 1he yeor.

We will take irnmediate odvantoge of any reduction in
CAC on a market-by-market basis but will not increase our
overcll marketing budget for the year 1o compensate for
the current inflation. By doing so we will only drive growth
in the short term when we believe we can do so profitably.
We are therefore updating our guidance for FY23 1o deliver
sales growth normality. The group expects to remain
profitoble with improving margin throughout this range,
however it s too eorly in the year to be oble to guide to o
specific EBITDA margin with confidence.

The board is confident on the group’s ability to maintain
sufficient liquidity throughout the year.

Manogement is focused on driving efficiencies ond setting
a streng base for profitable growth once the challenging
external conditions subside. The recent reinforcement of
the monagement team and the resilience seen in customer
KPls once exposed to the brond provides reassurance on the
underlying strength of our proposition, We remain confident
in tThe medium-term oppertunities far the business.

David Wiltiams
Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2022

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Chief Financial Oflicer’s Statement

In the 52 weeks'to 3 April 2022 the
business delivered strong product revenue
performance though somewhat short on the
previous full year expectations.

All comvmentary is for the 32 week peciod ending 3 April 2007
against the non-statuiory comparatives of 52 weeks 1o § April
2021, Please refer 1o page 29 for firther detail,

We delivered product revenue growth of 28.8% year-on-
year to £44 0m, [+33.0% at Constont Currency {CCY))
and an odjusted EBITDA of £2.6m. This fell below previously
guided expectations due to final oudit adjustments.

We finished the year with £2.8m of ¢ash, having drawn
down £3.0m of our £6.0m Revolving Credit Facility,
equating to net debt of £0.2m at 3 April 2022.

These results were delivered despite extensive industry-wide
supply chain disruptions experienced due to the Covid-19
pandemic. In oddition to this, the stort of the Russia-
Ukraine conflict in February quickly led to o noticeable
decline in customer sentiment across Eurape.

At o stotutory level we delivered a loss after taxation

for the group of £(33.9)m, with exceptional items of
£(29.9)m making up o lorge part of thot loss. The
exceptional items are mainly the impeirment of goodwill
ond other intangibles of £(27.2)m, os well as the IPO
costs of £(3.5)m. These are offset by gain on lease
modification of £1.6m.

The other component of that loss is the finance costs
of £{4.1)m, covered in the the financial statements.

Product revenue
During the year total product revenue increosed to £44.0m,
a +28.8% (+33.0% CCY) improvement on the prior year.

Own digita! sales

Own digital product revenue grew to £37.0m (FY21:
£30.5m) an increase of 21.2% (25.2% CCY). All axisting
sites delivered growth during the year with North America
being the strongest market growing 53.2% year-on-yeor.
Ahthough Europe and the UK delivered double digit product
revenue growth over the course of the fult yeor, consumer
sentiment was noticeably softer in Q4 following the Ukraine
invasion. Product revenue growth from existing markets
was bolstered by the addition of new websites in Canoda
(+£1.2m), the Netherlands (+£0.3m) and Switzerland
(+£3.8m]).

Digital partners

Cur digitol partners chonnel, which includes wholesale
customers, also saw strong growth with product revenue of
i4.4m across the 12 months (FY21: £2.4m) an increase of
83.2% (87.8% CCY). We launched two portners in the year:
Zalando in Germany, Switzerlond, Austrio, Belgium ond the
Netherlands, adding oround £3.5m to product revenue, and
Next in the UK.

Retail stores

Qur retail stores in France, UK and US, following their
reopening, grew product revenue to £2.6m (FY21: £1.2m)
more than doubling product revenue over the period
compared with the previous year which was impocted
by the pandemic lockdowns.

Product revenue by geography

North America

Following a strong performance in the firsy holf, the North
American market hos continued to trode well, delivering
£14.4m of product revenue across the whole year, an
improvement on the prior yeor of +47.3% (+53.2% CCR)
with the strong debut of the dedicated Canadian site
moking o big impact in that geogrophy, complemented
by the reopening of the two New York stores ond the two
Mocy’s concessions foliowing lockdown.

Europe

The EU market growth of +28.9% (+36.3% CCY) to £17.8m
wos driven by our own digitol plotforms, the launch of the
Swiss site ond Zalando Partnership Progromme across a
number of markets, together with the reopening of the two
Paris stores.

UK

UK product revenue growth of +11.7% to £10.0m was
achieved across the digital platform, the reopening of the
four UK stores ond our digital portners. This growth was
driven by our own digital plotforms but also retoil stores.
As retail was open for all 12 months of the financiol yeor,
compared to 7 months in the prior year, this channel was
up 154%, +£0.5m.

Rest of World

Growth in the Rest of World segment slowed down in the
second half, delivering £1.8m product revenue, growth of
+4.3% (+1.0% CCY} with the largest component of that
being the Austrolian morket,

Grass margin
The company delivered product gross margin of £27.8m
(FY21: £22.5m), achieving © gross profit morgin of 63.2%
(FY21: 65.9%). The gross profit dilution of 270 basis points
has mainly fallen within our own digital channel due to a
number of previowsly disclosed market challenges including:
¢ Increased inbound freight costs
« Higher level of promotional activity across the year,

with significant activity over the lote December and

early Januory period.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANNLUIAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022



Chiel Financial Oflicer’s Statement

Distribution and administrative expenses costs

Direct operational costs have increased ahead of product
revenue growth due 1o the store reocpenings following the
Covid-1? leckdowns together with the ending of furlough.

Adjusted distribution costs for the period increased to
£10.0m (FY21: £6.6m), 18.3% (FY21:14,7%) os a proportion
of product revenue. Much of the increase is being driven
by two elements: o significont increase in returns costs
with returns rates increasing towards pre-pondemic

rates as well as the changes te international shipments
bought about by increased cross-border costs. These have
significontly increosed the number of despotches incurring
administrotion and paperwork costs. These are in addition
to the inflationary costs being driven by the pondemic

os well as the increase in energy costs partly due 1o the
Ukraine wor. We also incurred unexpected costs in the year
totalling around £0.3m when launching in new morkets.
This reloted ta foiling to charge Canadian product revenue
tax when initially trading in thet market end making on
incorrect duty declarotion when returning stock from
Switzerdond. Both these issues have been addressed ond
resolved ond hove o one-off impoct in FY22.

Customer acquisition spend as port of our administrative
expenses increased 1o £7.6m (FY21: £5.2m), reflecting
continued investment in the compony’s new and

existing own digital platforms. We have also experienced
inflationary increoses with these costs with on additional
£1.4m of rate increases being incurred ubove ond beyond
that which was product revenue driven.

Cther central costs have increased to £6.0m {FY21:
£4.2m). This was £0.7m lower than expected due to delays
in recruiting for new roles. These roles relate to planned
growth in our aperational abilities combined with reduced
rent concessions and government support as well as the
costs 10 support the company's transition 1o o plc.

Serophine EBITDA Bridge: FY21 Actuol te FY22 Plan ta FY22 Actucl
® Increase © Decsease m Total

Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 16
The adjusted EBITDA (pre-1FRS 16) of £2.6m (5.8%) is
considerably lower than the prior year at £6.2m (18.1%).

Lower than expected product revenue growth reduccd
EBITDA from £6.2m to £5.8m.

The further fall in EBITDA was a resuht of;

» £1.4m of increased marketing costs in the form of digitel
rnorketing rotes

» 1.0m of increased supply chain costs in the form of duty
and cross-border paperwork

s 0.6m of margin dilution, driven by higher promotional
spend

» 0.3m of unexpected costs refating to new maorket
launches

« Offset by £0.6m of delayed spend on head office
overheods.

Interest

Net finance costs in the period were £4.1m. This is
predominantly driven by ownership restructuring following
the IPO, specifically the writing off of the prepayment of
£2.4mn of focility fees, the repayment of shoreholder loan
notes and HSBC term loans from IPO proceeds. Shareholder
interest costs up to the IPO were £1.3m.

Tax

For the current period, a tax rote of 19,3% has been

used, which is in line with HMRC guidelines. The tex has
been adjusted for non-deductible itemns, which includes
shoreholder loan facility fees, shareholder interests and
exceptional itemns nssociated with the listing of Scraphine
Group ple.

Earnings per share

Bosic loss per weighted average shares was 75.6p.

Basic loss per share at 3 April 2022 was 66.6p.

Adjusted Earnings (EBITDA pre-iFRS 16) per weighted
averoge shore was 5.7p.

Adjusted Earnings (EBITDA pre-IFRS 16) per share ot 3 Agril
2022 wos 5.0p.
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Chicl Financial Oflicer’s Statement

Balance sheet

On 16 July 2021 we listed on the premium segment of the
London Stock Exchonge. The listing raised £56.1m gross
proceeds. .

{mpairment of goodwill and other intangibles

At the year end the volue of goodwill has been tested, and
largety Jue {0 a revised discount rate os well as @ change
in cost assumptions, on impairment of the value of £27.9m
hos been made. This is an exceptionol adjustment and o
non-cash item.

The board i5 intending to carry out o capital restructure of
investments in the subsidiaries fellawing the impoirment of
goodwill and other intongibles. Shareholders will be osked
to support this process ot the Annual General Meeting.

Inventery

Inventories increased from £7.5m ot the end of FY21 10
£14.7m. This stock build reflects the strategic investment

in inventory to reduce the reliance on timely shipments,
building in a level of lotency to minimise trading impacts
brought about by issues within the supply chain, including
further lockdowns and shipping delays. This stock build will
be utilised 1o drive performance in FY23 but with overall
inventory falling 1o a more normal level by the end of FY23.

The write-off of domoged stock orose due 1o products
being returned which our teem have identified os being

ne longer of the quofity we expect. The teom are now
empowered, subject to cost threshold, to decide whether
to undertake the work to correct the defect (perhaps o
missing component) or write the items off on a timely

ond regulor basis, Our product team will be notified of any
styles that suffer multiple issues to identify if the ortginal

design of the product con be amended to address the issue.

Within trade and other receivables are trade debtors
cavering our Digite! Partners channel. This increased from
£0.5m 1o £1.0m, an increose of 100% driven by the product
revenue growth in the Digital Portners chonnel of 83.2%
yeor-on-year, Prepayments ond other debtors at £0.7m
was flot on the yeor.

The increases in inventory brought with it an increase in
trade creditors to £6.9m [FY21: £3.1m), more thon doubling
on the yeor, while other product revenue volume-driven
creditors, such as the returns provision and duty payable
due to bonded noture of our warehouse, also increosed

yeor-on-year, This resulted in total trade and other poyables

increosed 1o £12.8m (FY2t: £7.2m), offsetting some of the
working copital increose from inventory.

Cosh and cosh equivalents ot the yeor end were £2.8m
while borrowings ore £3.0m of the total £6.0m ovailable,
met debt is therefore £0.2m.

Cash flow
The cash generated from operations for the period wos
£1.9m, an improvermnent of £1.8m on the year,

Cash flow has been impacted by the working copital

impoct of increosing the level of stock in the business
to offset any future delays to inbound stock and the

subseguent increase in stock holding,

Seraphine’s outflow within investing activities up to 3 April
2022 was £0.8m ocross tangible and intongible assets.
£1.2rm wos in relation to the previously disclosed earnout
payment to the previous owners of the group, Bridgepoint
Growth, Cecile Reinaud and management.

Serophine’s net cosh generoted in financing activities up
to 3 April 2022 wos £2.8m, represeniing net cash flow from
IPO proceeds after loan notes and bank debt repoyments.

The impact of the cdditiono) time needed to deliver
product to the distribution centre has had a negotive
impact on the company's free cosh flow.

The free cosh flow for the period represented -5.7% of
adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16). The management team will
continue to prioritise and proactively monage our inbound
stock position whilst supply choin issues remain and we
therefore expect second holf free cash flow to improve
over first haif but still be lower than historical levels.

Auditor's appointment

PricewanterhouseCoopers LLF was appointed as
independent auditor 1o the company ond in occordance
with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, o resclution
proposing their reappointment will be put to the next
Annual General Meeting.

l.ee Williams
Chief Financial Officer
31 July 2022

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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- Chief Financial Oflicer’s Statement

Proforma Consolidated Statement of Total Comprehensive Income

Alternative Performance Measures

Presented below is the unaudited proforma consclidated statement of total income. The comporctive information in this
is different to the stotutory version presented in the finonciol statements. To ollow year on year comparison of our resufts o
52 weeks period is presented in the proferma, however the statutory comparative period is 15 weeks ended on 4 April 2021,
The comparative period includes the period to 22 December 2021, prior to the acquisition of the group adjusted to include
the impact of IFRS 16. The 15 weeks to 4 Aprif 2021 includes the post-ocquisition accounting including the recognition of
goodwill and intangibles and the associoted amortisation. References to revenue and sales in the CEQ and CFO stotement
relote to the revenue from soles before income from other services as described in note 10 on poge 151

$2 waoks 15 weeks

52 weeks

to 3 April to4 April  ended 4 April

2072 2021 2021

. R Em | £m £m

Product Revenue 440 34.2 8.7
Service Revenue ' ) ' 20 : 1.4 0.5
Totol Revenue 46.0 35.7 Q2.2
Product Cost of Saies ' ' ’ (16.2), .7 (3.0
Service Cost of Sales (5.2) (4.0} (1.5}
Total Cost of Sales (21.4} (15.7) 4.4}
Product Gross Prafit 27.8 22.5 5.7
Service Gross Profit 3.2 @n .0)
Total Gross Profit 24.6 20.4 4.7
Distribution costs . 49) (2.6 (0.2)
Administrotive expenses ) ’ (21.8) {14.5) {4.8)
Adjusted operoting profit (2.0) 3.3 {0.2)
Exceptional tems ’ {299} (5.4) (4.7}
Operating (loss)/profit (31.9) (21 (4.9)
Finance costs {4.1) (1.7} (1.4}
P:ofit fioss) before taxotion {36.0) {3.8) {6.4)
Toxotion ' 2.1 ©5 0.0
Protit/(loss) for the period (33.9] 43) 6.3)

Other comprehensive income i

Exchange gains arising on translotion ' i (0.C) 0.0 0,-0
Total comprehensive income/ {loss) (33.9) (4.2) (6.3)

Refarences to revenue and sales in the CEQ ong CFO stotement relote 1o the total revenue before income from other
services.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
29

suiydosag Jnoqy

ss9uIsng 3|qIsucdsoy o 6uibouty roday abaons

BIUDLISADE) IND

synsay INQ



Chief Finaneial Oflieer’s Statement

Reconciliation of operating profit to Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 16

53 weaks to 52 weeks to
IApi 2022 4 Apil 2021
. . im £m
Operoting {loss)/profit (31.9) {2.1)
Excaptional ltems ’ ) 299" 54
Depre'ciotnon ond omortisotion ; T ) - 0.5 0.4
Amortisation of brand volue ' al 2.1
Right of use amortisation ) ' 1.0 09
Right of use impoirment 0.0 0.2
Private Equity fees 0.0 0.1
IFRS 16 Adjustment 1.0 {0.8)
Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 2.6 8.2
Number of shares 50,20z,01
Weighted averoge number of shores ’ 44,871,218 ‘
Adjusted EPS {pence] 5.0
Adjusted Eornings per wei.ghted overage share (pence) i 5.7 i
Adjusted EBIT
Operating (loss)/profit (31.9) (21
Ezceptio;\-ol ltemns 299 5.4
Amortisotion of brond value . 4y’ 2.1
Private Equity fees 0.0 0.1
ﬁight ot use impairment 00 0.2
2.2 5.8
L]
Adjusted PAT
Adjusted EBIT 2.2 5.6
Recurring finonce costs ’ (0.3). (0.2)
Adjusted PBT i . 1.9 5.4
Tox ¢t 19.3% (0.4) {1.0)
1.5 4.4

Adjusted PAT

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 AFRIL 2022
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Chiefl Financial Oflieer's Statement

Alternative Performance Measures Definitions

Parf ce e

Prsoduct revenue

Adjusted Product
Gross Profit

Adjusted
Administration
expenses

Adjusted
Distribution costs

Adjusted EBITDA
pre IFRS

Adjusted EBIT

Adjusted PAT {post
IFRS 16)

Adjusted EPS
{pance)

Adjusted weighted
£PS (pence)

Net Debt

Adjusted Free
Cash Hlow

Free Cashfiow

Conversinn

Constant Currency
(ECY)

Visits (Website
Traffic)

Orders

Conversion
Rote

Average basket
vaiuve

Average Customer
Acquisition Cost
Customer
Acquisition Costs
Year-on-Year
{Yo¥)

Definith
Product revenue of gacds through our own
digital platform, digitol partnerships and stores
reported net of discounts, volue added taxes and
returns

Product revenue less product cost of Product
revenue

Administration expenses excluding depreciation,
amortisation, impairment chorges, private equity
fees and IFRS 16 adjustments

Distribution costs including service Product
revenyue cost of Praduct revenue

Adjusted EBITDA is operoting (loss)/profit adding
back exceptional items, depreciation and
amortisotion odjusted to a pre {FRS 16 basis
Operating [loss)/profit adding bock exceptional
terns, brand amartisation and private equity fees

Adjusted EBIT less recurring finance costs ond the
corporation tax chorge for the period

Adjusted EBITDA pre iFRS 16 per share
outstanding at the period-end

Adjusted EBITDA pre IFRS 16 per weighted average
nuriber of shares cutstonding in the period

Cuosh and cash equivalents tess any borrowings
drawn down ot the period-end

Free cash flow is adjusted EBITDA (pre IFRS16)
adjusted for net change in working capital and
capital expenditure

Adjusted free cash flaw divided by Adjusted
EBITDA pre-IFRS

Current year metrics converted into reparting
currency using the prior yeor exchange rates

Number of distinct session of engagement with i
our websites

Orders received in the period prior to any returns
Orders divided by Visits

Gross Product revenue divided by o;ders
Custermer Acquisition Costs divided by Orders
Tovol direct marketing spend for own digitaf

chonnel

52 weeks ended 3 April 2022 vs. the 52 weeks
ended 4 April 2021

Exceptional items included in adjusting items
To colculste the altemnative performance measures listed above adjustments have been made for exceptional iterns. These are significont
items of income or expense in Product revenue, profit from operctions, net finance costs, taxction which individually or, if of o similor type,
in cggregote, are relevant to on understonding of the group's underlying financiol perfarmance becouse of their size, noture of incidence.
@ Project EROS costs of £3.5m reflect ossocicted expenditure with the IPC process thot took ploce from July 2021,
o Chonges to two of the US stare leose ogreements resulted in ¢ gain on eorly terminotion, os well os o goin on lease modification in the
period of £0.1m ond £1.5m respectively.
® Animpairment of £22.9m has arisen upon monogement’s assessment of impairment in relotion to goodwill and intongible ossets.
¢ Included within other exceptiona! items is design infringement costs, head office expeaditure ond redundoncy costs.

How we use the meosure

A megsure of the group’s trading performonce focusing on the
sale of products to end customers. kt is used by manogement 1o
rmonitor overoll performance across markets and channels

A measure of underlying core product profitability

A meosure of underlying operationol administration costs of the
business

A meosure of total distribution costs

A meosure of the group’s underlying profitability for the periog, as
weil a5 o measure for management 1o monitor the perfarmance
and profitabifity of the business each month

A measure of the group's underlying profitability for the period, os
well 05 a megsure for managernent 1o monitar the performance
and profitobility of the by each month

Included as o measure within the adjusted earnings per share
colculation for the group .

A measure of the group's underlying return to shareholders
A rneasure of the group's underlying return ta shareholders
A rneasure of the group's tiquidity

A measure of underlying cosh genergted by the group excluding
cash flows relating to financing octivities and excluding the
imnpact of non-underlying transactians

Liquidity ratio monitored by management to track the group’s
ability to canvert its operating profits imo free cash flow (FCF)

A measure of underlying performance excluding the impact of
foreign exchange Huctvations between periods

Used by monagernent to trock the magnitude of customer

engagernent with our website

Used by management to calcutate other key APMs and to assist in
estimoting order fulfilment requirements

Used by monogement to track the performance of our website
and products in converting visits into Product revenue

Internal KPl used by the group to ossess the customer value and
underlying profiability of orders

This s used by manogement 1o ollecate marketing spend at the
order level to help colculote and aptimise arder profitobility
Used by management 1o track efficiency of morketing spend to
drive troffic and convert to orders

Used 1c assess change over reporting periods in the majerity of
these APMs

SERAPHINE GRCUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIGD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
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Business Model

Global, digitally led
business model
>90% digital brand, with cround
75% of sales coming from outside

of the UK with sizeable
opportunity to scale

Market-leadihg
product and brand

High ;-)eri'orming and

cross-functional team P Ningteen years’ experience designing

raternity and nursing wear,
with technical leadership over
competitors in terms of product
functionality and breadth,
underpinned by a clear
sustainability agenda

Expertise in scaling e-commerce
businesses and designing
innovaiive products

e T

Highly efficient
and profitable
marketing strategy

and market-leading
financial KPls

Rapid orgonic revenue growth,

class-leading gross morgins ond

EBITDA margins, and high
cash conversion

Oplimised, scolable customer
scquisition prograrmme,
delivering replicable first-order
profitability ocross regions

ond chonnels

Altractive
market dynamics and
competitive positioning
Highly resilient ond under-competed

market, where Seraphine is
the scale specialist

SERAPHINE

WITH MUMS FOR
THE JOURNEY

SERAPHINE GROUP FLC
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Strategy

The group's strategy is focused on growing both its own digital plotform and digital partnerships:

Own digital
platform

Digital
partnerships

Superior technical
product expertise

Leading specialist
brand

Powerful digital
marketing scale
and specialism

Serophine will expand its digital platform via continued grewth in existing markets, where
it has significant potential for further growth in Western Europe and North Armerice, ond
the continuotion of its capitol efficient platform rollout strategy in new markets, such os
the Nordics. It will seek te further enhance its digital marketing copabilities, backed up
by investments in traditional brond building, te drive greater traffic to its websites and
penetration of globol markets.

At the some time Serophing will seek to increose its customer reach by expanding its
business with existing digitol distribution platform partners and seeking new portnerships
tncluding other digitol speciafists and multi-channe! retailers.

This consistent digital strategy is supported by the group's shorp faocus on moternity and
nursing products which morks Seraphine out as g leading specialist brand with superior
technical product expertise ond powerful digital marketing scale and specialism,

The group’s strong focus on maternity and nursing products has enobled it to become

a market leoder in this sector. With over 19 yeors’ experience in designing maternity and
nursing wear exclusively, the Serophine brand is synonymous with innovative ond functional
products which has given Seraphine o strotegic advantoge over its competitors.

Serophine's international reach through its digitel appraach brings global brand
recognition, with exports to over 100 countries in FY22. Seraphine is recognised globally
os o leading moternity ond nursing wear brond and this brand stotus, underpinned by
celebrity ond press endorsement, is on ccknowledgment of Seraphine as o market leader

in its sector.

The group will continue 1o invest in its highly effective maorketing strategy which drives
brand awareness and customer conversion.

The group’'s marketing straotegy is to terget women at each lifestyle stoge of pregnoncy ond
motherhood and takes on interiocked threefold opprooch:

Paid digital
Including puid search optimisation covering the likes of Google Shopping ond AdWords ond
poid social through globol platforms such as Facebook and Instagrom.

Organic digita!

Which focuses on generating business over longer time frames through increasing brond
awareness. Methods include the creotion of SEO-optimised website content, customer
dotabase email send-outs and expanding the brand’s own socicl media following.

Traditional marketing & PR

Gaining coverage in web and print publicotions for dressing influencers, celebrities and
royals through troditional PR. Placing highly targeted advertising with other key portners in
the motherheod journey.

The group utilises an in-house advertising and content creation team, which aliows greater
control over brand positioning ond messaging ond works with expert third party agencies
for the deployment of its digital maorketing strategy.

Nan-financial information statement
The company has complied with the Non-Financiol Reporting Directive contained in sections 414CA ond 414CB of the

auydosag anoqy

yaday abosons

sssursng 2jqisucdsay o Guibouow

IUDLIIAOL INQ)

s3rsay JnQ

Companies Act 2006.

Where to find related information

Enviranmental Page 43 Socia) Page 66  Principol risks Page 74 Business mode! Poge 32
Employees Page 68  Human rghts Poge122  Anti-covuption Poge 99 Non-finoncial key Page 34

cnd anti-bribery performance indicatars
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Key Performance Indicators

We use these key performance indicators as measures
to trock both the financial value we create for our
shareholders and the strategic value in growing our
business and delivering our purpose.

Financial KPIs

Product revenue Revenue growth

Financial Year 2022 [£44.0m ] Financial Year 2022 [£9.9m (28.8%) ; ]
Financiol Year 2021 £34.2m : Financial Year 2021 £6.0m {21.8%)

Product gross profit margin Product gross profit

Financiol Year 2022 [63.8% ] Financial Year 2022 [£27.6m ]
Financiel Year 2021 ~ 65.9% financial Yeer 2021 ~ £22.5m ’ -
Adjusted EBIT" pre-{FRS 15 Adjusted EBITDA? pre-IFRS 16

Financial Year 2022 [£2.5m ] Finoncial Year 2022 {£2.6m ]

Financiol Yeor 2021  £5.6m Financial Yeor 2021 £6.2m

Operational KPIs

Total active customers® Conversion rate

Financicl Year 2022 (321,213 ] Financicl Year 2022 [3.0% ]
Finoncicl Year 2021 270,487 i Financial Year 2021 2.8%

Website traffic Average basket value’

Financiol Year 2022 [15,577,354 ] . Financiol Year 2022 [£135.5 I
Financial Year 2021 13,818,962 Financial Yeor 2021 £127.17

Gross order value* Customer acquisition cost

Finonciol Yeor 2022 [£63.6m ) Financiol Yecr 2022 [£7.6m |
Finenciol Yeor 2021 £50m’ Finoncial Year 2021 £5.2m

-

Adjusted EDIT Operating {loss)/profit adding bask exceptional items and brand vaiue ameartisd Son. iFRS 14 adjustment odded back or praIFRS edjusted EBT

Adjustad EBITDA Qpergting (kxs)/profit odding back Excepricnal iterns, depretiation and omet tisation, private equity fees and share bosad payments. IFR3 14 adjusoment added bock
for pre-IFRS 16 adjusted EBTOA

3 Total aetive eustomen An aztive custamer is Jefined as o customer who has purchosed o business entity’s products ot keast ence in o F2-month petioad

4 Gross order value The gross ordes vakue includes the s of ot wans.c ted orders -any dedus ions by concellodons, rewurns, sales Costs or discounis ore pat yet saken into
sensideration.’

Avaroge Boshet Volus The Average Dosket Value of products sold in g single purchase. This i zolculatzd by dividing the wtel walue so%s by rhe tot! number of order tomoctions.

~

“
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Market Overview

Global maternity and nursing wear market
Seraphine operates in the global maternity and nursing
wear market.

A morket overview report from Armstrong estimotes that
the size of this market in Seraphine’s core geographies,
being North America, the UK and Western Europe, was
£2.4 billion in 2019 (the ‘Core TAM'), out of a global

£4.7 billien global morket.

Within these markets, Seraphine specificolly targets
customers in the premium, offordable luxury and mid-
market price segments (the 'Core SAM’); Armstrong
estimotes this market was worth £109 miilion in the UK
and £408 million in the US in 2019, against o Core TAM
of £190 million (57%) and £1.2 biilion (35%), respectively.

in respect of its Core SAM in 2019, Serophine had only o
7% share in the UK, 1% in the US, 3% in France and 2%

in Germany {Armstrong). This indicotes that Seraphine has
successfully established a presence in these geogrophies,
but with substantial opportunity for future growth. This
material headroom for growth is complemented by
consistent growth within the online maternity and nursing
wear market where Seraphine is focused.

Between 2017 ond 2019, this morket grew ot o CAGR of
6% in the UK and 18% in the US according to Armstrong
analysis.

This trend is expected to continue between 2019 ond 20246
with healthy CAGRs of 8% and 11% projected, respectively,
in the UK and US, bosed upon Armstrong analysis.

The high degree of resilience, within the maternity ond
nursing weor market, os compored with the broodar
wormenswear industry has proven out during economic
downturns, including during the Covid-19 pandemic,
reflecting the needs-bosed requirement of maternity wear
compared to the discretionary aspect of purchases in the
wider apparel marker (Armstrong).

There are a number of important borriers to entry to the

moternity ond nursing wear market, including:

s The level of technicol expertise required in the design
process, which the group has occumuloted over the
period of 19 years since Seraphine wos founded

» The level of technicol expertise required in the
maonufacturing process, which limits the number of
suppliers and manufocturers ond provides on advantage
1o established ployers, who ore able to achieve the
minimum order quantities necessary 16 mMaintain
competitive pricing

Source: Armstrong market model, Armstrong onolysis

» Changing customer needs throughout the product
lifecyele, which make it more difficult for new entronts to
coter for each phase of the pregnancy and motherhood
journey, particularly when combined with high customer
ocquisition costs and o shorter timeline from which to
derive volue from this investment.

In this respect, the emphasis ploced on meaningful
branding is key in order to reach prospective customers
at the earliest paint in their pregnoncy and motherhood
journey and encourage thermn to return to the brond for
subsequent pregnancies or postpartum.

Seraphine provides o distinct offering through its strong
digital plotform, where almost 15 yeors of digital marketing
investment has enabled the brand 1o accumulate
know-how, experience and dota to accurately target

its Core SAM; this level of differentiation would not be
straightforword for a competitor to replicote. In addition,
Serophine maintains o sole and dedicoted focus on
maternity ond nursing wear, with limited deviotion into
other product ronges, which gives it o technico! advantoge.
This is complemented by Serophine’s commitment to
designing innovative, functional and fashionable maternity
and nursing wear at an affordable premium price point.
Seraphine combines this focus with continuous product
innovation, including its skin-to-skin offering, which
pravides n competitive advantage against compctitors
with nofrower or less specialist product ronges.

Geogrophic breakdown

Armstrong estirnates thot the maternity ond nursing weor
rnorket generated approximately £2.4 billion in revenue
across North America, the United Kingdom ond Western
Europe in 2019. The group distributed products to over

100 countries in FY22 and the group's current geogrophic
footprint, in terms of totol group revenue, is 33% North
America, 23% UK and 41% Western Europe.

North America maorket

The North Americon {US and Canada) maternity and
nursing wear market wos valued ot on estimated £1.3
billion per annum in 2019 (Armstrong). In the US (which
comprises 90% of the North American market), the Core
SAM accounted far 35% of the market in 2019, of which it is
estimated that Serophine holds only on estimated 1% share
(Armstrong). The online segment of ihe US maternity and
nursing weor market grew ot a CAGR of 18% between 2017
ond 2019, with CAGR of 11% anticipoted between 201¢ and
2026, bosed on Armsirong estimates.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Market Overview

United Kingdom moarket

The UK maternity and nursing weor market wos valued at
an estimated £190 million in 2019, with Serophine’s Core
SAM accounting for 57% of total spend (Armstrong). The
online segment of the UK moternity ond nursing wear
market grew ot a CAGR of 6% between 2017 ond 2019,
with a projected CAGR of 8% from 2019 to 2024, based
on Armstrong estimates. This represents growth in anline
penetration from 28% of the market in 2017 to up to 48%
projected in 2026, based on Armstrong estimates.

Western Europe market

The Western European maternity and nursery wear market
was valued at an estimoted £850 million in 2019, with
France and Germany (valued at approximately £155 miltion
and £179 million, respectively) forming the most substantial
markets for the group (Armstrong).

The structure of these markets vories slightly; the Core
SAM occounts for 59% of both the French ond Germon
maternity and nursing wear markets, based on Armstrong
estimates. However, the composition is more fragmented
in Germany with a higher number of participants ond key
ployers serving multiple pan-European markets. In controst,
the French moternity market is choracterised by fewer,
fashion-forward speciolist players with an establishad
presence and reputation, including brands such os Envie
de Froise. Germany has shown higher levels of growth in
recent years.

UK online rnarket size ond anline penetration

] [ 1)
2017-2019
CAGR: 18%

'2019-2026
CAGR; 1%

£77m

E3im

2024F

2025F  2024F

0174 2018A  2019A 2020A  2021F  2022F 2023F

Rest of the World market

The Rest of the World (RoW) moternity and nursing weor
market had an estimoted value of £1.6 billion in 2019
(Armstrong). There is substontiol opportunity for growth in
these markets, where Seraphine’s Core SAM cornprises an
increasing proportion of the overalf maternity and nursing
wear morket, due 1o a rising humber of women in the
working population in emerging economies contributing to
a similar trend towards foshion-forward maternity weor.

Market trends

Shifting customer demogrophic and lifestyle demands
driving spend per birth

Changes in lifestyles ond customer demographics are

key trends driving growth in the moternity and nursing
wear moarket, particularly within Seraphine’s Core SAM
(Armstrong). In particulor, there has been an increase

in the average oge of first-time mothers in developed
countrigs (in the UK, increasing from 27.7 years old in 2010
to 28.9 years old in 2019), which means that expectont
mothers hove a higher level of disposal income to spend

on purpose-designad maternity and nursing wear (ONS;
Armstrong). These shifts in customer demogrophics are
complemented by substantive lifestyle chonges, including o
rmuch higher proportion of women in the workforce, o trend
towards women remaoining octive during their pregnoncies,
and a greater desire to remain fashionable during
pregnancy. The stabilisatinn of fertility rates has therefore
been offset by an increasing number of women continuing
to work until much closer to their due dote, increosing
demand for maternity workwear ond extending the lifecycle
for products which corry a higher margin ond foll within
Seraphine’s core product lines,

US online market size and online penetrotion

2019-2025

20172019
caoRi 1%

CAGR: 19%

2025F  2026F

20198 20204 02F

2017Aa  2018A 02F  N0F W024F
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Market Overview

Ongoing consumer shift to e-commerce

The last decade has seen a significant shift in consurmer
spending habits, most notably the rise of e-commerce and
increose in online consumer expenditure. Convenience as a
driving force for e-commerce carries even greoter weight in
the maternity and nursing weor market, where the target
demographic often hos less time, may prefer shopping

for such itermns with greoter privacy, and moy be less able
or less inclined to visit retail stores. This is reflected within
the compasition of the market, with a rising proportion of
purchases in the UK and US maternity and nursing wear
market {42% and 31% in 2020, respectively) taking ploce
online (Armstrong).

This trend is set to continue; we estimate that, by 2025,
over 50% of the moternity and nursing wear market will
comprise of the Miliennial and Generatien Z demogrophic
who present a higher offinity for e-commerce, providing
confidence in the continued growth of the online moternity
market and reinforcing Seraphine’s competitive position
within this market. The rise in online consumer expenditure
will also inevitably have been influenced by the Covid-19
pondamic, where governmental restrictions and local
lockdowns have reduced reliance on traditional bricks-and-
mortar retoil stores. Depending on their supply chain and
distribution networks, brands with a larger online presence
also typically carry fewer overheads and are therefore less
susceptible to global economic downturns.

Market resilience

Maternity and nursing wear is typically purchosed as o
result of necessity, to accommodote the biologicol changes
which occur during pregnancy. As a result, this morket

is thoracterised by higher tevels of resilience throughout
periods of economic downturn, particularly when compared
to the general o pparel markets which are often more
discretionary in nature. This wos demonstrated during

the glebal financial erisis, where the UK maternity and
nursing wear market increosed by 0.7% in 2009, while

the UK general apporel market fell by 1.9% in 2008 and
was stotic in 2009, bosed on Armstrong onalysis. Further,
Serophine hos continued to grow despite the ongoing
Covid-19 pandemic (21.8% CAGR FY20-FY21), where it is
expected that Seraphine's Core SAM will have experienced
less volatility than the value segment of the market. In this
respect, Seraphine benefits from o more offluent target
dermographic than other market porticiponts, given that
these customers are generally in more resilient financial
positions than other demographics {Armstrong; Compony
information).

Compsetition

Seraphine competes with o wide range of both specialist
maternity ond nursing wear retailers ond non-specialist
general retoilers, including those with o focus on baby,
childrenswear ond baby hardware, across its Core TAM

" ond the RoW market. Within the hixury price segment, a

high proportion of Serophine’s competition comes from
maternity pure-ploys. Within the affordable premium and
mid-market price segment, the company faces competition
from global specialists and more generalist opparel ond
womenswear retailers.

Seraphine has carved e space for itself on this platform
where it can compete effectively across both markets.

It achieves this through replicoting the scale advantoge
achieved by larger mass-market retoilers {which is atypiccl
within the specialist maternity wear market), leveraging
its supplier relotionships ond economies of scale to price
competitively ond generate higher morgins. In comparison
to the generolist apparel players, the brand benefits from
its streamlined focus on maternity and nursing wear, and
targeted investment on design ond innovation. In this
respect, Seraphine maintains its competitive position
through a combination of scale ond technicol odvantage.

While Seraphine competes in a fragmented market,

the directars believe that there are many foctors that
differentiate the group from its competition, including its
price point and price-to-quality rotio; the opportunity for
its digitol proposition to expand its international reach; its
strong performance marketing capabilities; o concentrated
focus on designing and creating functional products in

the moternity ond nursing wear market which suppart the
entire pregnancy and motherhood journey at on offordoble
premium price point; the group’s continued development of
innovotive products complementary to its existing offering
(for example, the lounch of its post-partum shapewear
and babywearing products), which provides a competitive
advantage agoinst competitors with narrower or less
specialist product ranges; and its emphasis on brond
awareness and reputation.
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We are at the start of
our sustaimability journey
and are fully commuitted
to building a better
business to ofifer the best
products to our customers

throughout ther

motherhood journey.




Introduction

We recognise the importance and increasing consumer
focus on sustainability, as well as the wider impact of

the fashion industry on the environment. The company is
building o framework to create and maintain a positive
relationship with our employees, supply chain and the
environment. We wont 1o share our story highlighting our
focus on longevity of product, with ciothing designed 10 be
worn throughout pregnancy and the postportum stoge.

We are dedicoting time ond effort towords achieving
responsible sourcing targets and people initiatives. In
this way, we ensure that the care, attention, energy ond
resources that go into our clothes are never wasted. Cur
primary focus is to produce responsibly and our roodmap
to achieve our ‘Better Plonet’ mission con be seen below.

Oriven by three key pillars, we oim to use the power of the
group’s supplier relationships to ensure that the people
making our clothes thrive and thot the products are made
in ways that leave the environment in o better state for the
next generation.

Our roodmap 1o achiving cur ‘Betiar Plonet” mission
Strong focus an longevity of products
Continuity of ronge, reducing unnecessary production

Committment to greener pacakging

Product

Qur design ethos is centred on creating high quality,
weli-constructed functional clothes with a strong focus
on longevity and durobility. We focus on the product's
cumulotive weor ond lifespan to ensure it works through
every stage of the pregnancy journey.

People
At Seraphine people are ot the core of what we do;

we aim to build @ company with shared values that ore
inclusive for ofl.

Planet

Protecting the planet is really important to us. Our teams
are committed to developing a sustainable business, with
a transparent supply chain that is future-proofed and
reduces our waste ond corban footprint.

Continuous improvement in supply ¢chain and ESG performance

GERBER
Pattern system
{eco efficient)

Launched 100%

r -~

Supplier audits recycled 100%
using SEDEX recyciable
plotferm poly bags

* Force on Climate-

Scopet1, 2,43
amissions

Reporting on Task reporting

Charity partner

related Finoncicl progeamme

Disciesures in line
with guidelines Sustoinable

product policy

Regenerative

Longevity Supplier manual Supply chain .
principle issued transporency fibre sourcing
built into the incorporating ETI lGO%_Tier 1 )
design strotegy base cod_e ) supplier registerad
&Co [ t [« ity range
Crganic denim 70% of sales
renge lounched
F5C paper '
replocas oll card . .
components

The milestones shown present a subset of the a more detailed list of actions which the company has completed ond plans ta implerment os port of

the on-going E5G strategy os outlined in the Prospectus
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Introduction

‘Better Planet’ framework

People

Qur people are at the
core of eversthing we do

Product

Premiun motherhood products
designed with tinreless sivle

Create o worki;‘ag culture with s;'t(-!red

Design with @ focus on longevity and
values that are inclusive for all

market-leading cumuiative wears

Provide sofe werking environments for all

functionolity and innovation to support
of our communities, without exception

the motherhood journey

Support cur mums ond parents through
a range of meaningfut partnerships
and colloborotions

A focus on earth-friendly fibres,
being kinder to the

Planct

A united goal o reduce our
iulp.’u'l ot the environment

Set high environmental standards
throughout our operations volue chain

Increase the transparency of our supply chain,

focusing on ethical practices and reducing
our carbon footprint
Reduce the use of plastic and increase owr
use of recycled packaging materials

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Sustainability Approach

Over the year, we hove identified five key Erwironmentol,
Sociol and Governance (ESG) pricrities for the business:

1. Ensuring cleor strotegy ond KPis gre in ploce for our
expanding teorn with oll stokeholders signed up to the
journey

2.Committing 10 vur net zero pledge and working towards
our goal: 2050

3. Continuing our focus on sustoinable preduct and
longevity of design with increased use of planet-friendly
fabrics

4 _Increosing company transparency of all sourcing with a

focus on Tier 1 suppliers utilising The Higg Index to support

this

5.Reducing the use of plastic throughout the business ond
ensuring we have recyclable options where it is required

Tier structure from defivery (Tier 1) to production (Tier 5]

Governance

This year, we have re-established our ESG sub-committee.
With our new talent on board, we want to ensure thot oll
deportments ore aligned and aware of Seraphine’s direction
creoting a fully integrated plan reflective of our core values.

Our mission is to occelerate progress utilising our new
combined industry knowledge and expertise. Having
a focused sub-committee in place enables us to scale
and drive the business forward, meosuring tongible

£SG results olong the way.

The executive committee are accountable for ensuring
objectives are met ond reporting bock to the board.

Governonce struciure

TIER Garment Factory BOARD
tnciudes cutting, sewing, -
construction, finishing and ) .
inspection EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE
-~ .
- TIER Subcontroctors to . ‘
Garment Factory CHAIR 1 CHAIR 2
Includes trim/pockaging/label N .
suppliers, loundries, print mills ~
and embroidery houses
PRODUCT 5 USTAINABILITY BUSINESS COMPLIANCE
SPECIALIST MANAGER
] TIER Fabric and Yarn Suppliers
Includes spinners, weavars, , - - - ~ ~ -~
knitters, dye houses, print mills . . . - .
WHOLESALE LOGISTICS ACCOUNTS LEGAL
PRODUCT & E-COMMERCE
‘ TIER Fibre Processors MERCHANDISING HR & MARKETING
Includes filament and stopte . - .
I ' fibre suppliess
i N TIER Raw Materiol Saurce
Includes ol forming end
extraction sources
’
SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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- SERGPHINE

WITH MYMS FOR
THE JOURNEY

Seraphine is a leading
mfc@zfmimm@ﬂ matt@fmity
retailer. The g.=ﬁ:©

f@ﬂ? mums-to-=be.




Product

The strength of the Seraphine brand is derived from

Heritage
Lounched in 2002 with the vision of creating clothing so

beautiful you would want to wear it even if you weren’t
pregnont, and remeins true to that todoy

Unique design
Hundreds of products designed and prototyped in-house,

ensuring Serophine hos full ownership of product creation,
with 19 years of perfecting technical attributes, size and fit

Differentiated products

Seraphine outperforms competitors through its innovative
and versatile products which comprise a broed ronge of
fashionable, superior fit and quolity moternity and nursing
weor at an ottoincble price point

Focus

Serophine is synonymous with maternity ond nursing
wear, the sole focus of the brond, echoed in its ability
to continually innovate in the spoce

Scale

Seraphine’s international reach through its digital
approach brings globat brand recognition. With exports
to 160 cauntries, Seraphine has o global reputation
as the go-to brand for mums to be, with a long list
of celebrity and royal fans

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Product

The four pillars of

our design ethos

A pure ploy maternity ond nursing brond combining beoutiful design,
expert fit and innovative functionality ot on attoinable price point

Fashronabh
pregnant

Stylish products designed
to meet the needs of

today's preghont and
rursing women

Luxury quality

Offering the quality of
Rresnium designer product
ot an affordable

price

High funetionality

Versatile, mukifunctional
product ranges supporting
wormnen ot oll stages
of motherhoad,
across all

occasions

\spiml ional yvet
attainable

Serophine is an affordable
fuxury brand, appeoling to
all lifestytes while also
dressing celebrities,

royals and influencers

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Product

With mums

for the journey

Designed with key pregnancy milestones in mind, our collection is differentioted
by its breadth and depth of choice. We pride ourselves on developing functional,
stylish, premium-quality products across a variety of price points within each
category resulting in high engagement with mums across mony offiuence levels.

IF1est Lrtmester

BASICS

Sccond trimester

A EN
h by <
-
’ -
DRESSES WORKWEAR LINGERIE
\
ACTIVEWEAR

OCCASIONWEAR

S

NEW DADS SHAPEWEAR

BABYMOON BABY SHOWER

MURSING TOPS  BABYWEARING GIFTING SXIN-TO-SKIN

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Product

Seriously clever designs,
expertly developed 1in-house

We combine couture-level pattern and sample making with technical

expertise 16 achieve o superior fit and unique functionol innovations.

All styles are crofted in-house, so we hold moster digital copies of all
potterns, enabling fost ond flexible sourcing across our global supply base.

Our design process

MOTHERHOOD SEASONAL Pl"g;gf;’;:‘ " CONVERT 10 COST WITH COLLECTION
LIFESTYLE TREND DIGITAL PATTERN RELEVANT BUILD &

& CONCEPT
RESEARCH RESEARCH DEVELOPMENT & REFINE FACTORIES CURATION

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Product

Continuous 1nnovation
for motherhood solutions

\daptable

Pregnancy to postpartum
odaptability all with
discreet nursing
access

lasy

£asy change, grow-
with-baby
solutions

apert

Searniess expertise from
nursing to shapewear

Innovatinve

3-in-1 Bobywearing
technologies for
murms and dods

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Championing high quality
functional products designed
to increase cumulative wears
and product functions

])

roduct

Continue to assess our product lifecycle tc increase
cumulative wears and product functions

Seraphine’s garments are designed to be functional from
bump to baby and beyond therefore extending their use
and purpote woy beyond the nine months of pregnancy.
The design teom constantly assess and review the
functions of the garments through live pregnant model
fit sessions, customer feedback and product reviews, 16
ensure the product’s fit ond function is achieved across
all sizes in the range ond stages of motherhood.

Expand the use of more sustainable materiols across
all our product areas

We only use synthetic fabrics when they are key to the
durability or performance of the product and even then, we
replace them where possible with recycled options sourced
from recognised third party erganisotions.

All our spring/summer 2022 swimwear is mode from
recycled fabrics. We will continue our efforts in this area,
ond seek vioble solutions across ali cur product ranges.

We are looking to enhance our recycled products through
certification from the Textile Exchange and we will report
on these efforts over the next yeor.

We do recognise thot denim is one of the most resource
-intensive fobrics of the industry, ond we ore doing our
port to minimise the impoct on the environment through
our Denim Sourcing Policy. In our Suplier Policy we require
that suppliers only souice from mills and loundries that
demonstrate high environmentaol standards and provide
evidence of woter and energy saving systems. We will
continue to find woys to improve our offering of denim ond
communicate this saving to the custormer and through our
Higg Index maopping.

Report ond celebrate our sustainability journey with
our custemers to raise awareness of our progress
Serophine lounched its first Sustainobility and Social
Responsibility report online in the G4 FY22. We report
below our first TCFD and SECR report, which we plan to
enhance ond review within our website too, in the next
year. We intend to updote the steps we are taking to
track ond maonitor our footprint, ensuring visibility of our
carbon feotprint ond our steps to sove the planet, to all
our stakeholders.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Our timeline
"2021  August

Septer;uber

) Cctober

Novernber

December

2022 January

V February

"March

July

Product

Lounched our ‘Better Plonet' mission

Joined SEDEX (Supplier Ethical Date
Exchonge) and storted mopping supply
bose

Joined Better Cotton Inciotive (BCI)

Crected dedicoted Sustainability &
Complionce department

Lounched work an our carbon footprint tor
Scope 18& 2

Started work on mapping returns and
carbon footprint anolysis by region

New charity portnerships - teamed up with
NAYTAL and Shopewear

Moved to SMETA cudits on key suppliers

Achieved 14% sustoinoble cotton sourcing
through argenic cotton or Better Cotton
Sourcing

Teacked our moterial use mix by
percemage to review volumes and align
to carbon feotprint doto

Launched rebranded packoging using
100% recycled plostic which is fully
recyclable ,paper bogs for retails ond
paper pockaging for products from FSC
certified sgurces

Lounched Sustoinobility & Responsible
Sourcing poge oniing ond transioted across
o oy website regions

Troining on Higg |ndex to mop our Scope 3
emissions in the supply chain

Included our SECR carbon footgrint work
tor Scope 1 & 2 inte the Annual Report

From F¥23, Seraphine plan 10 run a more long-term
roodmap to show a more detoiled jourrey on how the
coempany will meet net zero.

Streamiined Energy and Carban Reporting (SECR)

This statement has been prepared in accordance
Streamiined Energy and Corbon Reporting Requirements

in the UK, with reporting over our greenhouse gas emissions
and energy consumption.

Refer to the table below which presents our emissions
dato for the years ended 3 April 2022 and for 4 April 2021,
QOur emissions hove been verified to o reasonabie level

of assurence by an external third party occording to

the (50 14064-3 standard.

Cr e o h e e v o e e —— - -

FY22 21
o C i e e o Umits 202 202%*

Totol Energy Consumption kWhiyr 171,911 157,179
Etectricity (UK head office) kWh/yr 40,8146 21,808
Electricity (Global Stores) Whiye 109,969 114,246
Gos (Globol Stores - LUS) YWhiyr 21,125 21,125
Toto! Emissions (gross kg COze/yt 47,322 39,348
annuol)
Scope t emissions {direct emissions)
Stores gos use kg COh efyr 3,815 3,815
Scope 2 emissions {indirect emissions)
Head Office electricity use g COre/yr 8,663 4,984

Globol Stores electricity use kg COa e/ y: 25,245 29,406
S5cope 3 emissions {other indirect)
Business related trave! kg CCOzefyr 9,600 1,163

Operations metrics {in period)

Turnover '™/ yr 44.4 34.2
Avg No. of employees No. (FTE) 100.4 Bz.2
Totcl Units dispotched No. 1,515,471 1,139,345
(e-comm) No. 1,229,197 1,002,090
{global stores) No. 41,553 31,406
(digitol portners) HNo. 224,70 105,850
Total units returned Ne. 401,596 229,892
Net units Ne. 1,110,353 209,454

Performance Metrics
Ernissions/Unit

Totol dispotched %g COn e/unit D.0312 0.0346
Net (dispotch & returns) kg SOz e/unit 0.0425 0.0433
Ernissions/Employee kg COwe/FTE 471.3 479.1
Emissions/ Turnaver kg COre/L'M 1064.0 152.2

* Group in current form was only in existence for 3 months of FY21 but
the dotc covers the previous entity
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Product

Methodalogy

We quantify and repert cur orgonisational GHG emissions

ond energy consumgption in alignment with the World

Resources Institute’s Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporote

Accounting and Reporting Standord ond in alignment

with the Scope 2 Guidance. In order to prepare our carbon

emission dota, we have worked alongside an externol

consultoncy firm; Ainsty Risk Consulting 11d., ensuring

future compliance with the companies and Limited Liability

Partnerships Regulations 2018. The GHG sources that

constituted our operational boundary for the year are:

# Scope 1: Gos ond refrigerant

« Scope 2: Electricity

& Scope 3: Tronspart fuel for business travel purposes by
employees

In most cases, invoices hove been used 10 collote the energy
usage in both stores ond the head office, however where
dota is missing, volues have been estimoted using either
extropolotion of avaitoble doto or dota from the previous
year os o proxy.

With regards to dota not provided in kWh (such as Scope

3 business trovel), o cost-bosed approach is token, taking
the spend figure ond applying histaric kg COe (University
of Leeds Sustainoble Accounting/HMRC recemmended
approach) to establish the ossocioted emissions, Whilst
there is o lack of occurocy and uncertainty by taking this
approach, this is our tirst step and our ection plans 1o moke
it more eccurate can be seen to the right.

Actions going farwards

Metering and monitoring: Move from cost-based method

to octual metered energy use.

e Head Office - obtain electricity use per month with
emissions intensity of the supply.

# UK stores -install smart meters and obtain HH dota use.

» US & FR stores - obtain and log monthly use.

Stores and head office

o Capture ond record monthly electricity and gos
consumption [kWh} by rmeter reeds and invoices, and
standardise formot and procedure.

Capture and record monthly electricity ond gos
consumption {kWh) by meter reads ond invoices, and
standordise format and procedure.

Energy use —undertake store-by-store inspection to
identify high consuming equipment to heating/lighting/
small power, identify energy use avoidonce measures
and efficiency mecsures.

Transport and lagistics (Scope 3)

e We plan to consider outbound logistics as a Scope 3
factor to monitor for FY23, given a lot of carbon emission
rmovernent is involved within our logistics and we plan to
work with our warehouse operotors to capture data,

« Develop policy to moke environmental impact of air
freight etc. visible when making operatienal decisions

# Lioise with Rebound to estoblish emissions footprint of
individual returns by market.

Business travel (Scope 3)

e Expenses forms to capture journey distance, mode, date
and purpose

» Capture travel mileage, mode, and reason quarterly

Carbon intensity of procured services and emission

offsets

e Review energy procurement strategy for all stores and
offices. Assess corbon emissions intensity of clternatives

e Engage with londiord to establish carbon intensity of
supplied electricity ond gas for Head Office

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Product

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disciosures
Serophine Group PLC is committed 1o minimising it's
impact on the environment, by reducing our globel carbon
footprint.

Since our IPO, Seraphine hos tocussed on putting in place
the necessary internal systems to enable it 1o comply with
the recommendotions of the Taskforce on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures ("TCFD”). We recognise that further
work lies ahead as we develop our management and
metrics reporting capabilities.

We have considered our ‘comply or explain’ obligotion under
the UK’s Finonciol Conduct Autherity's Listing Rules, and
confirm thot we have made disclosures consistent with the
TCFD Recommendations and Recommended Disclosures in
this annuol report. However, as this is our first year of TCFD
reporting, we have not fully met oll compulsory disclosure
requirements. A summary of those disclosures not included
in this report is set out below.

We do not disclose impacts on revenue and costs from
varieus scenario anclysis. Due te dato limitations arising
from transitional challenges, our scenaric onalysis has been
performed on a quelitative rather thon o quontitative basis.
We expect these data limitations to be addressed in the
medium term as more reliable data becomes available.

Seraphine is not entirely compliant with the Metrics ond
Torget Pillar. Whilst we have shown results from the current
year ond prior year to reflect Scope 1, 2 and mandotory 3
emissions datag, the compony is unable to set targets, given
a lack of data. Over the coming year we will undertake

o detciled risk assessment in respect of our suppliers ond
their use of the Higg insights platform, to determine what
dota they will be able to access ond monitor, and what
achievable targets con be set for the business.

ln addition, the current year's data reflects estimotes
where doto was unavailoble, thus making it difficult to

set accurate targets. Over the course of the next financial
year, we will be implementing steps to ensure we hove o full
set of occurate dota to set targets ond disclose additionol
metrics.

Governance

Board oversight & management's role

To ensure the boord has sufficient oversight of Serophine's
sustainoble business strotegy, performonce and climate
change reloted activities, the board has opproved

the establishment of on ESFG sustainability Steering
Committee (the “ESFG Committee”).

The ESFG Commiittee is chaived by our COO ond Product
Development Director and reports into the executive
committee. The ESFG Committee’s principle aim is to
develop o strategy to mitigate agginst the company’s
principol climate change reloted risks and, with the
support of the executive committee and boaord, to ensure
the stroteqy is incorporated into the group's objectives,
annual budget and funding strategies. The strategy wil!
be presented to the board for approval and the oudit
committee will be asked to approve any TCFD disclosures.

Sustoinability progress updotes ore presented ot board
meetings, to ensure that company strategy is aligned,
thot consistent progress is made to eliminate climate
related risks ond that ultimately, we can reach our goal of
achieving net zero emissions by 2050.

We believe we are fully complient with all TCFD disclosure
requirements reloting to Governance.

Next steps

From FY23 the boord will be asked 10 approve a governance
timetable, with quarterly updotes on ESG-related maotters
being provided to the executive committee by the ESFG
Committee. The first of these updotes wos provided on

7 June 2022.
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Product

Strategy

We recognise that both ¢limate-related risks and
opportunities have the potential to impact our business.
We are therefore taking the necessory steps recommended
by the TCFD te assess the risks, so we con moximise the
positive impacts and minimise the negative impocts on our
business. During the yeor, we performed a group exercise,
collating ideos ond identifying potentiol climate related
risks specific 1o the company. Once identified, we evaluated
the likelihood of occurrence ond the estimated mognitude
of the resulting financial impacts over the:

e Short-term (0-2 yecrs),

o Medium-term (2-5 years} and

s Long-term (5-20 years)

Climate-related risks and opportunities with impact
analysis

Our review captures climate risks ocross Seraphine’s
physical operations in the UK, USA and Continentol Europe
together with the supply chain operations in China, Turkey
and Portugal.

Following cur risk assessment, we have identified the
following heodline material risks ond opportunities:
i) domage to goods due to extreme weather events; and
ii}dramatic shift in consurmer tastes and consumer
preferences for eco-friendly materials e.g. rapid growth
in dermond for sustainable cotton and pressure to
act on climate from peers, custorners, reguloters and
shareholders.

A more comprehensive list of material climate related risks
and opportunities is set out on page 57.

Climate scenarios

Bosed on our current risk anolysis and trajectory, we do
not anticipate there to be any material odverse financial
impact on the business due to climate-related risks.

We note that we have not fully complied with the TCFD
disclosure requirement to describe the resilience of the
orga nisation’s strategy, taking into consideration different
climote-related scenarios, However, we have performed

an initial scenaric analysis, albeit en o qualitative bosis.
This hos been performed bosed on both <2°C and 4°C
scenarios, noting the key risk factors to be transitional at
<2 but with physical risks at 4 degrees Celsius. As we have
hod to use estimotes where there are gops within cur datg,
1he decision not to prepore o quantitotive scenorio analysis
was made, Further work will be undertaken in respect of
scenario analysis over the next financiol year.

Next steps

In order to be fully compiiont with oll TCFD disclosure
requiremenits, Serophine will work towords preparing
scenario onolysis. We olso will be performing high level
quantitative analysis graducily, os more dota is gothered,
by modelling the financial impoct of average global
temperotures if it rises by 2°C and 4°C scenarios in 2030.
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Producl

Risk Type

Category Overview

Climate Foctor

Risk/Opportunity Impoct —

Time '
Horizon

Transition Risk

Physical Risk

Opportunity

Growing external
pressures and
demonds for action
ncgatively impoct
revenues from those
companies kete to
react, ond trigger
anincregse in
texation ond energy
prices.

Increcse in
temperature ond
frequency of
extreme weather
events jecds ta
higher energy
consumption tor
cooling ond affects
the quolity of radio
trequency ond
wireless
transmission.

A shifting business
londscope in o net
ze10 world opens
new apportunities
to copture new
market ond
investment
opportunities.

GHG Emissians
Pricing

Enhonced missions
repoarting
requiremnents

Cleon cir 2ones

Chenging customer
behoviour

Risin-g supply-side
costs

Stokeholder concern

Extrerme weather
cousing praduction
disruption

Voriobility in
weother potterns
cousing supgly
chain disruption
Voriability in
weather potterns
causing issues in
direct operations
Rising mean
temperature

Etficiency Goins

Develop new
praduct lines

GHG emissions Moy be toxed or toriffed ot on
increcsed rote. This could impoct on eperationol costs -
though impact likely to be low as energy costs ore
relotively small {os % of revenue). Not as materiol os
{e.g.) VC emissions piicing.

Enhenced emissions reporting regulotory and
complionce requirements requiring (1) new hires and/or
{2) early-retirement of existing ossets ond expenditure.
Very high lixelihood (i.e. impocts alreody being felft).
Impoct on operating costs.

Regulotion leoding to introduction ot cieon air zones
affecting logistics /4ronspart. Operating costs wilt be
fow {c % on top of the existing fiqures for tronsport/
logistics}.

Customers increcsingly inclined towords brands with
compliont/certified sustoinoble supply choins {and
suppliers increosingly able to copitolise on this).
Customers moy also mave awoy from product lines
seen 05 unsustainable (e.g. luxury moternity wear).
impact will be on tevenue.

Increosed production costs due to chonging input
prices (onc energy price volotility) . Relotive impoct kept
low as multiple factors offect upstreom costs and
seraphine is well ploced with options e.g. consolidoting
procurement.

Stigmatizotion of the sector results in a continual need
1o justity place in the market to shoreholders,
consumers, reguiotors etc. Chonging regulctory
londscape mokes it difficult to have consistant voice/
messoge, Resultant impacts on stakeholder concern
{porticularly consumer/investor concein).

Issues with supoly choin production copacity due to
episodic extreme weather events {e.g. physical
disruption, negotive impact on workforce) such os
cyclones/ficods (Multiple potentiol fincncicl impacts
on the business).

Issues with supply choin preduction capacity due to
prolonged exposure to extreme weother events {e.g.
crop feilure in key moterial such as cotton). Multiple
potentiol financial impocts on the business.

Retoil stares or office spoces forced to relocate (e.g.
due to increcsed Hood risk).

Increosed recurrence of dongerous heotwaves leeding
to supply chain disruption [multiple patenticl ncacial
impocts on the business).

Overarching trends towords resource efficiency moy
drive down operstional costs for distribution/transport
and production. Typicolly aspired to even before
climate-reloted risk is considered.

Development ond/or expansion of low emissions
praduct lines e.g. corbon neutrol products, gorment
rentol, digitci!AR, stc

Medgium-
term

Shart-
term

Shart-
term

Mediurn-

term

Medium-
term

Shart-
term

Long-
term

Long-
term

Long-
term

Long-

term

Medium -
term

Medium-
term
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Risk monogement

integration of climate-related risks into our risk
manegement processes

Climate change related risk is included within our group
principal risks strategy ond reporting procedures - refer to
poge 64.

Qur ESFG Committee consists of individuals from across
the business, working closely to define a risk management
methodoelogy. This teem is responsible for assessing the
potential impacts for each risk, prioritising risk mitigation
steps and estcblishing mitigation time frames.

Next steps

Seraphine will ossess physical impacts on our volue chain
over a fonger time frame. By doing so, we aim to identify
mitigation actions ocross our row moterial sourcing ond
operationol footprints.

Product

Metrics and torgets

Climate-related risks and opportunities ore embedded in
our financial, operational, technological ond wider E5G
performance; 0s o result of this we use a wide range of
metrics to measure current and potential climate reloted
impacts. '

Refer 10 page 53 for details regarding our carbon emissions
data.

We are not compliant with the TCFD disclosure requirement
1o describe the targets used to manage climote-related
risks ond opportunities ond performance against torgets.
As this is our first yeor producing emission dato ond we do
not have comparative dota for previous years, we intend to
assess which specific target and metrics are most relevant
10 our business and set our target for next yeor accordingly.

These climote refoted metrics will be monitored alongside
those set as part of cur better planet stotement.

We will aiso be running Scope 3 assessments to identify
whether there are ony other Scope 3 dato that it would

be useful to disclose going forwards. For now, Seraphine

will focus on putting together an action plan that will help
produce results around logistics, which cover two odditional
voluntary Scope 3 disclosure areas,
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Actively promote empowerment-
for all in the workplace

Pcople

Qur people hove alwoys been the foundations of creating
innovative and pieneering designs ond products. We
understand the importont role that the individual ploys
in crecting a successful heritage and driving this forward
to the future, We have invested in the HR structures that
help and support our people on an ongeoing basis. We

are making greot strides in devefoping our proceasses and
proctices to ensure that the foundations and building -
blocks that support all people related matters are strong
ond fit for Seraphine’s future growth.

In response to many external challenges the pandemic
has had on the business, we acted dynomicaolly to create
the HR team who are building and developing o people
strategy bosed on our Employee Volues, that encourages o
successful warkforce and greot workplace.

Qur values

Qur HR teom conduct engagement facus groups on @
regulor basis. Following a round of discussions with the
senior management team and employees across the
company, it was found that to enable our people to excel
further, a number of HR initiotives needed 1o be estoblished
t'hrough our values. At Serophine we are proud of our
accomplishments and excited by our future, underpinned
by the Seraphine values. As Serophine employees drive the
company forwaord, they will all work within the volues and
behaviours framework as set out below.

Health and safety

Health and safety is o criticol priority for our company to
ensure we are able to maintain the sofety of our people.
This has been o crucial aspect of our risk assessments,
given the need to prioritise the wellbeing of colleagues
throughout this globol Covid-19 crisis and throughout o
period of time where there ure continuous changes in risks
and regulotions.

The company formulates ond continuously ossasses health
and safety documentation fofiowing the HSE guidelines.
Regular risk assessments are conducted for high-risk
categories and HR has been recognised as o driver of
wellbeing within the business. Learning from the Covid-19
pandemic and understanding how restrictions could
impact both mental and physical health, we creoted a
hybrid working opprooch, where feasible. This enobles

us 1o respond te individuol needs by being flexible in aur
approach to working. Cur people have the trust and
flexibility to work the way they are able ond achieve the
output required.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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During the ponderic we reduced the need to visit the office
ensuring there was a sufficient low of communication
between the business and our people. We olso reduced
visits to the warehouse ond suppliers, and the use of
technology ensurad thare was frequent communication
regording working ond support arrangements. Our culture
allows all ernployees 1o hopefully maintain positive menital
wellbeing and we work to ensure thot this is mainteined.
Qur HR manager will regulerly send out emails to our
people, reviewing employee offerings ond being a point

of contact for employees to reoch out to for support.

A continued focus on diversity, equality and in¢lusion
Seraphine’s value of being 'wholly inclusive’ recognises

thot every employee has g right to work in on envirenment
which provides equal opportunities for oll, regardless of
race, colour, nationality, religion, sex, sexual arientation,
gender reassignment, marital stotus, age or disobility. The
company makes every effort 1o ¢create and maintain such
an environment ond is committed to being a business

in which equality of opportunity is a reality ond in which
every individual can seek, obtain ond continue employment
without unfair discrimination. We oim to moke clear that

it is a place where individuals are treated equally and

foirly and decisions on recruitment, selection, learning ond
developrment, reward structure, flexible working, employee
movement and succession-management are based solely
on objective and job reloted criteria, with our values driving
expectations. -

We know that having o diverse workforce is not sustainable
without an inclusive culture and our commitments reflect
thot.

Gender mix
The gender mix of the group’s head office employees ot the
end of the financial yeor is as shown below:

Fermole 68
Male 13
Total 81

All store employees are femate.

We continue to look ot woys 1o improve gender diversity.
During this financial year, we successfully recruited o
number of senior roles 1o help support the next growth
phase of the compony including o Chiaf Information
Officer, Financial Planning & Anolysis Director, Head of
Legol & CoSec. We also strengthened our PR and Human
Resources teoms and at the end of the period, moved

to 0 new, centrally locoted Head Office in the West End

of London. This facilitated bettar access to tolent from o
diverse background and for alt ports occessible 1o London.
Within our current workforce, Women are well-represented
throughout the group, with nearly 50% of our execuctive
directors and over 80% of all our head office employees
being female.

Diversity and Inclusion has always been cur top priority and
we ore proud of the above average diverse mukeup of our
team.

Benefits and reward systems

As part of our company, Seraphine plc operates a
discretionary bonus scheme and further share bosed
rewards ore in the process of being lounched.

Seraphine’s benefits have been developed to attroct, reciuit
ond retoin emnployees. The company is very clear that it

will support all employees on their own personaol journeys
during their time here at Seraphine. Therefore, family
friendly policies hove been developed supporting employees
whorn are porents, becoming parents or on another
personal journey in their lives.

Furthermore, the company is investing in flexible benefits,
giving employees the choice 1o use those benefits that
matter most to them. The compony identifies that
employees are come from diverse backgrounds and have
differing needs, therefore, the benefits offerings, support
the diversity of oyr people and moke them feel included
whilst on their individuol journeys working ot Seraphine.

Training and development

Qur focus has been on providing employees with the
relevant development toals to aflow them tn grow and be
promoted within the business and within their roles. We
currently provide on the job induction training ond toilored
training. For those working towards formal professional
quolifications, we alse provide study ogreernents support
ond ongoing occess 10 CPD.

As the Sergphine Values and Behaviours ore instilled within
the business, training and development will be delivered to
oll employees to push the company.forward on its journey
of growth. The compony encouroges employee’s to be
ambitious in their rales and to support this, monogement
training will continue to be provided. The next phase is to
instil o Performonce Maonagement structure thot suits oll
levels of the business with relevant and impactful training
attached to the employees developrment and growth in
their cole.
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Planet

Working towards reducing our

impact on the environment

OEKO-TEX® -

INSPIRING CONFIDENCE

BENER

Better
Cotten
Initiative

We ore dedicating time and effort towards achieving
various responsible sourcing targets over the coming years,
with o current focus this yeor on:

# Continuing to refine our Responsible Sourcing Code of
Practice to include environmental policies on cotton,
denim and recycled fobrics, rolling out training to internal
teams and suppliers

& Reducing our reliance on conventional cotton and
growing our Sustainoble Cotton Sourcing Policy to o
minimum of 25% by 2023

& Aiming to certify key products, such as recycled and orgonic
blended yarns via the Textile Exchange in the next year

e Mapping our suppliers beyond first tier, by rolling out the
Higg Index enviranmental self-assessment 1o our top
suppliers in FY23

s Encouroging the remoining 20% of our first tier suppliers
to odapt the SMETA Ethicol Audit method in their next
audit cycle

» Maintaining ond developing interncl knowledge on
modern slavery risks in the supply choin.

We set high standards throughout our design
manufacture and value chain

Our suppliers hove committed to the requirements outlined
in the Responsible Sourcing Code of Proctise ensuring

the quality, fit, fabric performance and production meet
the highest possible standords. Within this, we set strict
chemical compliance regulations to follow within our
Supplier Monuol to ensure our products are sofe for all
markets and respect the environment.

Most of the environmental impoct lies within the fabric
production stoge. We oim to have transporency and
troceability over our supply choin ond the materials they
use and to date, over 60% of our nominated fabnc mills
have the environmental Ceko-tex ® 100 certification.

Seraphine also recently became a member of the Better
Cotton [nitiative (BCH to reduce business relionce on
conventional cotton and we hove alreody ochieved 10%

of our overall cotten sourcing through BCl. Serophine is
committed ta saurcing o minimum of 25% of the overall
cotton consumption through 8Cl by 2023. We also pride
ourselves on using natural fibres like bomboo and Lenzing™
Ecovero™, minimising our use of monmaode fibres like
polyester ond using recycled alternatives where we can, for
example, oll our swimweor is now maode in recycled fabrics.

SERAFHINE GROUP PLC
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Planet

As part of our initiotive to identify ond mitigote risk in
our supply chain, we use SEDEX (Supplier Ethical Doto
Exchange) o map out country-specific risks and inherent
industry risks in our supply base. These SMETA audits are
based on the Ethical Trading Initiative {ET) bose cade,
Inter ational Lobour Organisaton (ILO) ond local law.
All Tier 1 suppliers are members and share their audits

on this system.

We have implemented processes aond procedures to protect
against Modern Slavery both within our supply chain and
employee base and we are in the process of producing our
first modern slovery statement, which will be published in
due course.

We are reviewing our onboarding process and ensuring
supplier forms consist of detailed checks to ensure they
comply with our Supplier Ethical Code of Canduct.

Develop a sustainable transparent supply chain that
leads on ethical practices

Our oim is to develop a fully sustainable and tronsporent
supply chain that leads on ethicol practises. Serophine’s
long-estoblished ond close working relationships with

its suppliers helps to reduce exposure 1o social ond
environmental risks in the supply chain.

We have worked with the majority of our suppliers since
launching Seraphine and have built excellent relationships
and trust over the years, valuing themn as paort of our
extended team. We pride ourselves on these long-term
partneiships and follow the same principles with ony newer
suppliers we bring on board.

Fifteen percent of our supply chain hove worked with us
since we lounched nearly 20 years age with 20% working
with the brand for over 10 years. We source globally and you
can see a breakdown of our sourcing by locotion overleof.

This year we have started mapping our supply chain beyond
our first Tier by joining the Higg lndex and this has clready
improved transporency which is pivotal in maintaining o
robust supply chain. The Higg Index is o set of tocls which
assess the social and environmental performonce of the
entire supply chain. We will use the tools to map our energy,
chemicol ond water used during the row material, fabric
production, customer care ond end lifecycle of our chosen
materials. This will help us to moke more informed decisions
and enhance our supplier sourcing strategy. Throughout the
year we have storted to integrote The Higg Index into the
design process to help us map our Scope 3 enviconmentaol
footprint. Members of the product tearmn have already been
trained on the system to successfully collote ond report

on the doto and we will roll out to key suppliers later in

the year.

Eliminate plastic waste and increase our use of
recycled pockaging materials ocross the business

As part of Seraphine’s ongoing commitment to eliminating
plastic, we have rebronded and developed plostic-free
atternatives for all cur lobelling and packaging. We have so
far committed to the following sustainable cormponents,
which we ore excited to be rolling out throughout FY23:
Polybags: 100% recycled post-consumer waste and olse
100% recyclable after use

Garment bags: 100% recycled post-consumer woste
designed to be re-used

Plastic kimbles: now made from corn storch sea!

Button bags: FSC-certified poper envelopes insteod of
plastic bags

All paper packaging: FSC-certified paper and recycled
options

Denim and Hosiery: delivered in FSC-certified, 100%
recycluble, craft paper bogs

Stare bags: FSC-certified, 100% recyclable paper, including
the hendles

We have also taken steps to reduce plostic woste in our
own operotions by completely removing plastic from all
sample submissions into our Mead Office, saving over 8kg
so for this year. We will continue to review where we con
remove plastic and improve our efforts across the business
as we know there is more we can do. We will enhance our
efforts over the next yeor to include our maoiler bags and
review retoil ond worehouse operations.

SERAPHINE GROUF PLC
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Mo. of ;
Specialism . tecetions PORTUGA
@ Soft woven 1

.

Seraphine’s
global
production
locations

Supplier specialisms

9 Jersey Q
9 Knitweor 4
Q Secmless & Hosiery 5
Q Outerwear 5
Q Swimwecr & Lingerie 5
@ Denim 3

eyt of the Warle, olene, Romenia, Sulgcric
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About Serophine Strotegic Report

’

Managing o Responsibia Business Qur Governonce

Qur Resuits
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Stakeholder Engagement & Section 172 Information

The directors are responsible for promoting the long-

term success of Seraphine by creating and maintaining
sustoinable value for the benefit of Seraphine’s stokeholders
os a whole.

This responsibility is discharged by the role thot the
directors ploy in reviewing ond making decisions of strotegic
importance, such as opproving the greup's overorching
strategy, budgets ond capitol expenditure progrommes,
organisational changes and other key policy decisions.

The board recognises that pursuing effective engagement
with Seraphine’s key stakeholders is cruciol t¢ e#nsuring that
such decision-moking processes promote Seraphine’s long-
term success.

Where the board does not engage directly with certain
stakeholder groups, it oversees management’s engagement
activities ond receives reqular updates from management
on those activities.

At Serophine, our key stakeholders include our colleagues,
customers, suppliers, shareholders-and the communities
and environments in which we operate.

The fallowing disclosure describes how the directors hove
haod regord to the motters set out in sections 172(1) (o) to
(f) of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) when performing
their duty to promote the success of the compaony.

In this section we identify our key stakeholder groups,
describe the primary ways in which we engage with them
ond describe how their interests ore considered by the
board through decision-making processes ond the setting
of the group's strategy.

Colleagues

At Seraphine, we recognise that we are reliant upon the
skills, experience and commitment of our people to achieve
our strategic goals.

Our people have always been the foundations of creating
innovative and pioneering designs and products.

We understand the importamt role thot the individual ploys
in creating a successful heritoge ond driving this forward to
the future.

We have invested in the HR structures thaot help ond
support our people on an ongoing basis.

We are moking great strides in developing our processes
ond practices to ensure that the foundations and building
blocks that support ¢ll people-reloted matters ure strong
end fit for Seraphine’s future growth,

in response to many external chellenges the pandemic
has hod on the business, we acted dynomicolly to expand
the HR team who ore building and developing o people
strotegy bosed on our Employee Values, thot encourages o
successful workforce and greet workplace.

How do we engage?
Our HR team condurt engagement forcus groups on o
regulor basis.

As Seraphine employees drive the compony forward, they
will alt work within the values and behaviours framework as
set out below.

Diversity and Inclusion Council

A council of employees, championed by ¢ member of the
Executive Leadership Team, has been established, which
focuses on ensuring the group operates with an inclusive
culture. Recommendations from the council ore presented
to the board by the ELT representative for adoption across
the group. This year, the board approved o wide range of
initiotives including the roll out of diversity and inclusion
training across the business, o Mental Health First Aiders
programme and the end of our ‘refer a friend’ recruitment
scheme.

Pay and reward

Seraphine understonds that cleor benefits ond on equitoble
reword structure is centroi to ottrocting and mointaining
tclent. The boord recognises the importance of incentivising
employees over the long-term, os demonstraoted by its
commitment to company-wide cll-employee share plans.

Health and sofety

This is o critical priority for cur company to ensure we are
able to maintein the sofety of our people. The company
formulates and continuously assesses health and safety
documentation following the HSE guidelines. Regulor risk
ossessments are conducted for high-risk categories and
HR has been recagnised as o driver of wellbeing within
the business. Learning from the Covid-19? pandemic ond
understonding how restrictions could impact both mentol
and physicol health, we cregted a hybrid working approacch,
where feasible. This enables us to respond to individual
needs by being flexible in our approach te working. Cur
people have the trust and flexibility to work the way they
are able ond achieve the cutput required.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Stakeholder Engﬂg et & Section 172 Inlormation

A continued focus on diversity, equolity and inclusion
The company maokes every effort 1o create and maintain
such an environment and ore committed to being @
business in which equolity of opportunity is a reality and
in which every individual con seek, obtoin and continue
employment without unfair discrimination.

Gender mix

We continue to look ot ways to improve gender diversity.
During this financicl year, we successfully recruited o
number of senior roles to help support the next growth
phase of the company including a Chief Information
Officer, Financiol Plonning & Analysis Director, Head of
Legol & Compony Secretary. Within our current workforce,
wornen are well-represented throughout the group,

with nearly half of our plc directors and over 80% of our
workforce being female.

Benefits ond reword systems

We operote a discretionary bonus scheme and further
share-based rewards as well as other benefits to attract,
recruit and retoin employees.

Training and development

Our focus has been on providing emplayees with the
relevant development toois to allow them to grow and
promote within the business and within their roles, We
_currently provide on the job induction training and wilored
training. For thase working towards formal professional
quolifications, we ¢lso provide study ogreements support
ond ongoing access to CPD.

As the Seraphine Values ond Behaviours are instilled within
the business, training and development will be delivered to
alt employees to push the company forward on its journey
of growth. The company encourages employees to be
ambitious in their roles and to support this, manogement
training will continue to be provided. The next phase is to
instil a Performance Managemeant steucture that suits all
levels of the husiness with relevant ond impoctful training
attached to the employee’s development ond growth in
their role.

Customers

Serophine’s ambition to be with mums for the journey
recognises that a positive customer experience is essential
far ensuring thot customers return to shop at Seraphine
again.

How do we engage?

By still maintoining o store presence in the US, France ond
UK we effectively engage with customers on a daily bosis,
listening to what they like ond whot they value about
Seraphine and our products.

In our digital partner streainm we engage regulorly with
customers discussing the performance of aur products
with them and learning what their own customers say.

With our digitol customers through gur own piatform,

as well os the normol emaoil contact channel we take
phone calls from custormners and the customer sarvice
teom have fluency in @ number of languoges. Mainly
customers contact customer service when things ge
wrong on their customer journey, but sometimes they do
contact us 10 say how much they volue their purchase,

The board has delegated responsibitity to members of
Seraphine’s Executive Leadership Team and logistics and
sourcing monagers to regulerly talk with our supply chain
partners to problem solve any issues, share long-term
strategies ond thereby cement lasting relationships.

Seraphine’s strotegy is to invest in our custorner proposition

by:

» Enhancing the customer experience

» Continuing to innavate our product range

» Building our internotionol reach, particularly in the highly
successful North Americon markets and strengthening
our supply chaoin and embedding sustainobility into
everything we do.

The combination of investment into enhancing the
customer experience by continued product innovation,,
expanding our website presence into new markets

and deepening brond awareness, while simultoneously
embedding sustainabifity in our business, positions
Seraphine with a highly compelling customer proposition
to provide the customer whot they need.

Pregnancy brings oll kinds of surprises, there are decisions
to moke, lots of information to absorb and chonging bodies
to contend with. At Seraphine we help women through
itall

SERAPHINE GROUP FLC
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Sitakeholder Engagement & Section 172 Information

We're proud of our technical expertise. Our clothes aren't
just stylish, they're seriously clever too. Our in-house
product team love innovating. Every time we find o new
solution for o motherhood challenge, it's o victory for us.

When you're pregrwiit, comfort Is everything, but as o
mum you shouldn't have to compromise on style. We
want women to look and feel greot, so scft fabrics and
odjustable fits are at the foundation of everything we do.

We take sustainability ond responsible fashion seriously
ond put thought into what we make, always designing
with langevity in mind. We're helping nurture the naxt
generation after oll so we have to do our bit to look after
the world they'll inherit.

We test on real mums ond mums-to-be-of oll shopes, sizes
ond motherhood stoges. We're committed to our parents
ond customers in ather ways too, such s our Corporote
Sociol Responsibility initiotives.

Community and environment

We recognise the importonce and increosing consumer
focus an sustainobility, as well as the wider impact of the
fashion industry on the environment.

We are dedicating time and effort towaords achieving
responsible sourcing tergets, By gchieving this, we ensure
thut the core, attentlon, energy and resources thot go into
our clothes ore never wasted.

Protecting the planet is really important to us. Qur teams
are committed to developing a sustainable business, with
o tronsporent supply choin thot is future-proofed and
reduces our waste and carbon footprint.

Over the year, we hove identified five key ESG priorities for
the business:

1. Re-establishing our ESG Governonce and ensuring clear
strategy and KPis are in ploce for our expanding team
with cll stakeholders signed ug 10 the journey

2.Committing to our net zero pledge and working towards
our goat: 2050

3. Continuing our facus on sustginable product and
lengevity of design with increased use of plonet
friendly fabrics

4.increasing company transparency of all sourcing with
o focus on Tier 1 suppliers utilising the Higg Index to
support this

5.Reducing the use of plostic throughout the business ond
ensuring we have recyclable aptions where it is required

Governance

This year, we have re-established our Environmental,
Social and Governonce {ESG) sub-committee os our team
has grown, This includes our Product Director and Chief
Operating Officer.

With our new talent on board, we want to ensure thot all
departments are aligned and owaore of Seraphine’s direction
creating a fully integrated plan reflective of our core volues.

Cur mission is to accelerate progress utilising our new
combined industry knowledge and expertise. By having o
focused sub-committee in ploce, it enables us to scale and
drive the business forward, measuring tongible £5G results
olong the way.

The executive committee are occountable for ensuring
objectives ore met and reporting back to the board on
cchieving the set KPls, with remuneration reflected by this.

Suppliers
Seraphine is committed 1o collaberating meaningfully.

We work with o wide range of suppliers ond ore proud of
the close working relationships thot we foster. Seraphine
offers fair poyment terms and supports our suppliers with
volumes that match our growth.

Through portnership our suppliers hove committed to the
requirements outlined in the Responsible Sourcing Code of
Practise ensuring the quality, fit, fabric performonce ond
production meet the highest possible standards. Within
this, we set strict chemnical complionce regulotions to
follow within our Seraphine Supplier Code to ensure owr
products are safe for ol markets, respect the environment
ond ensure odherence in respect of working conditions,
remunerotion, sofe environment ond zero tolerance to child
or bonded lobour.

How do we engoge?

The board hos delegated responsibility 1o members of
Seraphine’s Executive Leadership Teomn and logistics and
sourcing rnanagers to regularly talk with our supply chain
partners to problem solve ony issues, shore long-term
strotegies ond thereby cement losting relationships.

Discussions are on-going with suppliers around design,
quality, delivery timing ond, when foced with transport
chalienges, how to prioritise products.

. SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Sourcing
We source globally though mainly from Eostern Europe,
Indic and the Far East. See page 68.

This year we have started mapping our supply chain beyond
our first tier by joining the Higg Index ond this has olready
improved transparency which is pivotal in maintaining o
robust supply chain.

The Higg Index is o set of tools which ossess the socicl and
envirenmental performance of the entire supply chain.

We will use the tool 1¢ map our energy, chemicol ond water
used during the raw material, fobric production, customer
core and end lifecycle of our chosen materiols.

This will he!p us to maoke more informed decisions ond
enhonce our supplier sourcing strotegy

Throughout the yeor we have started to integrote the Higg
Index into the design process to help us map our Scope 3
environmental footprint.

Members of the product team have already been trained
on the system to successfully collate and report on the dota
and we will roll out to key suppliers loter in the year.

Sharehaiders

As o busimess we ore focused on engoging with
shoreholders 1o be open ond transporent with the
performance of the business, the chollenges we foce
ond the successes ond failures experienced on our
journey in the public markets,

Although we hove only been listed for eight months we
regulorly engage with shareholders and host visits to our
head office in Centrol London to introduce them to our
innovative ond customer-focused product range ond
provide o ‘behind the scenes’ look.

When onnouncing our results ond troding updotes we
are welcoming of in-person meetings with shareholders.
Outside of these periods, we are also available to meet
with interested parties to discuss the opportunities and
chollenges being faced by the business.

Our major shareholder, Mayfair Equity Partners has a seot
ot the board and is very much involved in the decisions that
ore made boased on the information that is shared.

The directors also meet with prospective investors who in
the yeor reported, hove subsequently invested in shares of
the business.

Stakeholder I*]ngagmncnl. & Section 172 Information

Principle decisions

The initial plan to IPO wos made before this current
teporting period in January 2021, with admission 1o the
maorket on 16 July 2021,

Following the successful IPO but focing an inventary
shortoge brought about by the delays to shipments from
the For East it wos decided to issue o troding stotement
23 September 2021 to update the market on the impact
of this situation. ’

Following the decision by John Boiley the previous CFO
to step down from his role it was decided by the board to

recruit a new CFO which wos announced in December 2021.

As headwinds storted to build ot the beginning of Q4 FY22
around weaker demand, an issue around oecaunting for
tax ond duty, increased promotional activity and higher
inflation in warehouse ond transport costs, a decision was
taken to issue o further trading updote to shareholders and
the market in February 2022.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The overall responsibility around risk rmanagement is taken
by the board and has been integroted with the company's
governonce structure,

A corporate risk register is mointained at group level, which
includes o summary of all the risks identified across each
business department including ony thot oddress o change
in regulations. This 1isk segister allows easy monitoring

ond hos created a "bottom up’ reporting structure, where
important risks will be brought to the ottention of the
board.

A risk steering groug is in place as o subset of the executive
committee and reports 1o the oudit committee on a
regulor basis. This team is responsible for the continuous
monitoring and review of key business risks and meets

on a regular basis to review and update the corporate

risk reqister, identify emerging risks ond implement risk
mitigotions for all risks that may have an impact on the
company's business objectives.

In addition to this, the executive committee is then
responsible for ensuring the refevant processes ond controls
ore carried out, post reporting of the key risks to the board.
By hoving this structure in place, it ensures o robust risk
culture is maintained on ¢ compuny -wide baosis,

‘ PLC BOARD

AUDIT & RIS COMMITTEE

N

-~

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

~

RISK STEERING GROUP

Risk appetite

The company's risk appetite has been established by
ensuring risks are aligned with the company's objectives
ond strategies. These are then used clongside the corporote
core volues that are used within doily operations on a day-
to-day basis.

Anather factor that is used as an indicator of what our risk
appetite should be is vio ossessmant of the company’s key
performaonce indicotors. The board identified the need for o
more embitious approach te improve the probability that
the compony will be oble to ochieve forecosted business
targets, with actions being identified to mitigote upcoming
risks in a structured manner.

Qur key high risk appetites are included within ur risk
schedule on the next poge.

Principal risks

Principal risks are considered most significant to the
business, os they include risks that are moteriol and could
be detrimental 10 the long-term viability of the business.
These risks have been identified os being likely to create
the grectest impact, hoving been reviewed ond approved
ot a board tevel. Refer to pages 75-76 to view list.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Primﬂale risks cnd how we mitigota them

— —_—
Principal Risks Risk Desceiption Risk Type __How We M ] gote Risks j
Product Ensuring products thet ore designed well, Low The ongoing review of the product renge compored
design, oppropriotely priced and desiroble is key 1o the with trends, assessing the ideal stock holding as
quaiity success of the business, given thot they must be well os identitying gaps in the ronge.
ond choice cligned with customer demand ond fashion trends. The Design team research morket trands, ottending
A failure to monage this risk could leod to a stock trcde shows to keep up to dote with product trends
surplus thot ages, becomes absolete ond is and design ideas as well os developing innovotions,
subsequently required to be written off. Not hoving p P ]
desirable products would leod to reductions in scles S‘I"OF::F:':; 2::“;0:2(:'?’:?3::;3;:?‘“: cuflietc_tsnw:ieth_
witir the subsequent impact on company profit 2 h N uthct 2 rate i {l‘lg crions h
levels, a key perforrmonce indicator of the business. GEN Country that we operate In. These are
. _ reviewed by senior product monogement.
Over the long-term, o foilure to ensure customer
expectations are maotched by the production and
quolity of goods could impoct the reputation of
the company.
Supply thain There is o significant relionce on our supply chointo  Medium  Mointaining o dynomic ronge plan which astimotes
disruptions menufacture ond deliver our products to o high units of eoch item to purchose.
stoncord end in o timely monner. . Maintaining o global supplier bose, ensuring eoch
A failuse to monoge this risk could leod to an supplier is monitored agoinst ogreed controct terms
inobility to meet customer demond, and increcse in ond vio supplier audits. Reqular ond close
€os51s or reduced conversion, all factors oifecting relotionshig with all suppliers to ensure any supplier
profit margins. disruptions ore effectively communicoted.
Fluctuations in prices linked to raw materiols, Our Sustainability Monager crranges for regular’
freight charges and logistics fees would need audits to toke ploce on our supplier bose, ensuring
to be moanitared to understond the impact on compliance with the standards set out in the Code.
the business and ony mitigoting ections thot We troin our emplo ees'cnd maintein r lor sit
could be mode to reduce impoct on profitability, e poy © MEInteIn regulor sie
visits and regulor cormmunication, ensuring our
Any supplier breach of our business code of proctice standords around responsible saurcing, humen
could incresse reputotionol domage sisk. rights and medern slovery ore reflected.
Warehouse Significant relionce is ploced on the componys High Ensuring the worehouse Aas cantingency plons in
disruptions centrcl werehouse, as it is key to the movement of place te eveoid physice! or system disiuption.
stock to customers Ensuring insuronce policies cre in ploce to cover the
Any disruption within the warehouse manogement loss of profit genercted due to disruption ot the
system or physicel warehouse could jeod to orders warehouse ar in the areo.
being deloyed ond o becldog building.
Faoiling to manage this risk could lead to increased
business operotional costs, reduced revenue and
reputotionol demage.
Office tech infrostructure is hosted internally and Medium  Deto is bocked up to the cloud with failover

Dependency
on IT systems

subject to risk of fire/fload/theft or signiticant
haerdwore foilure.

ERP system (Primo) is hosted locolly ond subject to
risk ot fire/Hood /theft or significent hardware
foilure.

With more ond more cyber, phishing ond
rensomwore ottocks toking ploce, there is 0 need
to ensure risks oround dota protection ond date
privocy ore covered, with o level of resilience built in.

solutions.

Back-office softwore is cloud-based with occass
urwestricted by locotion.

Mave to ERP thot supports cloud bosting or
co-location ond thin client opplications.

Cloud-bused document monogement system.
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__Risk Description

Principol Risks

Reguiatory
Compliance

‘Unfavourable
changes in
foreign
currency

Management
of long-taerm
liabilities and
capital
expenditure

Principal Risks and 1 neertaintics

There is o growing risk towards non-FCA regulatory
ond stotutory risks, including dota protection,
GDPR, ESG ond the reporting ond reduction of
corbon ermissions.

With climete change reporting being a key
disclosure requirement, there is a need to ensure
that in the creotion of our products, we and our
suppliers comply with oll legislation in both territory
of monutccture, storage ond sale.

Foiling to adapt and maintain compliance with the
fost-moving regulatory fromewerk could result in
nardship for employees of our suppliers,
reputationol damage ond ultimately financial
penalties.

The company will clso need to continue the climate
impact reduction, both through encouraging our
suppliers to odapt ond by odapting our own
behaviours.

We are o UK-based retailer ond through our
warehouse in Belgium sell products to customers in
Eurape, North America ond the rest of the world.
We sell to countries in multiple cur:encies whilst
recagnising totol scles within our financiol
statemnents in sterling.

As we expond further into new markets, there
cantinues to be a foreign exchange exposurs risk,

A foilure ta recognise this os ¢ risk cauld lead to
increcsad costs, exchange losses and overall impact
on the company's profitability.

Ensuring there is a constont owareness of cash
utilisation within the business is key to meintcining
liguidity ond securing the compony's future success.
Acrisk is that the business does not have enough

- rasources 1o pay ofl future ligbilities o5 the amounts

folt due.

A failyre to mecnage this risk could impact the long-
term sustoinability of the business.

__ RiskType _

High

Low

How We Manage/MitigateRisks
A Corporate Criminal Offence {(CCCO] workshop haos
been carried out ond o register compited to identity
significont risks identified in our business processes.

Processes will be tightened where possible ond the
rermainder wili be monitored on ¢ regular basls,

Anti-bribary and corruption colicies hove been
revised in the year ond rofled cut within our new
updoted employee hondbook.

We work with @ third-porty consultoncy who
calculates our corbon emissions ond works with
us ta identify reclistic torgets. This will be tracked
and reported on a regular basis.

Overoll, with revenue being split predominantly
ocross sterling, euros and US dollars, while our
costs of heod office, worehouse and inventory

ore denominoted in sterling, euros and US dollors
respectively, we have o guite well-bolonced noturc!
hedge, However, as we continue to grow in sorme
markets more thon others that natural hedge may
reduce over time which would require on updated
currency policy to address this.

We prepare constancy currency soles schedules by
geogrophy on o parindic basis.

The business operctes several cosh flow modets to
monoge these risks. We have o 13-week model
which is updated weekly to refect daily cosh flows.

We hove o budget cosh flow torecost for the initiol
12-maonth fiscol period.

We oiso hove o three-year plan with integrol cosh
flow and bolonce sheets to provide visibility of long-
term funding needs.

We are putting in place o monthly forecast process
which will model cosh flow on o rolling baosis for the
next 12 months. The cosh flow currently forecasts
out expected copital expenditures. We will use this
os 0 tracking bosis to monitor cosh usoge ond
cavenont breoches,

A fixed asset register is mointgined to ensure
approgrigte amortisotion of ossars and 1o prevent
any delcyed write-offs.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Priucipal Risks and Lncertainties

Emerging risks

The risk monagement process includes looking ot emerging
risks alongside identifying key principal risks. Emerging risks
ollows the company to evolucate the priority and time frome
behind any potentic! changes that are likely to incur and
likely 1o impact the business.

One of the key emerging risks that has been discussed
within the executive team is the risk in being exposed to
chonges in circumstances due to political flash points and
natural disasters. Exampies include the war in Ukraine and
its impact on the price of raw materiots ond commodities.
There are continuing Covid-19 outbreaks aond subsequent
lockdowns in Chine deloying production. We also have
suppliers based in Sri Lanka, who are currently undergoing
a financial crisis - oll foctors to consider as they could
impact supply chain operagtions.

The chaollenge of meeting the net zero objective haos been
embedded into our principal risks; however, at the moment
the focus is around reducing corbon emissions towords
the long-term targets of completely eradicating carbon
emissions by 2050. The Task Force on Climate-reloted
Disclosures statement on page 55 provides more detail on
our risk monagement process specific to climate change.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANMNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOO ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
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Chair’s Introduction to Governance

thlun H(R‘.' ;
Non- EXECLthe Chair, ’
H‘l r

As Chair of the board of directors of
Seraphine Group ple (the ‘Board’), I am
pleased to introduce, on behalf of all of
the directors, the Seraphine Corporate
Governance Report (the ‘Report’) for our
first year as a publicly listed company.

In this report, we set out the corporote governance
arrangements that we put in place both prior 1o, and
foilowing, our IPO and odmission to trading on the
main market of the London Stock Exchange in July 2027;
summaorise how the board hes discharged its responsibilities
in FY22; and illustrote the board's commitment to
embedding high stendaids of governance across the group.
In porticulor, this Report sets out:
*» How we enhanced our board composition, skills and
experience in preparation for our IPO
» How we have engaged with our key stokeholders
# Biographical information on our board
o Details of the role of the board, its committees
and the division of responsibilities
# Audit and Risk Cornmittee Report
# The Nomination Committee Report
o The Directors” Remuneration Report
e The Directors’ Report
o Our commitment to maintaining Seraphine’s culture
ond values.

As Chair, it is my principal role to lead the boord and
ensure that we operate effectively, efficiently ond with the
strotegic cims of the group in mind, to deliver stokeholder
value and promote the success of the group.

As o board, we ore responsible for setting the tone and
culture of the group. We recognise the weight of this
responsibility and are firmly committed to doing business
the right woy by-operating with the highest stondords of
professional and personal integrity.

In preparation for our IPO, we undertook a thorough
review of the skills ond experience of the existing directors
of Seraphine, to ensure that when we became a public
company, the board weuld have the appropricte
structure, composition and skill bose to not only meet the
requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
{(the "Code”) but also succeed in delivering Seraphine’s
purpose and strategic objectives, Following this review
we were very pleased to welcome three new independent
non-executive directors to the board in June 2021, prior
to the IPO. This included myself, Sharon Flood as Non-
Executive Chair, Williorn (Bill} Ronald ond Sarah Highfield
wheo have brought with them o weglth of skills, experience
ond knowledge of publicly listed companies across a
variety of sectors. We have also welcomed Bertie Ackroyd
as a Non-Executive chair and representative of Mayfais.
Full details of their skills and experience, clong with those
of the other members of the boord can be found in the
board of directors section on pages 84-87.

Chief Financial Officer

In December 2021, we announced that John Bailey wos to
step down as finance director of the group to pursue other
opportunities. As a result, we welcomed Lee Williams to
the board end he assumed the position of Chief Financial
Officer with effect from 28 February 2022. Lee is o strong
commercial and strategic CFO with experience in both
growth and established businesses with recent listed
experience.

Corporate gavernance arrangements

As a privately owned compony, high standords of corperate
governance were always key to how the legocy Seraphine
boord operoted and how we conducted ourselves os

a business, Therefore, when it came to preparing for
Serophine’s PO, we were able te build upon the strength

of our existing governance arrangements to establish a
corporate governance framework uppropriate for a publicly
listed company. More detail about these arrangements
ond our compliance with the Code con be found on pages
82-83 and 88-90.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANMNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022



Chair’s Introduction o Governance

Boord focus

The boord and its committees have covered an importont
and wide-ranging ogenda during the year. During the first
half of the yeor the board were particulorly focused on
preparing for and completing the IPQ, whilst simultoneously
erisuring thot the business had oppropriote arrongements
in place Lo novigote the ongeing challenges related to the
Covid-19 pandemic. The challenges we foced throughout
FY22 do not need restating, but | om incredibly proud

ond grateful for the commitment, determinotion and the
exceptional work carried out by our teorns during these
chotlenging conditions.

Throughout the second holf of the year, os well as ensuring
Seraphine’s transition to life os a publicly listed company,
the board’s focus has been on monitoring the delivery of
the strategy outlined ot the time of the IPO, with regulor
updates on progress ogainst our key performance measures
being provided at board meetings.

Details of the key topics discussed by the boord during the
year end up to the date of this report con be found on
pages 91-93.

Stakeholder engagement

A key focus for the board in FY22 bos been maintaining
and enhancing the engagement strategies thot Seraphine
utilises with each of our key stakeholder groups: our
people, our customers, our designers and suppliers and
the communities and environments in which we aperate.
These strategies are detoiled on pages 70-73 within the
Strotegic Report.

The boord is confident thot the current strategies in place
are effective in focilitoting on open dialogue with our

key stakeholder groups, we remain open to new ways of
improving these methods. By way of example, we hove
appeinted Bill Ronold os the Employee Director to enable
the boord to understand the views and experiences of
our employees to help inform our decision moking. It was
agreed thot Bill, os chair of the remuneration committee,
would be well positioned to close the gop between

the boardroom and our employees and te facilitote
communication between them. Bill intends to meet with
employees on an informal basis periedically to estoblish
regular, direct two way communication between the board
and the workforce on o range of people topics such as
reword, cuhiure, weltlbeing, diversity ond sustoinability.

The insights from these meetings will be fed back 1o the

fuli boord to:

& Assist them in ensuring our culture continues to align
with our strategy

e Further strengthen cur engogement with employees
acrass the business

» Ensure employee feedback is taken into consideration
when making board decisions related to matters that
impact our teoms, such as reward, wellbeing ond new
ways of working.

I, along with the executive directars, continue to set

aside regular time to meet with shareholders on areas of
importance. We look forword to the upcoming AGM which
will pravide an opportunity for me to explain the company's
progress ond, along with the 6ther members of the board,
to answer any questions raised by our sharehalders.

Sharon Flood

Chuair of the board
31 July 2022

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Corporate Governance Statement

As g listed company, Seraphine is committed 1o applying the principles and complying with the provisions set out in the
Code. The Code, issued by the Finoncial Reparting Council (FRC), provides o framework for best practice in corporote
governonce and covers five brood key oreas:

» Boord leadership and company purpose

» Division of responsibilities

» Composilion, succession plonning and board evoluotions

» Audit, risk and control

s Remuneration

The Code is ovailable on the FRC website at www. fre. org.uk.

Since our IPO in July 2021 ond to the date of this Report, the boord has worked to ensure compliance with the principles of
the Code and with all opplicable provisions of the Code with the overall aim of promating long-term sustainable success for
Seraphine.

Disclosures required by the Disclosure Guidence and Transparency Rules DTR 7.2.6, with regard to share capital are
presented in the Directors’ Report on poge 119. Disclosures required by DTR 7.2.8 relating to diversity policy ore presented on
page 63 and in the Nomination Commitiee Report on page 94,

Directors’ biegraphies ond membership of board committees are se1 out on pages 84-87,

In its inaugurol Annual Repart Seraphine has endeavoured to be compliont with the Code, with the exception of the

following matters:

Provision 21

There shoukd be 6 formel gnd
rigorous onnual evoluction of
the performonce of the
boord, its committees, the
Cheir ond individuol directors.

Provision 24

The boord should establish an
cudit committee of
indepandent non-executive
directors, with @ minimum
mermbership of three, or in
the case of smaoller
companies, two. The choir of
the boord should not be a
member.

Explanation

The boord considers there to be
an oppropriate cambinction of
executive and non-gxecutive
directors to enoble constructive
chollenge and stewardship of
Serophine's mancgement
tecms.

The hoord carried out oa
informcl evoluotion process
this finoncial yeor. The Chair
held meetings with the non-
executive directors, the
executive directors ond the
Genero! Counse! during which
the Choir spoke obout the
board ond its effectiveness and
opportunities for growth.

Upon IPO the committee was
constituted cf the thrae
independent non-executive
directors.

_ _Rationale

d Actiento Comply_

The boord is tully committed to ensuring complionce with Provision
1 of the Code urwl is octively working towords achieving ot l=ast
holf of the board being considered independent within the next
two financiol years . At IPO the board waos cppointed from the best
condidotes to see the compony through its first 3 yeors s a plc.

As the board was only estoblished in April 2021 ond in light of the
review work that wos undertoken ot the time of the PO irito the
composition and effectiveness of the board, it was decided not to
undgertake a further, formal evoluotion of the boord, its eommittees
or individual directors during the 2022 financiol year. The boord,
supported by the nominction committee, concluded thot it would
be more valuoble to undertoke an extensive evoluotion process ctter
the existing directors hod worked together os ¢ unit for o longer
period.

Formal evaluctions will toke ploce in autumn 2022 and will be
reported on in the next Annwal Report. In occordonce with Provision
21 of the Code, it is expected that on externot evoluation will toke
place at lecst every three yeors.

Due to the size of the boord it wos ogreed that all of the
independent non- exceutive directors shwuld form the membership of
the audit committee os oll three hod recent and relevent finonciel
experience ond Gs ¢ whole have competence relevant to the sector
in which the company operctes, Each individuol's relevant finoncial
experience is beneficiol to the company porticutedy during the first
three yecrs after IPO. Should on additionol independent non-
executive director be appointed in the future, then considerotion wili
be given to the Chelr of the boord cecsing to be o0 member of the
Audit committee.

SERAPHINE GRCUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
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Corporate Governance Statement

Code Referance
Provision 41

_Explanation

No direct employee
engagement took place during
FY22 regarding the executive
remuneration pockoge and its
alignment with the wider
company pay poticies.

What engogement with the
workforce hos taken ploce to
explain how executive
remuneration aligns with
wider cuitipany pay policy.

As the remunersation committee wos only established in July 2021 in
connection with the IPQ there wos limited time before the end of
FY22 in which to design and implernent the executive remuneration
policy to align with public cnmpany maorket stondords. in this first
year as o public compaony, the board and the remuneration
committee considered that there was no oppropriate forum in
existence ot Seraphine at that time to effectively engage with o
crass-section of Seraphine'’s people to facilitote praductive and
constructive engagement on the remuneration policy. As such, the
boord ond the remuneration committee concluded thot it was not
procticolin FY22 for ony direct engogement to toke ploce. However,
in designing the new remuneration policy, the remuneration
committee hos remained mindful of wider pay policies ocross
Seraphine with the oim of ensuring equitabiity.

An employee forum is to be estoblished with representctives from
diverse roles and regions during FY23, which will provide on
oppropriate channel to discuss marters, including remunerction,
directly with o non-executive director going forword. As such, the
compony cims to be compliont with Provision 41in FY23.

For more detgils on how Serophine has applied the principles and complied with the provisions of the Code please refer 1o

the following sections of this Annuol Report:
Board Leodership ond Company Purpose

Division of Responsibilities

Composition, Succession Planning and
Boord Evaluations

Audit, Risk and Control

A Promote Long-Term Sustainable Success pages 70-73
B Purpose, Volues, Strotegy and Culture poges 20-23
C Resources and Control pages 98-99
D Stokeholder Engogement poges 70-73
E Policies and Proctices poges 62-63
F Objective Judgment, Openness ond Debote poges 80-81
G Bogrd Com position and Division of Responsibilities pages 84-88
H Non-Executive Directors pages 84-87
I Boord Support and Functionality poge 88-89
Board Appointments, Succession and Diversity poge 94
Skills, Experience and Knowledge pages 84-87
Board Evaluations poge 82
Auditor Independence page 98
Fair, Balanced & Understondable Assessment page 97
Risk Manogement & Pn'ternal Control page 98-99

Remunerotion

m P v 0 Z I rFr X o

Board of Directors

Sharon Flood
Non-Executive Chair
Appoainted 30 June 2021

Remunerotion ond Strategy
Developing Rernuneration Policy

Judgment ond Discretion

pages 100-118
poges 103-112
page 113

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Corporate Governance Framework

P - - - - . f e =

The Board of Directors . - - '
Chair: Sheren Flood . '

The board is ultimately responsible for the strotegic leadership of the Serophine Group plc. The boord determines

'} Seraphine’s fundomental management policies and oversees the performonce of the business as a whole to meet its

| strotegic obsjectives. It is the principol decision-raking body for oll matters thet are significant to the group, whether

| in terms of their strategic, financiol or reputational implications, ond hos odopted o schedule of motters reserved for
its approval. The boord has delegated some of its responsibilities to formel committees of the board (as detoiled in this
diagram}. In addition, the group has estoblished an Executive Leadership Team, who ore responsible for the long-term

growth plans of the Seraphine business and the group’s day-to-day strategic and financial planning.

N ——

v

- g : —

-

Remuneration
Committee
Chair: Bill Ronold
Responsibie for
b designing and
implernenting the
| ramuneration policy for
Seruphl ne's executive
directors, glong with
Serophina’s wider senior
, managernent. The :
committee also mokes
recommendations for
the grants of awords
under Seraphine’s share
incentive plons.

See pages 100-118 for
the Remuneration
Committee Report.

|
|
|
|
j

r— - - -

Nomination '
Committee .
Chadir: Shoron Flood
Assists the board in
réviewing the structure,
size ond composition
of the board and
} its committees ond
} evaluating the belance
y of skills, knowledge,
} experience and diversity.
The committee is
also responsible for
succession planning
| and advises the board ¥
i on the retirements ’
and appointments
of additional and
replacernent directors
ond Serophine’s
Executive Leadership
! Teomn.

See poge 94 for the

§ Nomingtion Committee
] Report,

{

L B

——

Audit and Risk
Committee

L Chair: Sarah nghﬁeld

Responsible for
reviewing and
maintoining the group's
financiol control and
other internol risk
manogement systeims
ond advises the board
on Seraphine’s risk
strategy, policies ond

- potentiol exposures.

The comrmittee also
assists the board in

rmonitoring the integrity

of the group’s Financial
Statements and the
effectiveness of the
external audijtors.

See poges 95-99 for

the Audit ond Risk
Committee Report.

A

r
Disclosure
Committee
Chair: David Williams
A stonding committee
of the board, which
meets on on od hoc
bosis os ond when
required. Responsible
for timely ond accurate
disclosure of information
os required to meet
the group's legal and
regulatory obligations.

.

— e

'+ Executive Leodershnp Team —I
The Execytive Leadership Teom supports the CEOr in the exetution of the'group’s strotegy ond in the mnnagement :
] of the day-to-doy activities of the group and consists of Dovid Williams, Lee Williams and Chelsey Oliver. ‘
. b
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The board’s role ond reserved matters

The board is ultimately responsible for the overall leedership

of the group, for developing and determining Seraphine’s

strategy and averoll commerciol objectives. The board is

the principal decision-making body for all motters that

ore significant to Seraphine, whether in terms of their

strategic, financial or reputational implicotions, The board

has adopted a schedule of matters specifically reserved for

its approval, which is updoted and approved annually ond

includes;

» Overoll leadership of the group, including setting

Serophine’s values and standards and promoting

alighment of culture

Approval of the group’s strategy, business plan and

budget

® Any decision 10 moterially change the group’s business,
including the noture or geographical scope.

* Approvol of any changes 1o the group's copitol ond/or
corporate structure

® Approving the fundamentol policies of the group.

¢ Implementing ond overseeing the growp's aperations,
including financial reporting procedures, risk
management policies and other internal and financiol
controls

» Approval of material contracts ond/or commitments in
excess of certain defined volue thresholds

® Approving chonges to the structure, size or composition

of the boerd, including the appointment or rermovol of

directors and executive management

Determining the remuneration policy for the directors

ond senior management and ensuring the independence

of directors and that potentiol confiicts of interest are

managed

Calling shareholder meetings and ensuring oppropriate

communication with shareholders.

Corporate Governance Framework

Retirement and election of directors

In occordance with Provision 18 of the Code, at the AGM
each yeer each director shaoll retire from office and seek
re-election by shareholders. The nomination committee
considered the motter of the annual re-election of directors
at the AGM bosed on key criterio including performance,
contribution, independence and respective time
commitments. On recommendation from the nomination
committee and in occordance with the Articles ond the
Code, the board has recommended that oll directors stand
for re-election ot the 2022 AGM.

For further details on the appointment of directars,
including board inductions and succession plonning, along
with Serophine’s Board Diversity Policy, pleose see poge 94
of the Nomination Committee Report.

Board and committee meetings, attendance and
independence

The board held nine monthly scheduled meetings during
the period under review, which tock place between the
IPG in July 2021 and the end of the finencial year on 3
April 2022, In addition, there were numerous od hoc board
meetings and committee meetings during the period.
The board is satisfied by the commitment of the directors
1o discharge their duties during this time. The directors’
attendonce ot the board ond committee meetings are
shown in the toble below:

r

Monthly "
- Independent Boord* Audit _ Remwneration  Nominati Diaci !
Sharon Fiood v 99 576 676 272 272
Dovid Williams T e - - . 272
Joha Boiley' 8/9 . oL ; )
Lee Willioms? " i 29 - - - -
Chelsey Oliver /0 - A - - -
Bill Ronald ’ ’ v 9/9 616 or6 22 172
Sorah Mightield v e e 646 w2 22
Bertie Aykroyd i 8/9 - - - . -

*Monthly meetings since (PO

The executive directars ore not members of the cornmittees with 1he exception of Dovid Willioms who is Cheir of Disclosure Commiltee

1. lohn Bailey resigned from the hoard with effect from 28 February 2022

2. Lee Willioms wos oppointed 1o the boerd with effect from 28 February 2022

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Corporate Governance Framework

Independence and conflicts of interest

The boord considers there to be an appropriote
combination of executive and non-executive directors

to enable constructive challenge and stewardship of
Serophine’s monagement tearms. Nonetheless, the boord is
fully committed to ensuring compliance with Provision 11 of
the Code and is octively working towards aochieving ot least
holf of the board being considered independent within the
next two financial yeors. Further details con be found in the
Nemination Committee Report on poge 94.

The directors are cognisant of their duty under the Act

to ovoid potentiol conflicts of interest with the company.
Accordingly, the board has put in place processes to
identify, review ond, if appropriate, authorise ony such
conflicts in accordance with the company’s articles

of association (the ‘Articles’), should they arise. All
directors ore required to inform the Company Secretary
on an ongoing basis of their refationships with external
companies, including directorships or other appointments.
A stonding item is included on the agende of each board
meeting to allow for the dectaration of any conflict of
interest or potentiol confiict of interest by the directors. i
a conflict is deemed to arise then the relevont director is
excluded frorm voting on, or being counted in quorum, for
ony resolution that relates to matters in which they have
o conflict of interest, or potentiol conflict of interest. Since
the IPQO, no director hos token on any additional external
appointments that cre considered significant for the
purposes of Provision 15 of the Code.

In addition, in accordance with Provision 15 of the Code,
before making any new agpointment to the boord,
petential oppointees are required to disclose any significont
external appointrments to Seraphine, to ensure that they
can dedicate sufficient time 1o the commitment of being o
Serophine board member and to ensure that there are no
existing conflicts of interest.

All conflicts orising in respect of transactional maotters
are reviewed as they arise. The directors have outhority
to autharise conflicts of interest in occordance with the
Articles.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Summary of Key Board Activities and "
Work Undertaken During the Year

Overview

Although this hos been an unprecedented yeor for
Seraphine ond ane of significant change, the principal
role of the board remains the same: to provide clear,
entrepreneurial and responsible leadership to the group,
whilst ensuring that the group has an appropriote risk
and internal control environment, adequate resources
and appropriate values and standards 1o deliver its
strotegic objectives and promate the fong-term success
of the group for the benefit of its shorehoiders ond
stakeholders as a whole.

The Compaony Secretory, in conjunction with the executive
directors and the Choir, is responsible for agreeing agendos
in advance of board ond committee meetings. Board
popers are circulated in o timely monner to enable the
directors to undertake full and detailed considerotion of
agenda items in advance of meetings taking place. Board
popers are mode availoble on an enline board reporting
portal that con be occessed by each director at any
convenient time.

Key ogendo iterns of eoch boord meeting usually include:
o Regular updates on operational activities and trading

e Reports on the progress of strategic initiatives

» New motters arising for boord approvat

e Updotes on action points from previous board meetmgs

Each board meeting will also typically contain o stonding
item faor the Chair of eoch principol board committee to
report to the full board on key matters that have arisen
during the previous cycle ond to make recommendotions
for formal board approval os necessary. The epen dialogue
between the board and eoch committee ensures that the
board retains sufficient oversight of its delegated outherity
and maintains overall strategic leadership of the group. The
board's egenda cycle also makes provision for updates on
the key areas of the group’s business model and enabting
functions, including Operations, Finance, Technology, Legal
and Humon Resources.

Summary
Set out below is 0 summary of key activities covered during
the period under review ond to the date of this repaort:

Strategy

e Approved the group’s Three Year Strotegic Plan

+ Monitored the implementation and execution of the
group’s sirategy through reguiar updates from the
executive directors

* Reviewed the group’s approoch to external pressures
including supply chain and freight cost risks

* Reviewed progress against the group’s sustumobxhty

targets

e Received updates on the strotegic technolegy roadmap

» Reviewed progress of key technology projects linked to
execution of the strategy.

Governance and risk

o Approved new delegation of authorities and boord
reserved matters schedute management

» Reviewed the odequacy of group processes in relation to
whistleblowing, anti-bribery and corruption, ond diversity
ond inclusion

* Reviewed principal risks and mitigotion planning

o Reviewed the risk and control! environment

« Reviewed the effectiveness of the externol auditor
approved the interim report,

Pecple and culture

+ Board succession plonning, appointment of new Chief
Finance Officer

o Reviewed and approved solary and incentives for the
board ond senior managers

o Received updates from the remuneration committee on
group-wide remuneration arrangements

= Reviewed arrangements for workforce engogement

.e Monitored company culture and received updates from

HR on employee survey results, including the bespoke
ways of working survey.

Financial performance

o Reviewed and approved the holf year results

# Reviewed and approved the onnual budget

e Reviewed going concern and viability status

e Reviewed liquidity arrangements and the group’s
fincncing arrangements

e Approved ond appointed on auditor

+ Reviewed ond approved restructuring of the group

e Received regular updates from the CFO on finoncial
performance ogoinst budget.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Summary of Kev Board Activities and
Work Undertaken During the Year

Key activities in focus

Qur people

Since IPQ, Serapbine has sought to strengthen its internal
expertise ond senior management team through o series of
key hires, including:

e Chief Financiol Officer

¢ Chief Operating Officer

e General Counsel and Company Secretory

» Troding Director

» Commercial Finance Director

» Head of Logistics

# Product Development and Sourcing Director

e Head of Creative Operations

¢ Head of Merchandising

Serophine truly volues its incredible people ond the skills
that they bring. This financiol year we hove taken steps 1o
strengthen our Human Resources policies and procedures
1o ensure that we are gttracting industry-leading tolent
ond expertise, as well as providing the right support and
development opportunities 1o our staff. We ore pleased

to have introduced new benefits ond incentive schemes
across the company 1o ensure we are a truly competitive
and rewarding place to work. In particular, we gre proud 1o
hove introduced o best in class porental leave policy which
recognises the significant contribution our working parents
make 1o the business.

Culture and values

At Serophine we ore proud of our culture ond we are
committed to maintaining o diverse and inclusive
workplace for our employees.

Our recent focus has been on defining and reinforcing our
core values ond ensuwring that they are reflected in our
behoviours and working practices, including our recruitment
processes, our people ond supplier management ond cur
ESG strategy.

The boord are responsible for ensuring a healthy ond

supportive culture within the group. We menitor this

through direct employee engogement octivities ond

discussions with the executive directors, and other

members of manogement, We osses and monitor this

in the following ways:

e Dedicating time ot board meetings, to hold discussions
on culture ond employee/workforce motters,

» Monitoring the levels end noture of whistiebiowing
reports and grievance and disciplinory hearings

e Monitoring employee turnover

e Engoging with employees directly during site visits

» Reviewing the group's key policies aond initiatives.

As board members we also strive, through our own
behaviours, to set the tone from the top by conducting
ourselves appropriotely and in line with the group’s volues.
The octions taken by the executive team in response to the
pandemic demonstrated the strength of the culture and ‘of
doing the right thing’ thot permeates the group.

Supply chain ond logistics

As a boord, we have focused on addressing the significant
supply chain disruption throughout FY22 coused by the
Covid-19 pandemic, along with odditionol factors such as
the blockoge of the Suez Canal in March 2021 and foctery
closures across China. This supply choin disruption resulted
in longer and less predictable lead times for our customers.
As o board, we were ocutely aware of the potential for such
disrupticn to hove a moterial adverse impoct on not only
reputation and brand image, but our finoncial performance
and prospects. A key focus for the second holf of FY22

has been on improving our customer experience, primarily
through the reduction in product lead times, supported

by the exponsion of our warehouse footprint. We hove
identified the need to strengthen our logistics capabilities
and as such we supparted the recruitment of o Head of
Logistics role and o 3PL partner with WMS migration to
improve overall operational efficiencies.

For more inforrmation on Seraphine’s response to the
challenges of the global pandemic and supply chain crises
plecse refer 1o pages 23-23 and 62-63 of this report.

IT and systems

In addition to reshoping the IT team to bring in specialised
skills to support planned initiotives, the focus has been

on the renewing the technology landscope to ensure that
it supports further growth. We have also supported the
introduction of marketploce technology to facilitate digital
portnerships.

Financial monagement

Since IPO there has been o renewed focus on our finoncial
management processes including refreshing and prioritising
weekly cash flow, as well os ensuring the alignment
between praduction, merchondising and finance on futwre
stock planning.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Summary of Key Board Activities and
Work Undertaken During the Year

Disclosure Committee

A standing committee of the boord, which meets on on od
hoc bosis as and when required. Responsible for timely ond
accurote disclosure of information as required to meet the
group’s legol and regulatory obligotions. The committee
also ensures that the company maintning insider lists, being
lists of those of its personnel and advisers with access to
inside information concerning the company, os required
under Article 19 of Regulation {EU 596/204 (the "Market
Abuse Regulotion™).

The Disclosure Committee is appointed by the board and
consists of ot least three members. The current members
of the committee are David Willioms (Chair), Sharon Flood,
Bill Ronald ond Sarah Highfield.

The committee met three times during the period ended
3 April 2022 to discuss matters under its remit.

Sharon Flood
Non-Executive Chair
3 July 2022
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Nomination Committee Report

Role of the committee and key responsibilities

To reqularly review the structure, size ond composition
of the boord (including the balance of skills, knowledge,
experience ond diversity} and proposing chonges where
necessary.

To review the group's approoch to succession planning for
directors and senior executives, including ensuring plans
are in ploce for an orderly succession and overseeing the
development of a diverse pipeline for succession.

Keeping under review the leadership needs of the business
to ensure Sergphine continues to compete effectively in the
market.

Making recommendations 10 the board for the
appeintment of new directors and overseeing the
recruitment process (mindful of the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience ond diversity on the board).

Reviewing the group's arrengements and objectives
regarding equality, diversity ond inctusion,

Coordincting the board evaluation process, reviewing
the results in conjunction with the Chair ond making any
necessary recommendotions 1o the board.

Reviewing the performence of non-executive directors
annuolly.

Key areas of focus during the yeor
The recruitrnent and oppointment of o new CFO.

We reviewed succession pianning arrangements for the
executive directors and senior manogers including the
strengthening of the Executive team with the promotion of
our existing ClO to COO and the recruitrment of o Trading
Director who joined the business early in Q1 FY23,

We reviewed directors’ time commitments and
independence ond made recommendations to the boord
regarding any new external cormmitments for directors.

We reviewed the group’s approoch to diversity at board and
senior manager level which is ot the heaort of our business.

We coordingted an inforrmal board evoluation review and
made plans tor a formal internal board evaluation on
cormpletion of the anniversory of our initial public offering.

We considered and mode a recommendation te the board
on the retirement and election of directors ot the 2022
Annual General Meeting.

Statement
Deor Shareholder, | am pleased to present the first report of
Seraphine’s Nominotion Committee {the ‘committee’).

Here, we set out an overview of the committee’s role and
the activities it has undertaken during the period under
review, as well as our key focus orens for 2023,

The cormmittee hos already undertaken a significont
omount of work since the IPO in July 2021, key highlights
include:

e Reviewing the board's composition - we ore confident
that the diversity of skills, experience ond bockgrounds
of our existing board members furnishes the board with
the requisite skills needed to lead the compony inits next
chapter of growth in line with Seraphine’s strotegy.

e Leading the process for the recruitment for o new CFO,
Lee Williarms, who joined the boord in Morch 2022.

» Supporting the CEO in strengthening the teadership
teomn with o number of key leadership appointments
throughout the business. This included the promotion of
Fran Pillar who joined as Chief Information Officer in the
surnmer of 2021 ond was promoted 1o Chief Operating
Officer in March 2022, and the recruitment of @ new
Trading Directar, Seb Tarleton, who joined us eorly in FY23.
In addition, the nomination committee/board supported
us in reviewing structural plans for the level below where
there has been o significant strengthening through o
number of key commercial, brond, finance and supply
chain appointments.

The committee and the board actively encourage, embrace
ond seek cognitive diversity, ond recognise that good
decision-meking is grounded in the ability for leaders to
harness their individual perspectives and chollenge one
another when necessary. As such, the committee will
continue to keep the camposition of the board under review
ond will make further recommendations as necessary 1o
ensure the bocrd hos the oppropriote and diverse range of
skills, background, experience and ottributes to achieve the
group’s strategic objectives. .

Locking ohead to FY23, committee members remain
mindful of, and committed to, their responsibilities under
the Code, particularly those in relation to diversity, inclusion
and culture, which wilt form on important part of the
committee’s activity ond focus over the next year. For
further information on the board’s Diversity Policy please
see poge 63 of this Report.

Sharon Flood
Nomination Committee Chair
31 July 2022
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Audit Committee Report

Statement

Dear Sharehoider, On behalf of the boord, | am pleased to
present the first report of Seraphine’s Audit Committee, for
the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022.

This report documents the committee's roles and activities
taken to dote since its IPO in July 2021 ond details
responsibilities to ensure complionce with legislation
applicable for o publicly listed compony.

Committee membership and attendance

Sharon Flood 77
Bill Ronald &/7
Saroh Highfield 77

Bertie Aylroyd -

Other than those who are part of the committee, the
extermol auditor PwC gs well as the CEO, CFO, company
secretary and the group accountant are invited to ottend
individuol meetings.

Key responsibilities

The key responsibilities and roles of the committee con be
found within its terms of reference, which are availoble

ot www.seraphinegroupple.com and were last updated

in July 2021. The committee focuses on ensuring the
integrity of the financial reporting ond audit processes
and the maintenonce of sound internal control and risk
manogement systems in order to safequard shareholder
interests.

In particular, it focuses on monitoring ond/or reviewing:

s The integrity of finoncial ond narrotive reporting,
ossessing reasonableness of disclosed group accounting
policies

e The viability and going concern statements

¢ Serophine’s systems of risk management and internal
control, ensuring review of the group’s overoll risk
appetite, tolerance and strategy

s The activities and effectiveness of the internal audit
function

® The effectiveness of whistleblowing arrongements

s The effectiveness of the external cudit process and the
appropriateness of the relationship with the external
auditor.

Key areas of focus during the year

As port of the IPO process, we reviewed our existing systemn
of internal controls and risk management running through
each department’s controls ond reviewing system controls.
It was confirmed that the group hod @ robust internal
control and risk management fromework, but thot there
were some areas thot could be strengthened further.

Following this, the board of directors commitied to o
scheduled timetable of further improvements in relation w0
the company’s financiol position and prospects procedures,
referred to as "post-IPO FPPP actions’. The committee has
token an active role in reviewing the company's progress
against these oction items, ond | am pleased to report thot
we are moking excellent progress, with the farmalisation

of a number of policy documents across key business oreos
and the delivery of o business risk framework. The past-IPO
FPPP actions ore now substantively complete, with o small
number of actions still to be completed.

The recruitment of a new CFO with o listed foshion
background will further support us in our journey towards
having improved and stronger business controls os well
os the strengthening of financiol reporting reflecting the
global noture of our business.

Given the size of the business, the board tock the decision
to recruit RSM for internal audit services. Our intention

is 10 implernent und solidify controls so thot the risks of
errars are aliminated os far os possible, with the intertion
of developing o business control framework that con be
utilised os tha company grows.

Whilst this audit and risk committee repart includes some
of the matters identified during the period, this should

be read in conjunction with the financial statements,
specifically the ouditor’s report on page 128.

The group’s risk manaogement review can be referenced in
the Principle Risks and Uncertointies section.

Since the 1PO in July 2021, the audit committee hos met
seven times within FY22 ond hos also met twice since the
end of the financial year. For FY23, the audit committee is
meeting quarterly, with specific alignment to the timings
of interim end onnual finoncial stotements,

Pre year end, the committee hos focused on:

» The engogement of o new auditor

o The post-IPO restructure

The progress of the FPPP octions

a The selection of ¢ third party 1o cover internal cudit
s An an-going review of controls.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Audit Comumittee Report

Post year end, the committee hud two additionol meetings,

which focused on:

o The final review ond opprovol of the annuol report,
1o ensure the statements are fair, balonced ond
understandable

o A review of the approach taken to assess judgmental
items such as asset impairments, returns provisions and
nhsolete stock provigions

s Areview of all iterns clossified as adjusting within the
P&L, to ensure the cecounts reflect ond portray o true
reflection of the company’s position ond performance
for the year

» Significant inancial reporting issues, judgrments ond
estimotion uncertainty,

To assess the integrity of Seraphine’s finoncial reports, an
exercise to understand oli key significant judgment areas
included were performed. Key technical areas revolved
around the tronsition to IFRS 16 and accounting treatments
finked to IPO-related matters.

Any other sactions that were material in nature were
olso discussed ond reviewed with our external auditor
threughout the audit process. Key topic areas discussed
are set out below:

Revenue recagnition

Revenue is recognised when the contrel of goods is
tronsferred to the customer. Revenue from own stores

is recognised ot the point of sale when the goods have
been provided, while revenue fram website and wholesale
octivities is recognised on the dote thot the goods hove
been delivered.

An element of estimation and judgment is required for the
calculotion of returns provision under IFRS 15 by onalysing
historic trends.

Bosed on discussions held with management and the
externol auditors, the committee have reviewed the
chollenges and assumptions included to determine these
estimotes. The committee subsequently concluded that
revenue has been appropriately recognised for the 12
months ended 3 April 2022.

IPO-related accounting

A significant omount of exceptional costs were incurred
during the IPO process. These costs had 10 be reviewed
by the committee on a line-by-line basis to ensure they
were one-off costs in noture, and cortrectly presented and
accounted for. Refer to note 13 for additional information
on PO costs.

In addition 1o this, the company has worked with external
legal ond accounting advisers 1o provide a restructuring
steps plan, post the IPO process. The committee hos
reviewed the minutes ond steps plan report, which reflects
alt adjustments that were added to Serophine’s occounts.
Akey focus went towards the reserves bakance that were
to be recognised within eoch entity and the valuation of
each investment. The committee subsequently concluded
that the recrgcnisation hos been correctly recagnised ond
presented within the finoncial staternents, for the yeor
ended 3 April 2022. Refer to note 5 and & for additional
information on the campony’s recrganisation.

{FRS 16 and asset impairment

There have been renegotiotions in lease controctual terms
with several stores and, as o result, we have reviewed our
estimation over-expected future soles to re-run our IFRS
16 madels and colculate net present volue of all future
liobilities, These judgments were opplied consistently 1o
both the pre-IFRS 16 results and post-IFRS 16 numbers.

During the year, because of renegotioted store leose
terms, the group has olso recognised impairment reversals.
To determine whether this is acceptable ot year end, ©
judgrnent over forecasting future cash flow projections
took place.

Having reviewed these management papers, the
committee have challenged the forecasted sales ond
assumptions involved and concluded that these judgments
are reasonable ond appropriate at year end.
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Audit Committee Report

Going concern and viabiiity

The committee hove performed o detailed analysis of

the group’s projected cash flows, which covers the period
to March 2025. A review has token ploce to ensure cosh
levels were maintained at such a level thot ne limits were
breached, ond asset and reserve levels will remain sufficient
throughout the next three years, which is what we consider
to be the scope of our viobility statement.

This analysis took ploce at o board level by reviewing

the group's finoncial position, budget dato and cash
projections. These hove olsc been perfermed for various
scenarios, dependent on the company’s principal risks, to
assess how much revenue or profit would need to fall 1o
brecch convenance.

The viobility of the business wos assessed by the
committee, bosed on the heodroom levels thot remained.
Subsequently, the committee reported to the board thot
it believed the going concern assumptions remained
appropriate.

Brand impairment

An onnudl review takes place on goodwill and brand
valuations, to ossess whether an impairment is required.

An updated colculation for FY22 was performed to assess
this. This includes ossumptions around the company’s cash
flows, inclusion of current market aneolysis and review of any
planned or announced stores closures.

The committee have reviewed and challenged the
assumptions noted within the impoirment model and have
concluded that although there is confidence in the long-
term growth opportunities, the recent morgin dilution
experience os well os the guidance to increose the discount
rate to reflect the relative size of the business hos led to an
impoirment of intongibles being necessoary. This impoirment
is for £27.86m.

Fair, balanced and understandable

From a regulations perspective it is important that the
annual report and financial stotements, are fair, belonced
and understandable. It should have the necessary
information for shareholders to assess the position,
performonce, husiness model and strategy of the group,
The board has sought odvice from the cammittes to
provide ossurance that the statements are, indeed, foir,
bolanced and understandable.

Throughout the process of preporing the annual reports,
the committee had occess to live versions of the document,
with reviews toking place ot the key stages of production.

Feedbock and regular updates were provided to the
auditors, to circulate and gather sufficient data/
information for the necessory updates to toke ploce. Any
queries ground the onnual repoert disclosures were discussed
further with the auditors, ensuring assurance was gained
over the report reflecting a balonced view,

Other rasponsibilities of the compmittee includes checking
the Aow of information frorn front half to back half,
ensuring there was a link between the numbers being
presented and the detoiled onelysis at the front end.

As o result of these review processes, the committee ond
the boord concluded thot they are satisfied that this
annual repart is fair, balanced and understandoble.
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ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022

97

sunydniag yneqy

yroday 91B2jons

ssauisng ajqieuedsay o Buibpuop

FIUDWIBAOG INQ

syinsay JND



Audit Committee Report

Appointment of external auditors

The committee ore invalved with mointaining the
relotionship with the external suditors, on behalf of the
board. In December 2021, PwC were appointed os the
auditor of Seraphine Group plc. The decision to resign RSM
as our guditors and appoint PwC was token os a resutt of
the IPO process, where the company believed an auditor
from the ‘big four’ accounting firms should be appointed,
providing support ond assuronce aver first time reporting
as ¢ listed entity,

PwC have beer invoived in all gudit committee meetings
since their oppointment, so that there is o direct link
between whot monogement intend to report in terms of
controls ond disclosure requirement, and o link with what
the external ouditors deem to be findings 1o the company.
The intention is ta continue Maintaining this relotionship
through the year, such thot the relevant ossurances con be
provided ot interim and year end.

Safeguarding the auditor’s independence

The committee has token the relevant precoutions to
ensure the externcl auditors remain independent to the
company and that engogement sotisfies all relevant ethical
standards. Written confirmation has been received from
PwC to confirm their independence ond any non-cudit
services will require board dpprovol.

The group hos o policy relating 1o the provision on roni-
oudit services that is aligned with the UK version of the EU
Regulotion and Statutory Audit Directive; this clorifies the
type of work that is allowable for the external auditors to
coiry out.

As Seraphine Group plc is now o public interest entity,
the compony must comply with FRC "whitelist’ services,
meaning PwC must cap the level of non-audit fees ot
70% of 1otol oudit fees.

Totol fees paid to PwC include £250,000 of audit services
ond £203,920 of non-oudit services; non-oudit services
represent 81.6% of the oudit fee. Refer to note 14 for a
detailed breakdown of oudit fees. Non-audit services
provided related to other accounting services ~ assistance
with the preporation of financial statements for Kensington
Tepco Limited and its reloted entities for the period ended
31 March 2021 and other assurance services - support

from PwC on o range of ESG topics in prepearation for the
IPQ. The committee concluded that the provision of such
services was appropriate, given thot it hod correlgtions thot
linked with the cudit process and there wos o reason to
approach them given their expertise.

For the finonciol yeor ended March 2023, the committee
haos proposed 1o the board thot PwC are reappointed as
external ouditors and shareholder approval is to be sought
ot the next AGM in September 2022.

Internal oudit and risk management framewaork
Currently the group does not have an internol oudit
function. This will be reviewed on o regular basis as the
group evolves.

Given the size of the group ot present, a tendering process
has been carried out to gppeint an internal cudit function.
This internal audit function will be utilised to perform audits
on our significant risk areas and where the committee
deem further contenls need to be implemented,

Despite not hoving an internal function, the group hove
still worked to implement o risk management and control
framewerk. The group maintoins a corporote risk register,
which is reviewed and approved by the committee on a
regular basis. During the oudit committee in Februory 2022,
a detailed review of oll existing controls took place and the
following committee meeting consisted of an onalysis of
the risk register, updoting 1o reflect principal ond emerging
risks for the group.
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A key focus will be on risks around potential dato protection
requirements, emerging disruptions within the supply choin
and climate change ¢isks affecting business operations.

This risk register has been designed in g way that control
processes con be established for each risk and subsequently
monitored. The appointment of an external internal oudit
function will ossist with improving the robustness of our risk
managament framework and our controls functions.

The board have identified the need for a risk committee,
which will fall within the cudit committee responsibilities.

The board has delegated responsibility of the progress of
identifying, evolucting and managing risks 10 mancgement
-further details regarding the risk management process
con be reod within poges 74-77. We also have o postPO
FPPP action list, which is monitored to ensure actions are
being taken when they are required.

For the yeor ended 3 April 2022, the board concluded that
they were sotisfied with the risk moenagement process ond
noted the need 1o develop further processes 1o ensure we
are monitering our internal control environment. They were
satisfied with the process around identifying and ranking
risks, 1o then monitoring ond reporting on the impacts of
these on the business.

Compliance with anti-corruption and whistleblowing
palicies

All policies around anti-corruption and whistleblowing have
been updated during the year both by our HR veam and by
an external service provider.

The anti-bribery policy exists to set out the responsibilities
of Seraphine and those who work for the company with
regards to observing and upholding a zero-tolerance
position on bribery and corruption. The company expects
all staff to maintain high standards and to report any
wrongdoing that falls short of those standards. The
committee is responsible for the review of compony’s
systems around preventing any corrupt octivities and are
committed to ensuring everyone acts professionally, fairly
ond with integrity in all business dealings.

Audit Committee Report

Included within the compony’s employee hondbock ore
clear guidelines oround its Anti-Bribery ond Corfuption
Pelicy. By having it within the handbook, every employee
hos access to the policy and are made oware of it during
their training sessions ot recruitment stage. Seraphine
will constantly uphold ofl laws relating to anti-bribery ond
eorruption in all the jurisdictions in which the company
operctes.

The company is bound by the lows of the UK, including the
Bribery Act 2010 and must ensure full compliance with the
regulations.

With regards to whistleblowing, Serophine aims to conduct
its business with honesty and integrity; we believe thot

the compony hos o duty to oct oppropriotely to identify
and remedy any malpractice within or affecting the
organisation.

The board has delegated oversight of the group's
whistleblowing policies and procedures to the committee,
the board also routinely reviews the arrangements for
raising concerns in confidence ond reports orising from
them. The whistleblowing policy allows employees, suppliers
and any other third party to raise concerns about any form
of impraper behaviour on a confidential bosis - all reports
are made to their line manager and then censolidated
bock ot the oudit committee meetings. Where it is not
appropricte to report to o line manoger, these are roised
with the Generai Counsel and Compony Secretory.

During the year, no issues were reported.

Sarah Highfield
Audit Committee Choir
31 July 2022
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Remuneration Report

Statement from the Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Statement

Dear Shareholder,| om pleased to present Seraphine's first
Directors’ Remunerotion Report since our admission 1o the
London Stock Exchange on 16 July 2021, | was appointed to
the board and os Cheir of the Remuneration Committee
on 30 June 2021 and this report covers the period from
Incorporation to 3 April 2022,

The Directors’ Remunerotion Report comprises the
following three sections:

« This Annual Stotement where | summarise the work of
the committee and our approach 1o executive directors’
remunergtion

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy which builds on the
work undertaken prior to Admission and provides the
fromework under which directors will be paid over the
next three yeors

The Annual Report on Remuneration which explains

in more detail how directors have been poid since
Admission, and how we intend to pay directors in FY23
under the new Palicy.

At the compoany's first AGM in September 2022, the
Directors’ Rernuneration Policy will be submitted to
a binding shoreholder vote and the remainder of the
temyneration report will be subject to an advisory
shareholder vote.

Remuneration committee compaosition

The remuneration committee wos established shortly
prior to Admission. | am joined on the committee by
fellow independent non-executive directors, Sharon Flood
and Sarah Highfield. | om pleosed to confirm thot the
committee has been constructed to comply with the
recommendations of the UK Corporote Governance Code
in relation to independence, composition ond experience.
The committee’s terms of referance can be found on the
company’s corporate website.

Review of remuneration

Seraphine listed on the London Stock Exchange in July 2021
and in preparation for the IPO, the business undertook a
thorough review of its poy arrangements and mode certain
changes to ensure thot, going forward, pay is aligned with
market expectotions expected of a company on the Main
Market, thot good governonce fectures apply and that
there is on oppropriate bolance between fixed and voriable
pay.

This included the introduction of a market standard annualt
bonus scheme {with deferral) and awards of shares under
a Long-term Incentive Plan with both schemas designed to
incentivise sustainable growth over the medium- to long-
term.

Historically, salaries poid by the company hove been set
below market levels ond the remuneration committee
decided to continue 10 retain o conservotive base salary
positioning (relative 10 companies of a broadly similar size
1o Seraphine’s market volue at IPQ) with the totol package
weighted towards greater variable, performaonce-related

pay.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

As mentioned cbove the review of Seraphine’s pay policy
was undertaken based on a company of Seraphineg's size ot
Admission. The Policy is set out on pages 103-112 and the
key features of the Policy are summarised below.

Base salaries

Bose solaries are normally reviewed annuolly ot the stort
of the financiol year and cre set toking into occount the
director’s role, competence, performonce ond experience.

Pension

Pension contribution rates for executive directors were
reduced from Admission 1o olign with the workforce
contribution rate of 3% of salary.

Annual bonus

Executive directors have the opporiunity to earn 125% of
their base salary if stretching targets are achieved. One-
quarter of any bonus earned will be deferred in shares for o
period of three years under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC )
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Remuneration Report

Statement from the Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Long-term incentives

Executive directors and certain senior executives will
porticipate in the Long-term Incentive Plon, under which
the first oward of performance shares were gronted ot
Admission. A two-year post vesting helding period applies
for executive directors. The moximum grant level under the
PSP is 150% of salary although the award in FY23 will be
maode at a significantly reduced leve! - see below.

Governance feotures

In addition to bonus deferral and pension olignment, robust
malus and clowback provisions opply to the incentive
schemes, LTIP awerds granted to executive directors will
have & two-year hoiding period and executive directors

are subject 1o shareholding guidelines {(during ond post-
employment}.

FY22 performance and pay cutcomes

Our first year os a listed compony has been challenging
in many ways. Against @ backdrop of Covid, the war in
the Ukraine aond unprecedented supply chain disruptions,
Seraphine foced challenges in navigoting supply chain
delays ond additionol costs, on increase in costs ossocigted
with cross border transactions, shifting potterns in
cansumer demand and substantial inflotion in customer
ocquisition costs, all of which impacted profitability.
Seraphine was alse impacted by unforeseen duty and
returns costs as we entered new markets and channels.

However, Seraphine has continued to follow its purpose
to be "with murns for the journey”, providing foshicnable,
affordable, sustainoble ond innevative cothing and
products for expectant women and parents. There has
been significant focus on strengthening our internol
expertise and systems and in spite of the challenges,
Seraphine delivered its highest ever gross sales numbers.
There has been very encouraging internationol growth,
with new websites launched in Conode, Switzeriond, and
the Netherlands, and continued high growth from cur
successful US business.

Reflecting the challenges of this financial year, the odjusted
EBITDA performance targets were not achieved and no
bonus become payable.

There was no LTIP capable of vesting based on performance
in FY22. The first LTIP awords were mode at Admission

ond are bosed on EPS targets. The normal vesting

dote for these owords is July 2024 and will be based

on perfarmonce for FY24. As such, there will be no LTIP
copable of vesting in FY23.

Change of chief financial officer

John Bailey stepped off the boord and Lee Williams joined
the board as CFO on 28 February 2022, Lee's bose solary
has been set at £240,000. Lee forfeited o bonus from his
previcus employer which wos due to be paid in March 2022
and as part of the terms of his recruitment, the boord
agreed to compensate Lee for the remuneration forfeited.
Further details of Lee’s buyout oward are set out inthe
Annucl Report on Remuneration,

John Bailey wos treated os o good leaver under the
company’s incentive schemes atthough no bonus wos
poyoble in respect of FY22 and his LTIP award will be
pro rated and tested for performance at the normal
vesting dote.

Operotion of the Policy in FY23

Subject to approvel of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
at the Septernber 2022 Annuc! General Meeting, the
committee intends to operate the Policy as foliows for the
current financial year.

Fixed pay

There will be no change 1o fixed poy orrangements for the

CEO or CFO. At the time of listing, it wos recognised that

Chelsey Qliver's (Creotive & Brand Directer) base salary

at £160,000 was significantly below market and did not

reflect oppropriatety her contribution ond importance to

our business ond therefore should be reviewed in 2022,

In crdinary circumstances, following weak corporate

performonce, the committee would not propose any

increases 1o senior executive pay pockoges. However, in

Chelsey Oliver's cose, the committee has identified an

anomaoly ond feels strongly that her base salory should be

addressed from April 2022 for the following reasons:

o Chelsey Oliver joined the group in October 2011 as Senior
Designer, two years later she was promoted te Creative
Director and in 2017 her remit was expanded to include
ownership of marketing and brand. As her role has
expanded, her pay hos not kept up with her increased
responsibilities.

e Upon PO, Chelsey was promoted to the main boord
reflecting her importance to the business and Chelsey’s
salary positioning at the time did not reflect her
promaotion.

» Chelsey is the most senior fernale employee ot Seraphine
and as a diverse employer with B1% female employees
in the group, it is important thot her pay is positioned
appropriately internaily, reflecting her relative importance
1o the business ogoinst other executive directars and
executive committee members,

o Chelsey is key 1o the business’ turnaround and future
success and it is important that she is retained.
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Remuneration Report

Stotement from the Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Annual bonus

A bonus apportunity of 125% of salary will apply. The
committee had considered introducing other meosures
including ESG but given the strong focus on profit recovery,
the FY23 annual benus will be based on a sliding scole of
EBITDA torgets.

Long-term incentives

The IPO Prospectus included o maximurn LTIP policy gront
of 150% of salary and this reflected the committee’s
desire to weight the overali package towards share bosed
incentive pay over fixed pay. Granting ot this level is

not feasible or oppropriate given the foll in share price
since listing and therefore LTIP awards will be gronted to
executive directors at 25% of the origincl policy level i.e.
37.5% of salary. Awards will vest subject to an EPS measure
ond the targets will be disclosed in the RNS at the time of
moking the award.

Concluding remarks

Consideroble work was undertaken prior to ond directly
after the IPO to ensure the senior executive remuneration
arrangements are aligned with good gractice in the UK
whilst also taking into account the various jurisdictions
within which we opercte ond our employees are bosed.
The performance of the business since listing has resulted
in no performance reloted pay in respect of FY22 ond a
significantly reduced LTIP aword for FY23. The committee
is oware that the policy was put tegether based on o
different set of size assumptions at the time of Admission
ond will ensure that the policy is implemented in a prudent
manner toking into account the views of shareholders ond
wider stakeholders.

We look forward ta engaging with shareholders and other
stokeholders on an ongoing basis. 1 would welcome any
feedback or comments on the Directors’ Remuneration
Report more generally.

Bill Ronald
Choir of the Remunerotion Committee
31 July 2022
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Remuneration policy for directors

Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy is submitted for opproval ot the 2022 Annuol General Meeting, ond subject to
shareholder approval will take binding effect from the close of thot meeting. The remuneration committee intends that the

new Policy will operate for three years.

In anticipation of Admission, the company undertook a review of the group’s remuneration policy far senior employees,
including the executive directors, to ensure thot it is oppropricte for the listed compnny environment. In undertoking this
review, the remuneration committee sought independent, specialist advice. This Policy wos reviewed and approved by the
remuneration committee and is consistent with the disclosures set out in the IPO Prospectus.

Objectives of the policy

The principal objectives of the policy, which shall apply from Admission, ore 1o attract, retain and motivate the executive
directors ond senior employees, incorporating incentives that align with and support the group’s business strategy os it
evolves, and which clign executives to the creation of long-term shareholder value. To support the company's ambsitions
1o align poy with performance, a significant proportion of potential total remuneration will be delivered in awards over

ordinary shores.

The remuneration committee will oversee the implementation of the company's remunergtion pelicy ondg, in particular,
will seek 10 ensure that the executive directors ore properly rewarded for the group’s performance and the delivery of the

group’s strategy.

The proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy, effective post-shareholder approval from the date of the 2022 AGM, hos been
designed to meet the following objectives:

Clarity

The palicy is designed to be simple ond
support long-term, sustoincble
pertormonce.

The Policy is in line with standord UK tisted
company proctice and is we'l understood
by perticipants and shoreholders olike .

The Policy tlearly sets out the iimits in
terms of quantum, the performonce
meostires which con be used ond
discretions which could be applied if
oppropriote.

Predictability

The Policy contains oppropriote caps in
place for each component of pay.

The potentiol reward outcomes are eosily
quontifioble and ore set out in the
illustrotions provided in the Polity.

Performance con be reviewed ot regulor
intervgls to ensure there are no surprises in
outcomes ot the enc of the performonce
period. :

Simplicity
Cur arrangements include o morket

standard annual bonus ond a single long-
term incentive plan.

The details of each are cleorly set out in
our Policy.

There are no complex or artificial structures
required to deliver the Policy.

Proportionality

Incentive outcomes are contingent on
successfully meeting stretching
performance targets which ore aligned to
the delivery of the company’s strategy.

Pertormance will be assessed on @ brood
basis, including o combinction of inancial
and aperotional metrics. The use of
different measures ensures there is no
undue focus on a single rmetric which could
ba ot the detriment of other stakehalders.

The committee retains discretion to
override formulgic ourturns.

Risk

Appropriote limits ore set out in the Policy
ond within the respective plon rules.

The committee retoins discretion tn
override tormulaic outturns.

When considering performonce measures
and target renges, the committee will take
account of the csseciated fisks and ligise
with the Audit ond Risk Committees os
NEecessory.

The long-term noture of o lorge propoition
of pay (through onnucl bonus deterrol,
post-vesting holding periods ond post-
cessotion shareholding requirements)
encourages o long-term, sustainable
mindset.

Clowback and molus provisians ore in
plece across all incentive plons.

Alignment to culture

The Policy encouroges high performaonce
delivery which is cligned to the culture
within the business. However, this
performonce focus is always cansidered
within an acceptoble risc profile.

Overall poy levels are modest with bose
solaries below-markes reflecting the pre-
profit state of the compony’s evolution.

The meosures used in the voriable incentive
plans reflect the KPls of the business.
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

Remuneration policy for executive directors
The following table summarises eoch element of the remuneration policy for the executive directors, exploining how each

element operotes and links to the corporate strotegy.

o ——— ———

Furpose ond link to strotegy

Operation

Basic salary

To provide competitive fixed
remunerotion.

To attroct and retain
executive directors of superior
calibre in order to deliver
long-term business success.

Recognise knowledge, skilis
enc experience as well 0g
reflect the scope ond size of
the role

Pension

To provide cost-effective
retirement benefits

Benefits

Ta provide competitive, cost-
effective benefits which help
10 rechiit ond retoin executive
directors.

All employee schemes
encowroge wider share
ownership across ait
employees, including the
executive directors.

Normally reviewed onnuatly ot the
stort of the fincnciol yeor with
increcses typically effective from
Aaril. An out of cycle review moy be
conducted if the committee
determines it is oppropriote.

Individual solory odjustments take
into occount each executive
director’s role, competence,
performance ond experience.
Significant adjustments ore
infrequent and normaolly resesved
tor materiol chonges in role, o
significont increose in the size/
complexity of the group, or where
on individual has been appointed
on o low solary with on intention to
bring them to morket lavels over
time ond subject to performonce.

The executive directors may
participate in the tompoany's
pension scheme or receive a cosh
ollowance in fieu if HMRC caps
apply.

Pension contributions and
ollowonces are normatly poid
monthly ond are not included in
bonus colculstions.

Benefits may include various
insuronces such os life, disability,
medical. cor cllpwonce ond other
market stondard benefits.
Executives will be eligible for ony
other benefits which are introduced
for the wider workforce on braadly
similar terms,

Other benefits, such as relocation
expensas or expatiiate
orrongements may be provided as
nNecessory.

Reasonoble business-relcted
expenses {including any tox
thereon) will be reimbursed.

Executive directors will be eligible to
porticipote in the compony’s
HMRC-approved Shoresave scheme
or any other oll-amployee share
pian operated by the compony, on
the same terms as other eligible
employees.

o . Moximum potantial value

Performonce targets

There is no prescribed maxirmum
of Moximum increase.

The normal opproach will be to
limit increases to the cveroge
levet Geross the wider workforce,
though increases obove this
levei moy be cworded subject
to committee discretiaon to take
cccaunt of certoin
circumstonces, such os those
stoted under ‘Operation’.

On recruitment or promotion,
the committee will consider
previous femunerction ond poy
levels for comparable
companies (for exomple,
companies of a similar size and
complexity, industry sector or
locetion], when setting soiary
levels. This moy lead to solory
being set ot ¢ lower or higher
lavel than for the previous
incumbent,

The company pension
contributions to detined
contribution retirement
orrongements or cash
ollowences ore copped ot those
ot the wider workforce
{currently 3% of quolifying base
solory).

This opplies to current and any
future exeécutive directors.

As it is nat possible to colculote
in advance the cost of il
benetits, a moximum is not pre-
cetermined.

The maxzirum levet of
participotion in oll-employee
share plans is subject to the
limits imposed by the relevont
tox outhority from time to time.

Individus! performonce, as
well as the performonce of
the group is taken into
consideration os part of the
ocnnual review process

Not opplicoble

Not opplicoble
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Purposeand link tostrategy

Annual bonus

The Annuel Bonus Plon
rewards the ochievemnent of
onnual finonciol ond business
targets aligned with the
group's KPls,

Moximum bonus only payable
for ochieving demanding
torgets.

Deferred element encourages
jong-term shareholdings ond
discouroges excessive risk
taking.

. Ogperation

Remuneration Report

Remunearation Palicy

Bonus is posed on performonce in
the refevant finoncial yeor. Any
poyment is discretionory ond will be
subject to the achirvament of
stretching performance torgets,

At the end of the performonce
period the committee ossesses the
extent to which the performonce
toigets hove been achieved and
approves the finol outcome.,

Bonus is normally paid in cash,
excapt 25% ot eny bonus which is
deferred into shares for three yeors
under the company's Deterred
Share Bonus Plen (DBSP). Dividend
equivalents moy apply to the extent
such deferred owards vest.

Bonuses ore not contractuol, they
are poycoble ot the discretion of the
remune;ation committee and are
not eligible tor incdusion in the
coleulotion of pension
arfgngements.

Malus ond clowbotck provisions
opply s set out below.

. Maximum patenticivalue

The onauo) bonus policy
maxirmum is 125% of bose
solary. Typicolly, no more than
half the bonus opperiunity will
be poyoble for on-target
performance ond the threshold
onnuol borus opportunity is up
ta 25% of the moximum.

Pertormance targets

The committes will determine
the relevant measures ond
targets eoch yeor toking into
occount the key strotegic
objectives ond financial
priorities ot thot time.

Performonce measures may
include financicl, strotegic,
operotional, ESG, and/or
persono! objectives ond ot
fecst 50% of the bonus wifl be
linked to financial meaosures.

The committee sats targets
that ore chollenging, vet
reclistic in the conteat of the
business environment ot the
time ond by reference to
mternc! business plans and
externol consensus, Torgets
are sat to ensure there is
appropriote level of streteh
ossocioted with achieving the
top end of the songe but
withaut encourcging
inoppropriate risk taking.

As reguited by the UK
Corporote Gevernance Code,
the remunerotion committee
will retain © power to
modesote the jevels of cnnucl
bonus plan outcomes tor ony
year if this is oppropriote in
all of the circumstances,
including considerotion of
Sharehoider and broader
stokeholde: experiance.
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Purpose and kink to strctegy
Long-term incentives

To incentivise ond reward for
the delivery of long-term
performonce and shareholder
value creation.

Ter lign with shareholders’
interestz ond to foster ¢ luiy-
term mindset.

Shareholding guideliﬁes

To otign with shoreholders’
interests and to foster o fong-
term mindset.

Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

Operotion

Awaids of conditionol shores or nil
or nominol cost option awards
under the Long-Term Incentive Plan
{LTIP) which normolly vest niter
three yeors subject to the
ochievernent of perfarmance
targets and continued service,

An odditional two-yeor holding
period applies ofter the end of the
three-yeor vesting period.

Dividend equivalents may acgrue
over the period from grant until the
joter of vesting and the expiry of
any holding period.

Malus and clowbock provisions
opply 0s set out below.

The individuols will be required to
retoin 5Q0% of ail vesting ordinory
shaores from the compony's Share
Plons (net of soles for tox and
National Insurance) until the
requirement is cchieved. The
equivolent net volue ofter stotutory
deductions of unvested ordinory
shores subject to ony owards held
by on executive director to which
only time-bosed vesting or a
holding period opplies will count
towords the shoreholding
requirement,

The sharenolding requirecnent will
continue to apply for o period of
two yeors after ceosing to be o
director, with the obligation being
to retoin the lower of the
shoreholding requirement or those
ordinory shores held towards the
shoreholding requirement at the
dote of termination.

_.Moximum potential value

Executive directors moy receive
an oward of up to 150% of basic
solary per annum,

A 10% in 10 yeors’ dilution fimit
yuwe: ning the issue of new
shares to sotisty cll share
schemes aperoted by the
compony will apply.

Furthermore, a 5% in 10 years'
dilutian limit governing the
issue of new shores to satisfy
the LTIP ond DBSP ond ony
octher executive share plon
adopted by the company will
opply.

The shereholding requirement
far executive directors is 200%
of base solary,

_. Performance 1argets

Performance meosures moy
include, ond are not limited
to, relative TSR, £PS, strategic
measures and ESG-reloted
objectives.

The committee retains
discretion to set alternctive
weightings or perfermonce
measures for awerds over
the lite of the policy.

100% of awords vest for
stretch performonce, up to
25% of on oweard vests for
threshold performance and
no owords vesy for
performance below this.

In line with the UK Carporate
Governance Code, the
remuneration commirtee
reteins discretion uncer the
LTIP to adjust the level of
vesting that would otherwise
result (for exarmple, that
would otherwise resuit by
reference to formuloic
outcomes alone) . Such
discretion would only be vsed
in exceptional circumstonces
and for exomple may include
regard to corporate and
persenal performance.

Nat opplicable,
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

Purpose ond linktostrategy  Operatin . _Moximumpotentialvolys  Perfermancetorgets
Chair and non-executive directors’ fees
To provide o competitive tee Fees oze normally reviewed annually  No prescribed maximum fee or . Not applicable.
10 Ottroct non-executives toking into account fectars such os maoximum fee increcse.
who have the requisite skills the time commitment and . . .
cnd experience 1o overses the  contribution of the role and market Incu:eas.e s will be mf°.r med by
. N . . taking into occount internol
implementation of the levels in companies of comparoble i
campany's strat size and complexit bernchmarks such os the salery
pamy egy s ¥ ingreose for the general
The Choir is paid on all-inclusive fee  workforce and will hove due
for oll board responsibilities. regard to the foctors set out in
the 'Operation’ column of this

Fees for the other non-executive
directors moy include ¢ bose tee
ond cdditianc! fees for turther
responsibilities {for example,
choirship of board committees or
holding the office of Senior
Independent Director).

table.

The compeny repoys any reosoncole
expenses that 0 non-executive
director incurs in carrying out their
duties os o director, including trovel,
hospitolity-refoted ond other
madest benefits ond any tox
liabilities thereon, it oppropricte.

I there is 0 temporary yet moteriol
increase in the time commitments
for non-exascutive directors, the
boord may pay extro fees on o

pro rata bosis 1o recagnise the
additional workioad.

Selection of performance measures and targets

The remuneration committee selects the performonce measure opplying 1o the Annual Bonus Plan (ABP) and LTIP bosed
on the strategic priorities of the group at the time. The meosures ond thelr welghtings may chenge from year to year to
reflect the needs of the business.

Meaosures used may include financial metrics such as profit and operotional, strategic, ESG, personol or shareholder value .
creation. The use of such measures is intended ta ensure performance is assessed on a rounded basis and is oppropriately
aligned to the group's KPls.

The targets for the ABP ond LTIP are set after considering the onnual business plan, external analyst consensus, relevart
economic indicutors and any regulotory changes. The target range is set so that it is oppropriotely challenging, yet realistic
and dees not incentivise undue risk-taking (see pages 109-114).

Details of the measures used for the annucl bonus and long-term incentive schemes ore given in the Annual Repart on
Remuneration.

Flexibility, discretion and judgment retained by the committee in operating the incentive plans

The committee odministers the ABP ond LTIP in line with its rules ond in occordance with HMRC and Listing rules where
relevant. To ensure the efficient operotion of these plans, the committee may apply certoin discretions which include (but
ore not limited to) the following:

» The participants in the plan

e The timing of grants and/or payments under the plan

* The size of gronts ond/or payments (albeit within the limits set outin the policy table for executive directors)

* Any performance measures and targets for the incentive plons for each year

¢ Any use of discretion to amend the outcorne, as appropriate and in line with the policy

Determining leaver status and the oppropriate treotment under the incentive plan

Determining the treatment of awards in the event of o change of control

Determining ony necessary technical adjustrments in certain circurnstances (e.g. corporate restructuring events, variation
of capital and special dividends).

* & @
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Remuncration Report

Remuneration Palicy

The committee has the discretion o vary the performance conditions opplying to outstonding owords in exceptional
circumstonces if an event occurs {e.g. o material acquisition or divestment) which couses the committee to befieve thot
the original candition is no longer appropriote. Any change in performonce conditions will not be moteriolly less chollenging
than the eriginal condition would have been but for the event in question.

Legacy orrangements
The committee will honour any commitments entered into with current executive and non-executive directors prior to
Admission or to internally promoted future executive directors prior 1o their appointment to the board. This includes any

outstonding awords under historic share option plons.

Recoupment {malus and clawback)

Malus ond clowback provisions apply to the company’s incentive schemes. Moius permits the company to reduce the
amount of any unvested award, including awords in holding periods. Clowback permits the compony to reduce the
amount of ony vested award or any future salory or bonus ond/or require the employee to pay bock amounts.

Such provisions may be applied at any time before an LTIP award vests ond for three years after vesting, or at any point
within three years of the grant of on DBSP award or the poyment of a cash bonus in the following circumstonces:

o moterial misstaterment of the company's or group member’s financial results, on error of calculation or assessment
{including on account of inaccurate or misleading information), serfous misconduct, material reputctionc! damage or
corporate foilure.

Statement of consideration of shareholder views

Prior to Admission the views of the major shareholder were considered when determining the Policy. The committee will
consider shareholder feedback received in relation to the AGM each year and guidance from shareholder representative
bodies more generclly.

If the committee considered it appropriate to moke materiat chonges to the Policy, it would be subject to prior consultation
with major shareholders as necessory,

Differences in remuneration policy for executive directors and employees in general

As for the executive directors, general practice ocross the group is te recruit employees at competitive morket levels of
remunerotion, incentives ond benefits to ottract and retoin employees. When considering salary increases for directors,
the committee will take into account salary increases and poy ond employment conditions across the wider workforce.
The pension contribution rate (in percentoge of salary terms) for executive director oppointments wos reduced upon
listing to be equal to thot for the general workforce, Many employees are abkle to eorn annugl boanuses for delivering
exceptional performance, with corporate performance measures aligned to those set for the executive directors. If and
when operated, all employees, including the executive directors, have the opportunity to participate in the tox-cpproved
share incentive plans.

There are some differences in the structure of the Remuneration Policy for the executive directors compared to thot for
other employees within the organisotion, which the committee believes are necessory to reflect the differing levels of
seniority and responsibility. At senior levels, remuneration is increasingly lang-term, and 'at risk’ with an increased emphasis
on performance-reloted pay and share-based remuneration. This ensures the remuneration of the Executives is aligned
with both the long-term performance of the company and the interests of shareholders.
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

Statement of consideration of employment conditions elsewhere in the group

The committee is kept informed of pay ond employment conditions throughout the company. This will include information
on base salory bonding and increases, ennual bonus cutcomes and share usoge across the warkforce. We regulorly conduct
benchmarking exercises thot inform the overall remuneration pockage ot each level of employee seniority, paying due
regard to job roles and seniority.

The input from the director responsible for employee engagement will also be considered as part of the committee’s
deliberations. Findings from regulor employee engogement surveys will also be provided to the committee.

The committee has not, ta date, formally consulted with employees on matters of the company’s Remuneration
Policy. However, the board is looking inta woys it can understand empioyees’ attitudes to pay benefits ond provide the
opportunity to discuss remuneration motters as appropriate over the coming yeor.

Executive directors’ external appointments )
Executive directors may accept on externol appointment as o non-executive director with the prior approval of the board.
Any fees poyoble for such on appointment con be retoined by the executive director.

Recruitment of directors —approach to remuneration
The angoing remuneration package for any new executive director will be set in accordance with the terms of the Policy in
place at the time of oppointment. The principles which will be applied cre set out below:

£

Element otpay___ _ Recrutment paticy__ [

Bose soiory Set on oppeintment ot ¢ level which tokes inte occount the skills ond experience of the individug! ongd the
noture of the role.

The initiaf bose solary moy be set at o tevel below the desired market position to reflect experience.
Thereatter, increoses moy be obove those of the wider workforce to olign the solary with the morket level
in accordance with the individuck's development in the sole,

Benefits Will be in line with those offered to currant executive directors. The committee will hove the discretion ta
pay certoin refocotion expenses os deemed necessory,

Pension Will be in line with the pension provision offered to the wider worktorce.

Annuol bonus Will be operoted in line with the terms of the Policy table. Any bonus tor the year of oppointment will be
pro rated bosed on service rendered. it rnoy be necessary to use olternotive performance measures for the
remcinde: of the initiol peformonce period, depending on the timing and circumstances of the
oppointment.

 Long-term incentives An oward moy be mode shortly ofter appointment, in line witi the Folicy table.

Buy-out owords Additionol owgrds may be offered in the form of cash and/or shore-bosed elements to compensate an
individual for remunerotion forfeit on leaving their previous employment. To be cleor, the value of any buy-
out arrongements will be limited to on assessment of the volue forfeit. The structure of owords will
normelly be delivered on o like-for-like bosis where possible, repliicating the form, time horizons and any
performnance requirements attoched to the owords forfeited.

Legecy arrangements. For an internol cppointment, ony existing pay or controctual orrangements ogreed prior to them being

cppointed to the boord may be ollowed to continue on its original terms, cdjusted as relevant to take into
occount the new oppointment.

On oppointment of a new Chair of the boord or non-executive director, the fees will be set toking into account the
experience and colibre of the individual and the prevailing rates of other non-executive directors at the time.
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

Service contracts and letters of appointment

Each executive director's service agreement will be terminable by either the company or the executive director on not

less than 12 months’ written notice. Each executive director will continue to be eligible to participate in the company's
discretionary year-end bonus plan and will be eligible to porticipate in such long-term incentive plons as the compeany may
estoblish in the future. Any incentives o remuneration payable to the executive directors will be subject to limitation or
meodification to the extent reasenobly deermed necessary by the remuneration committee, including to remain consistent
with the compony's shareholder=opproved remuneration palicy from time to time. Eoch executive directnr is entitled to 25
doys’ paid holiday per annum (excluding public holidoys). The contracts are availoble for inspection (alongside NED letters
of eppointment) ot the compony’s registered office. The date of each service contract is noted in the table below:

' ) Dote of service controct §
David Williams 13/07/2021
Lee Williams ' o ' ' ’ 211172020
Chelssy Oliver i - ' ' 13407/2021

The service contract of any new appointment is expected to be consistent with that of current executive directors.

The non-executive directors do not have service contracts with the company but instead have letters of appointment,
which came into effect on Admission, for an initial period of three yeors ond are subject to annual re-election. The dote of
appointment and the most recent reappointment end the length of service for eoch non-executive director are shown in
the table below:

~ T Date of Length of " Motice
L. - e _ —_ —— appeintmant _ ___ . servies __ ___periad
Sharon Flood 30/06/2021 1 year 3 months
Willicm (Bill) Ronold - 36/06/2021 lyeor 3 months
Sarah Highfield ’ ' ' ’ 30/06/2021 lyeor 3 months
Bertie Aykroyd o ’ 30/06/2021 1year 3 months

Policy on payment for departure from office

The company will be entitted to terminate an executive director’s service ogreement with immediate effect by payment in
lieu of notice equal to the basic annual solary, excluding any bonus or benefits in kind, the executive director would have
been entitled 1o receive during the notice peried, poyable in equal monthly instalments which are reduced if the executive
director secures alternative employment/engagement within that period (the Executive is contractually obliged to use his/
.her reasonable endeavours Lo secure afternative employment /engagement).

The committee will toke into account the contractual entitlements, rules of the incentive plans, the specific circumstonces
for the departure and 1he interests of shareholders when determining the terminotion treotment.
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Remuneration Report

Remuneratian Policy

Annual bonus

As a general rule, leoving employment part woy through the bonus year will nermally result in no bonus being paid.
However, if o participont ceases to be an employee of the group during the bonus year or afier the year end but prior to
the bonus payment dote because of death, injury, ill health, disobility, redundancy, retirement with the agreement of the
remuneration committee, their employing company or the business for which they work being sold out of the group or in
other circumstances at the discretion of the remunerotion committee (collectively, good leaver reasons), then a bonus
may be payable on a time pro rated bosis for the portion of the year worked. Bonus outcomes will continue to be hased on
the performonce achieved and such bonus con be paid in cosh only or a mix of cash ond deferred shares.

DBesP .

As a general rule, on oward will lapse upon o participont’s termination of employment within the group. However, if o
participant is deemed 1o be o 'good leaver’ {in circumstances specified above) by the remuneration committee, then their
DBSP award will normally vest on the normal timetable.

Alternatively, in such ‘good leaver’ circumstances, the remuneration committee con decide that the participont’s oward
will vest when they leave. In eoch cose the remuneration committee may apply pre rating of the award to reflect the
periad spent in service relative 1o the aword’s hormal vesting period.

LTrP

As o general rule, an aword will icpse upon a porticipant's termination of employment within the group. However, if a
porticipant ceases 1o be an employee of the group becouse of death, injury, ill health, disability, redundoncy, retirement
with the agreement of the remuneration committee, their employing company or the business for which they work being
sold out of the group or in other circumstances at the discretion of the remunerotion committee, then their award will
normolly vest on the normal timetable. The extent to which on oword will vest in these situations will depend upon two
foctors: (i) the extent to which the performonce conditions/cdditional conditions {in each case, if any) have, in the opinion
of the remuneration committee, been satisfied over the original performance measurement period, and (ii) ordinorily

pro rating of the award to reflect the period spent in service relative to the normal vesting period.

The remuneration committee can decide to pro rate on award 10 o lesser extent (including as to nil) if it regards it as
appropriote to do sa in the circumstances. Alternatively, in such ‘good leover’ circumstances specified obove (including in
the cose of a discretionory good leaver), the remunerotion committee con decide that the participont’s aword will vest
when they leove, subject to: (i) the pedformance conditions/additional conditions measured at that time, ond (i) erdinarily
pro rating as described above (including the remuneration committee's discretion as described above in respect of pro
ration). Any holding periods applicable to awards will normally continue to apply 1o o good leaver’s awards, akthough the
remuneration committee may choose to relox this requirement in compossionate coses.

Any outstanding Sharesave or all-employee owards will be treoted in line with HMRC regulations.

The comrnittee wiil heve the authority to settle ony legol claims against the compeny, if considered to be in the best
interest of shareholders. The committee moy also reimburse legal costs and provide o contribution towards outplacement
support if felt appropriote.

If there is o change of control or similar event, outstanding awards may vest early {subject to any performance criteria
assessment] subject to time pro rating (unless the committee beldieves it is not oppropriote].

On termindtion, at any time, a non-executive director is entitled to any accrued but unpoid director's fees but not to an
Y Y Y

other remunesation.
r
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

Hustration of remuneration policy

The chorts below set out the potentiol volues of the remuneration package for FY22/23 under various performonce
scenarios for the executive directors.

OFixed B Annual bonus [ Long-term incentive W Share price growth
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Notes

@ Salory represents onnual salary for FY23. Benefits have been included bosed on FY22 figures

b Pension represents the value of the annual pension allowonce lor executive directors of 3% of salory

c Minimum performaonce comprises solary. benefits ond pension oaly with no bonus oworded anc no PSP vasting

d Torget performance comprises annusl bonus payouts at torget level {50% of maximum) with the PSP awards vested ot 25% (no share price appreciotion)

e Maximum performonce comprises annuel banus oworded ot maximurm level (100% of maximum) and with the PSP awords vested in fult (no shaore price
appreciation} While the Policy permits o grant of up ta 150% of salary, the FY23 oward far executiva directors hos been reduced to 57.5% of salary and this
raflacted in the above chart

f Maximum + share priced growth comprises (e} above plus on assumed increass of 50% in the value of the PSP award 1o take accoumt of potential shore price
ogpreciation
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Remuneration Report

Annual Report on Remuneration

Role and composition of the remuneration committee

The board is ultimotely accountable for executive remuneration and delegates this responsibility to the remuneration
committee. The remunerotion committee is responsible for developing and implementing o remuneration policy that
supports the group’s strategy and for determining the executive directors’ individuol pockoges ond terms of service
together with those of the other members of the group Executive managerment teamn. When setting the remuneration
terms for executive directors, the committee reviews ond has regard te workforce remuneration and related policies
ond tokes close account of the UK Corporate Governonce Code requirements for clarity, simplicity, risk mitigation,
predictability, proportionclity and alignment to cuhlture.

The members of the committee are:

;:in_minn mambey _ Position _______ . Eligible meetings _ Attendad __m__e_egggl
Bill Ronald Senior Independent Director and Committee Choir ] [}
Sarah Highfield |ndeper;d‘ent Non-Executive Director & [}
Shoron Flood Choir of the boord o o 6 B 6

Bill Ronald hos been o Chair ond member of verious remunerotion committees during his coreer ond, os Chairman of
Fever-Tree, he currently attends Fevertree's remuneration committee meetings as a guest. As such Bill brings relevant and
wide ranging remuneration experience to the committee.

The chief executive officer and other members of the management team may be invited to ottend meetings by invitotion
to provide valuable input. However, no member of management ploys any part in determining his or her remuneration. The
rermuneration cormnmittee is required 1o meet ot least twice a yeor.

Advisors

The committee gppointed FIT Remuneration Consuttants LLP as their independent adviser prior to listing bosed on
recommendations of rermuneration consultants provided by financial advisors and after checking internal cenflicts. FIT
advised on all aspects of our Directors’ Rernuneration Policy ond proctice ond reviewed remunerotion structures ogainst
good proctice corporate governance requirements. FIT is a member of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group and complies
with its Code of Conduct which sets out guidelines to ensure that its odvice is independent and free of undue influence.
FIT corries out no other work for Seraphine or its subsidiaries. The remuneration committee is satisfied that the advice is
objective and independent taking into account that during the period fromn Incorporation te 3 April 2022, FIT was paid
time-based fees of opproximately £31,152 plus VAT in respect of advice provided to the remunerction cammittee. This
includes FIT's advice to the company in respect of related share plan implementation matters.

Committee key activities FY22

Received on updote from odvisers on market proctice o;\d good pr;::ctic_e

Grant of LTIP awards ot Admission and subsequently re-expressed forgets from EBITDA to EPS
C-Dnsi_c!erétion of pertormance metrics for FY22 ond approach to long-term incentive g;cnts

The ossessment of the FY22 bonus outcomes

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Annua!l Report on Remuneration

Roles and responsibilities

The Terms of Reference for the commitiee were approved ohead of Admission on 13 July 2021 and are available on the

company’s website www.sergphine.com. The committee’s responsibilities include:

» Determining and agreeing with the board the policy for the remuneration of the company’s executive directors, the Chair
of the board and such other members of the senior manegement team, having regord to remuneration trends across the
group

¢ Establishing remuneration schemes and policies that promote long-term shareholding by directors thot provide

alignment with long-term shareholder interests. Pay should be designed to promote long-term sustoinoble success ond

ensure executive remuneration is aligned to company purpose and values with clear finkage to the successful delivery of
the company’s long-term strotegy. Pay policies should help ottract, retain and metivote executive management of the
quality required to run the company successfully without paying more than is necessary, whilst having regard to views

of shareholders ond other stokeholders

Reviewing the pay arrangements put in place for the brooder workforce

Within the terms of the agreed policy, determining the total individual remuneration pockage of each executive director

including, where appropricte, bonuses, incentive payments, share options ond pension errangements

¢ Determining the targets for the performaence-related bonus schemes for the executive directors and the group Executive
management team

o Reviewing the design of all share incentive plons for approval by the board ond shoreholders

For any such discretionary plans, determining each year whether awords will be made, the overoll amount of such

awards, the individual awords to executive directors and the group Executive monogement teom {and others) ond the

perforrnance targets to be used

o Providing remuneration disclosures in the Annual Report as required by the Companies Act, the FCA's Listing Rules ond

- other relevont laws ond regulations and to put the report to shareholders for approval at the AGM os necessory.

Implementation of policy for FY23

T - -
Comp of Pay Implementarion for FYZ3" I
Base Solaries Prior to Admission, the committes hod undertoken a review of senior executive poy end hed concluded thot base
salories should be kept low (with o view to increasing to the morket rote gver time) and that incentive

opportunities should be competitive 1o ensure appropriote poy and performnnce alignment.

Pertormance since listing has been weaker than anticipated and reflecting the finoncial performance of the
business and the company's shove price, the CEC's sclary shall not be increased ond the CFO's salary will not be
reviewed given his relotively recent oppointment. The board is cware of inflotionory pressures ond the impoct an
employee turnover ond has ggreed to on average warktorce increcse of £.6%.

Theretore, the CEO's and CFO's base salaries shall remain ot £250,000 end £24C,000 respectively.

At the time of listing, it wos recognised thot the Creotive & Brond Director's [Chelsey Oliver) bose sclory ct
£160,000 wos very significantly below morket and did not reflect appropriotely her contribution ond importonce
to our business and therefore should be reviewed in 2022/25.

In ordinclry circumstances, following weak corporate performonce, the committee would not propose any
increoses to senior executive poy packoges. However, in Cheisey Qliver’s cose, the committee has identified on
anomcly ond feels strongly that her base salory should be ccdiessed trom April 2022 for the tollowing reasons:

Chelsey Oliver joined the group in October 2011 as Senior Designer, two yeors loter she wos promoted to Creative
Dicector ond in 2017 her camit was expended to include ownership of morketing ond brond. As her role has
expanded, her pay has not kept up with her increased responsibilities,

Chelsey is the most senior femele employee ot Seraphine and as a diverse employer with 81% fermale employees in
the group, it is importont thot her poy is positioned appropriotely internelly ond that it reflects her contribution to
the business.

Chelsey is key to the business’ turnoround and future success ond it is important thot she is retained.

Chelsey Qliver's bese solory will be increosed to £210,00C from April 2022 1o reflect her contribution ond
importaence to Serophine.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Componertof Pay  _  Implementotion for FY2y e e e e e el e e
Benefits and Pension No chonges to benefits which comprises piivete healthcore cover.

Pension provision remains ot 3% of base sclary, in line with the contribution rate for the wider workforce.

Annual Bonus Moximum bonus of 125% of solory with ot least 75% deferred into shores which will vest atter three yeors subject
to the gchievement of a sliding scole of cdjusted profit before tax torgets.

Consistent with market practice, the committee considers the torgets themselves to be cenfidential end will
disclose thern in next yeor's report.

Long-Term Incentive As disclosed in the IPO Prospectus and os set out in the Directors’ Remunerction Policy, the moximurn individuol
Pian grant level is 150% of solory. The grant level wos agreed on the premise of lower base solorias combined with
cornpetitive fixed pay, providing o more performonce-besed culture.

However, efiecting the fall in shore price since Admission, it is proposed that owaords to executive directors
will be reduced to 25% of the origincl policy level with gronts proposed to be made after the ocnnouncement
of FY22 results.

The remunerotion committee believes this level of reduction is oppropriote ond has token into cccount the
tollowing foctors:

The importance of not granting too many shares which could resuit in potentiol windtoll goins for executives and
the dilution limits contained in our shore schemes.

The lock ot inflight incentives in the context of the LTIP cward gronted ot IPO hoving little volue bosed on current
performance combined with the need to provide o meaningful incentive to olign executives with o recovery in the
share price.

A 25% ot original policy level is broodly in line with typicoi proctice for Serephine’s current size.

The extension of LTIP perticipction beyond the group executive committee to bring sheres into the hands of more
employees.

Shareholders’ guidonce 1o reducce the gront leve! in the event of o fullin siwie price, albelt in the context of ¢ very
short troding history ot Seraphine.

The rernuneration committee hed considered ineluding a totel shereholdar return meosure alongside EPS but
given the current shore price did not feel now waos the right time to incdlude such o metric. Therefore, for simplicity,
the FY23 LTIP will be bosed on EPS performance for FY25.

At the time of signing off the report, the remuneration committee hos not concluded on the EPS target ronge
thot will apply. The EPS range will be set out in the stock exchonge cnnouncement at the time of grant.

NED fees The Chair and NED fees shail remein unchenged:
Cheir fee £100,000
NED base fee £45,000
Senior Independent Director fee £5,000
Boord Committee Chair fee £5,000

SERAPHINE GROUP FLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2027
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Audited Single Total Figure of Remuneration
The figures included in the table below represent the remuneration in the period from Incorporation on 16 July 2021 to
3 April 2022,

{- *  Boesicsalary & Other Annuol Tatal
tees! Pension benetits?  Sub-totwl  bonus LtHP  Sub-tetol Cther' Remunerotion
L Yeor £ £ € £ £ g £ £
Executive dirertors
Dovid Wilkomns 2022 191,042 5.7 . 493 197,266 [+ - 0 197,206
Lee Williams 2022 26,923 627 9.7%7 21,648 o] - 0 206,193 227.841
Chelsey Oliver 2022 123,541 3,706 364 127,612 [¢] - 0 127,612
John Bailey ? T 2022 117,500 3,525 1,032 122,057 4] - [} 122,057
Non-executive directors
Shoron Flood 20 70,897 - 70,897 - - - 70,897
Biil Rona!d 2022 38,993 - 38,993 - - - 38,993
Sarah Highfield 2022 35,448 - 35,448 - - - 35,448

1. David Williams’s, Cheisey Oliver’'s and John Bailey's bose salories were increosed from Admission. The figures shown
are based port on pre-1PO salories and post-IPO solaries, effective from Admission on 16 July 2021. The post-Admission
salaries for David Williams and Chelsey Oliver were £250,000p.¢c. ond £160,000p 0. respectively. Lee Willioms joined the
board on 28 February 2022 ond his base solary upon oppaintmeant was set at £240,000p.a.

2.Benefits ore private medical cover

3. John Bailey stepped off the boord on 28 Februory 2022

4.Lee Williarms received a share aword on recruitment to compensate him for forfeited remuneration at his previous

employer.
Audited annual bonus outcome for FY22
The onnual bonus opportunity for FY21/22 was 125% of base solory based on o sliding scole of [BITDA torgets. The target

payout for the year was set 30% of maximuem,

The tcble below summarises the performance outcomes:

. o Theeshald Torger Mex _ Acwel___ Outwum
Adjusted EBITDA (£) 8.0m 8.8m gem 3.0m %

Audited LTIP vesting based on performance to 3 April 2022
There were nc long-term incentive awards vesting bosed on performance to 3 Aprid 2022. The first LTIP awards were granted

ot Admission and these will vest in July 2024,

Audited share awards granted in the year
The table below provides details of LTIP awords mode to executive directors at Admission on 16 July 2021:

r T T Numbser of Shores Face value of % Vestingat  End of purformance

Type of Aword Bosis of Award - under Award Award (£7000) threshold paried
David Willioms Nominal cost option  150% ot salary 127118 £375,000 25% April 2024
John Boiley Nominal cost option  150% of sclory 81,355 £240,000 T % April 2024
Chelsey Oliver Naminol cost o;;tion 150% of salory 81,355 £240,000 ’ 25% A_xlil2024

The offer price of 295p was used to determine the number of awords gronted.

As set out in the Admission Prospectus, these awards were subject to performance conditions requiring the company's
Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 16 for the year ending April 2024 achieving £13 million 1o £16 miflion with such targets to be
re-expressed in EPS terms after listing.

SERAPHINE GRQUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
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The adjusted diluted EPS equivalent targets are 11.2 pence to 15.5 pence bosed on FY2023/24. 25 per cent. of such owards
would vest for EPS of 11.2 pence rising on a straight-line basis to 100 per cent. vesting for 15.5 pence.

CFO recruitment

Lee Williams, CFO, who joined the board on 28 February 2022, forfeited o bonus from his previous employer which was due
to be poid in March 2022, As part of the terms of his recruitment ond in line with commen practice, the beard agreed to
cormpensote Lee for the remuneration forfeited. The committee ogreed that Lee should be owarded an oward of Seraphine

shares in lieu of the remunerotion forfeited.

Accordingly, Lee was gronted a one-off share aword over 307,750 shores, reflecting the value of the bonus forfeited and os

part of the terms of his recruitment.

The award comprised two distinct equol ports (part one and port two) each relating 1o 153,875 shares and each structured
as a nil cost eption. The ports shall ordinarily vest on 28 February 2023 in respect of port one and on 28 February 2024 in
respect of part two, in each case subject to continued service.

Recruitrment share oward granted during the yeor {(audited)

f

L._______Tvaeﬂ_&:qrd__ —_—

Number of Shares under

Awaord

Foce volue of award

(£'000) Vesting date

H
t
]

Lee Williorns Nominal cost option

307,750

2024 (in equol parts)

The remuneration committee was satisfied thot the grant value was no more than the forecasted value of the bonus
Lee forfeited ot the time of joining Seraphine. Deferring the payment beyond when the bonus would have been due and
defivering it in shores (rather than cosh) did not benefit Lee beyond what ke forfeited.

Audited payments for loss of office and/or payments to former directors
John Bailey stood down as a director on 4 March 2022, The following payments were made:
o £6,153.85 one-off consultoncy fee for ad hoe odvice post termination
» 9 doys of accrued and outstonding onnuol leave amounting to £5,538.446

o Faid fincl salary up to and including 1! March 2022 amounting to £5,538.46

¢ John's entitlement to an LTIP award lapsed on his resignation in accordonce with the scheme's rules.

Audited directors’ sharehalding

Beneficial interests of directors, their families ond trusts.in ordinary shares of the compony at 3 April 2022 were:

£206,193 28 February 2023 and 28 Februory

F

] No. of Shoras awned V] d LTIP i L shares d

4 outright (including  subject to parformonce with no performaonce Sharehsiding as o % of
| connacted persons) _ conditions' criteria’

Dovig Willioms 1,849 253 127.118 - 418.7%
Lee Williams - "307,750 32.8%
Chelsey Cliver 919,414 81,355 - 325.3%
Sharan Flood 227,190 nle /o

Bill Ronald 63,090 nfo ole

Serah Hightield 10,16¢ “nta néo

1. LTIP owords were gronted ot Admission

Shareholding guid

efinas
solaryos 3 Aprl 20227 (200% of salary) met?

Yes

2.Lee Willioms's awards relate to his buyout aword granted on joining Serophine. His shareholding of 32.8% is on o nct of

Tax basis, using the share price ot 3 April 2022,

3. Comprises the value of shares held outright and the volue of unvested shares without performonce criteria (on a net of

tax bosis) as o percentage of base salary.

) There have been no other chonges in shareholdings between the period and publication of this report.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Annual Report on Remuneration

TSR chart and CEO single figure history

The chart below shows the value of £100 invested in the compony on Admission ot the IPO price, compared with the
value of £100 invested in the FTSE SmallCop tndex ot the same daote and the movernent in value until 3 April 2022.

We have chosen the FTSE SmoliCap Index os it provides an appropriate ond widely recognised index for benchmarking
the Company's corporate performonce since IPO.

Lratd
wmme Seraphine Pl e FTSE Smol Cop
e & 100
i
I
k-
25 w0
18
2 w0
3%
© £
[}
July 202t Apell 2022
CEO single figure history ’ - ’ Fy22
Totol remuneration £239,239
Annuol banus o5 % of max 0%

Long-term incentive shares vesting as % of mex N/A

CEOC pay ratio
The group has fewer thon 250 UK employees and therefore is not required to show this information.

Relative importonce of spend no pay
In view of the fact thot the company only listed in July 2021, there is no comparable year-on-year change to disclose. Full
disclosure will be presented in the Annuc] Report on Remuneration for FY22/23.

— . R N —— . s 1
e e — - — e —— . —— 022
Total employee costs (notes 11 and 12 of Financiol Stotements) £3.7m

Distributions to shareholders £
Percentage change in director pay
In view of the fact that the company only listed in July 2021, there is no comparable year-on-yeor chonge to disclose.

Full disciosure will be presented in the Annual Report on Remuneration for FY22/25.

This report wos approved by the board of directors and signed on its beholf by:

Bill Ronald
Chair of the Remunerotion Committee
3% July 2022
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Directors’ Report

Chaidof the Nommat on \.ommlttce

introduction

The directors of Seraphine are pleosed to present their
Annual Report for the finonciol yeor ended 2022, The
Directors’ Report includes information required to be
disclosed under the Act, the Code, the Financial Conduct
Authorities Listing Rules ('Listing Rules’) ond the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules (‘DTRs').

The Strotegic Report and this Directors’ Report, together
with sections of the Corporate Governance Report
incorporated by reference, form the Monagement Report
for the purpose of DTR 4.1.8R. The Directors’ Report fulfils
the requirements of the corporote governance statement
for the purposes of DTR 7.2.3R. Certain disclosure
requirements for inclusion in the Directors’ Report have
been |ncorporoted mto thns Report by reference

Other informetion relevant to the Directors’ Report Poge
Employee shore schemes and share ownershlp 115
Future business 32-33
Developments 13
Going concern and viability 123
Risk manaogement 74
GHG emissions and energy consumption 53-55
Financicl instruments and Notes 179
Informotion required by Listing Rules 9.8.4R1 e
Stotement of capitolised interest 163
Financicl Statements 138-181

1.LR 9.8.4(2)R, 9.8.4(5) and (8)R, 2.8.4(7) and (8}R,
2.8.4(7) and (B)R, LR 9.8.4R(9}, 9.8.4{10) (0)R, 9.8.4(10) (b)
R, 9.8.4(11)R, 9.8.4(12) ond {13)R, 9.8.5G and 9.8.4(14}{a)
and (b)R ore not applicable.

Fair, bolanced and understandable

The boord considers, on the odvice of the Audit ond Risk
Cormnmittee, thot the Annual Report, token as a whole,

is fair, bolanced and understandoble and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
compony's and the group’s position, performance, business
model and strotegy.

Relating to directors

Directors

Biogrophical details of each director who has held office
during the 52 week period ended 3 April 2022 are provided
on pages 84-87. In oddition, John Boiley was o director
during the period under review and stepped down from the
board on 28 February 2022. Lee Williams was oppainted to
the boord on 28 February 2022,

The oppointment and retirement of directors is governed
by the company’s articles of ossociation {the ‘Articles’), the
Code, the Act ond other related legislation.

Directors’ share interests

Detaiis regarding the share interests of the directors in the
share capital of the compony ore set out in the Directors’
Remunerction Report on page 100.

Directors’ powers

In accordonce with the Articles and the Act, the board

may exercise all of the powers of the company, including

in relotion to the allotment and issuance of shares ond the
buying back of shares (subject to the necessary shareholder
authorities being in ploce). This authority will oclways remcin
subject to ony directions given by the company by special
resolution and ony relevant statutes and regulations.
Matters reserved for determination by the board aore
summarised on poge 89.

Directors’ indemnities and insurance

In accordance with the Articles, which provide that each
director is eligible to benefit from a directors’ indemnity,
Serophine entered into o deed of indemnity in favour

of each director at the time of the IPO. The group also
rmaintains gt its expense a directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance policy to provide cover for ony legal oction
brought against the directors. The palicy does not provide
cover where the director or officer has acted fraudulently
or dishanestly.

A review will be carried out on an ennual baosis 1o ensure
that the board remeins sotisfied that an appropriote level
of insurance cover is in place.

SERAPHINE GROUP FLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022

wulydoiag 3nogy

aJoday nbmons

L]

9!

IJUDUIBAGE INQ

synsoy Ing




Divectors’ Report

Substantial shareholdings

Information provided to the company by major
shareholders pursuant to the FCA's Disclosure Guidance
and Tronsparency Rules (DTR) is published vio a Regulatery
information Service and is ovailable on the compoany's
website. As at 31 March 2097 and 25 July 2022 the company
had received notification of the following interests in voting
tights pursuant 1o Chapter 5 of the OTRI12:

Being the lotest practicable date prior to publication of this
Annual Report.

Notificotion is only required when the next applicable
percentage threshold is crossed, meoning these holdings
may hove changed since notification was last required.

Humber of % interest in
shores  voting rights .

disclosed as at as at 3 April

Name of notifying entity/nature of holding _ _3Aprit2022 2022

Mayfoir Equity Partners 21,742,685 42.7

Aberdeen 5,568,797 10.94

Lombard Odier Investment Managers 4,273,300 8.40

Gresham House Asset Management 3,806,000 7.47

Cheiverton Asset Manogement 3,645,000 720

Conoccord Genuity Wealth 3,140,000 617
Menagment

independent Investment Trust 1,525,000 3.00

For the purposes of DTR 5, no changes to the shareholdings
set out in this table have been disclosed to the company
since 3 April 2022 to the date of the Report.

Compensation for loss of office

There ore no agreeéments between the company ond

its directors or employees providing for edditional
campensation for loss of office or employment (whether
through resignation, redundancy or otherwise) that occurs
because of a takeover bid.

Relating to the company’s share capital

Shore capital

Details of the company’s ssued share capital ore set out
in note 30 1o the Financiol Stotements on page 148. As ot
3 April 2022 the company had one class of share: erdinary
shares of 0.01 pence nomina| value, eoch of which carries
the right to ene vote ot general meetings of the compony
ond to on equal proportion of any dividends declared and
poid. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

the company’s Annual Repart and Accounts. Subject to
meeting certain thresholds, holders of ordinary shares
rmay requisition a generol rmeeting of the company or the
proposot of resclutions at AGMs. The rights and obligations
otrached to the ordinary shares are governed by English
low and the company's Articies. No person has any special
rights of control over the compony’s share capital and ofl
issued shares gre fully paid.

Voting

Each of the compony’s ordinory shares carries o right

to attend, speok and vote at general meetings of the
compony, which may be exercised in person, by proxy,

or, in relation to corporote members, by corporate
representatives. For the valid appointment of a proxy,
notice of appointment must be received by the company
not less than 48 hours before the relevant general meeting
at which the person named in the Form of Proxy proposes
to vote. The directors may in their discretion determine
that, in coleuloting the 48-hour period, ne account be
taken of any port of a day which is not o working day. Any
ordinary shares held in treosury have no voting rights.

Restrictions on tronsfer of shores

Sove as described below, the company is not awore of

any restrictions on the tronsfer of the company’s ordinary
shores ond the company is not oware of ony ogreements
between shareholders that moy result in restrictions on the
transfer of shares or on voting rights.

Relationship agreement

On 13 July 2021, the company, Mayfair Equity Partrers
Nominees Limited, Movyfair Equity Partners I LF, Mayfoir
Equity Partners |l Sidecare LP, Mayfair Equity Partners Il

F&F LP and Mayfair Equity Partners LLP entered into o
relationship ogreement {the ‘Relationship Agreement’}
which regulates the engoing relotionship between the
compony and the Controlling Shorehalder. The principle
purpose of the Relationship Agreement is to ensure that the
company can carry on as an independent business as its
main activity. The Relationship Agreement contains, omong
others, undertokings fram the Controlling Shareholder, on
behalf of itself and its associotes, that (i) trensoctions ond
arrangements with it (and/or any of its associotes) will

be conducted ot arm’s length ond on normal commerciol
terms (ond to the extent applicable, in compliance with the
reloted poarty tronsoction rules set out in the Listing Rules);
(i) neither it nor any of its associates will toke any action
that would have the effect of preventing the company
from complying with its abligations under the Listing Rules;
and (iii} neither it nor any of its associotes will propose or
procure the proposal of o Shoreholder resolution which

is intended or oppears to be intended to circurmvent the
property applicotion of the Listing Rules.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Pursuant to the Relotionship Agreement, the Controlling
Shareholder will be able to appoint ane director to the
boord for so0 long as its shareholding (together with thot
of any of its associotes) in the compony is equal to or
greoter than 20% of the voting rights in the company. The
Controliing Shareholder will consult in advance with, and
shall provide any information or confirmation rensonably
requested by, the company’s nominaticn committee
regarding the identity, qualifications ond suitability of
any director proposed to be nominated, The Controliing
Sharebolder’s first oppointed representotive director is
Bertie Aykroyd.

In addition, for so long as the Controlling Shareholder’s
shareholding (together with thot of any of its ossociotes)
in the company is equol to or greater than 30 per cent
of the voting rights in the company, the Controlling

Sharehclder’s oppointed representative director may attend

as an observer all meetings of the oudit, remuneration ond
nomination committees but shall not have voting rights ot
such meetings.

The Controlling Shareholder has certoin information rights
in relation 1o confidentiol information of the company,
provided that such information will only be distributed to
other members of the Controfling Shareholder’s group and
professional advisers with the Controlling Shareholder using
reasonable endeavours to procure that such professional
advisers comply with the confidentinlity obligations of

the Relationship Agreement, The Controlling Shareholder
has olso undertaken to held information it receives on the
group in confidence and in accordance with opplicable
law. The Relationship Agreement does not restrict the
Controlling Shareholder and its associates from competing
with the group.

Lock-in agreements

The controlling Shoreholder and each of the directors has
agreed to certoin lock-in orrongements in respect of the”
ordinary shores they hold immediotely following the IPO.

Share dealing code

Under the compony’s code on dealings in securities in the
company, persons dischorging monogericl responsibilities
and some other senior executives may, in certain
circumstances, be restricted as to when they can transfer
shares in the company.

Restrictions under the Articles

The board may, in its obsolute discretion, refuse to
register a transfer in certain situations, as specified by

the company's Articles. Under the Articles the boord

may refuse 1o register the transfer of certificated shares
which are not fully paid, provided that the refusal does
not prevent dealings in shares in the company from taking
place on an open and proper bosis.

No shareholder holds securities carrying any special rights
or control aver the company's share copital.

Dividends

The company intends to retain ony earnings to finance the
growth ond deployment of the business and therefore does
not intend to poy a dividend at this tinne. The compony
intends to revisit its dividend paolicy in future years and may
revise its dividend policy from time to time.

Relating to the company
Articles of ossaciation
The company’s Articles moy only be amended

by specicl resclution at a generol meeting of the
shoreholders. In oceordonce with the Act, the group
also discloses below the subsidiary companies that
have branches outside the UK:

Subsidiaries and branches

The group hos the following subsidiary componies:

Subsidiory
Kensington Topeo
Limited

Kensington Midco
Limited

Kensington Bidco
Limited

Stork Topco Limited

Stork Midco Limited

Stork Acguisition
Limited
Sercphine Lirmited

Serophine Holdings
Corp

Seraphine {Europe)
Limited

CR Fashion Limited
Shoetheropy Limited

Seraphine Frence
SARL

Seicphine Maternity
LLC

Serophine, LUSA Inc

Sesophine
Concessions LLC

Jurlsdiction of
Incarporation

Guernsey

Englond ond Weles
Englond ond Woles
Englond ond Woles

England ond Wales
England ond Weles

Englond ond Waies
Deloware, USA
Englend and Wales

England ond Woles
Englond and Wales
Fronce

New York, USA
Delowore, USA

Delowore, USA

Parent

Serophine G}oup pic

Kensington TopCo
Limmited

Kensington Midco
Limited

Kensington Bidco
Limited

Stork Topco Lirmited
Seraphine Group plc

Stork Acquisition
Limited

Serophine Limited
Seraphine Limited

Sercphine Limiteg
Sercphine Limited
Seraphine (Europe)
Limited

Serophine Hoidings
Corp

Seraphine Holdings
Corp

Seraphine Heldings
Corp

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Significant agreements with change of control provision
The group is not party to any significont agreements,
which subsisted during the period under review and that
take effect, alter or terminate upon o change of contraol
following a takeover bid.

As disclosed at the time of the IPO, the consent of Moyfair
Equity Partners was obtained for the changes of control
that occurred in relation to the IPQ, including the pre- and
post-IPO group recrganisation.

Employment policies
Informetion on the group’s employment policies can be
found on pages 62-63 of the Strategic Report.

Employee engagement and communication

for more information on how the beard hos engoged

with Serqphine’s employees during the yeor under review,
please refer 1o the stokeholder engagerment ond section 172
stotement on pages 70-73 of the Strategic Report.

Customer, supplier and other stakeholder views

For more information on how the board hos engoged with
Seraphine's customers, designers ond suppliers during

the yeor under review, please refer to the stokeholder
engogement and section 172 statement on poges 70-73
of the Strategic Report.

Political donations

The group did not make any political donations or incur
any political expenditure during the year ended 3 April
2022. Although the group has no intention of making any
political donatians or incurring any political expenditure it is
possible thot certoin routine octivities may unintentionally
fall within the broad scope of the Act’s provisions relating
to the some. Accordingly, the directors will be seeking
authority to incur politicel expenditure and moke politicol
donations at the forthcoming AGM, in accordence with
relevant institutional investor guidelines.

Human Rights and Modern Slavery

Seraphine is in the process of preparing its first Modern
Slavery Stotement in accordance with Section 54(1) of the
Modern Slavery Act 2015. The statement will be reviewed
and approved by the board annually ond will be published
on our website ot bttps://www.seraphinegroupplc.com

. The statement will include details of how Seraphine
combats modern slavery across the group and throughout
our supply chain.

The Seraphine sustoinability team created ond internally
launched the business’s first sustoinability strategy in
FY22. At Serophine, cur commitment 1o great design

Directors’ Report

hos extended inte making better business choices that
minimise our impact on people and the planet and we are
comrmitted to making sustainability a part of everything
we do. This is not simply business strotegy, but our moro)
obligation. Our strategy incorporates Seraphine’s social
responsibility more widely. Serophine is fully conscious of the
close link between people ond plonet and understands that
the climate crisis aggravotes human rights issues, including
modern slavery. Thot is why our approach to sustainability
is strategically multi-disciplinory ond ensures both elements
are equally weighted.

We are focusing on three key areas:

Responsible textile sourcing: we're on o mission to moke
sure two of our key maoteriols ~ cotton and polyester -are
only from recycled or other sustainable sources.
Respensible packaging: loaking at innovative ways

to reduce the amount we use 1o protect our products,
especially plastic.

Responsible end of life: For more information on our
commitments to sustoinability please refer our corporote
website ot Sustainobility — Responsible brand — Seraphine
{htips://www.seraphinegroupplc.com)

Disclesure of information to the auditer

Each director os at the date of opproval of this Annual

Report confirms that:

s So far as the director is aware, there is no relevant oudit
infarmatian of which the company’s auditor is unoware

e The director hos taken oll the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as o director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant oudit information and to establish
that the company’s auditor is oware of that information.

The confirmation is given ond should be interpreted in
occordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Act.

Annual General Meeting

The forthcoming AGM is scheduled 1o take place on 21
Septermber 2022. Full details are contoined in the Notice
corwening the AGM, which will be sent 1o shoreholders
shortly ofter the publication of this Report.

The Directors’ Report has been approved by the board ond
signed on its beholf by:

K D :‘ . ~ Rd
E., _.;..1 i . """ ‘ E " 9
Sharon Flood

Chair
31 July 2022
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Viability and Going Concern Statement

In occordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
2018 (the ‘Code’}, the directors have assessed going
concern. The assessment period determined by the
directors for going concern is @ 15 month period from the
approval of the financial stotements to October 2023 ond
have ossessed the viability of the group over o three-year
period to March 2025.

The assessment period for vicbility looks beyond the period
considered for going concern and is oligned with the
strotegic outlook timeframe.

As part of this assessment, the directors hove analysed
the prospects of the group by reference to its current
finonciol position, recent treding trends and momentum,
forecasts end finoncial projections, strotegy, economic
model and the principel risks ond mitigoting foctors
identified on page 74-77.

Group planning process

Our annucl planning process begins in November with
a detoiled review of the key strategic gools by the group
of directors ond the executiveteam, following which an
updated long term financiol plon is derived.

A detailed, bottom-up budget for the year ahead is then
prepared, which is signed off by the group in Februory.
We monitor cur performance throughout the financial
year against this budget and prior year actual results with
a regular formal re-forecosting process conducted on o
quarterly basis, or as required.

Viability assessment

The directors have reviewed the group's long-term forecasts
and projections for the three-year pericd 1o March 2025
{the ‘Assessment Period’), which is aligned to the group’s
current strategic long-term plienning cycle. A three-year
outlook is considered sufficient to capture the impact of
any existing maoteric! long-term obligations, such as capital
expenditure projects ond ony lease contracts factoring

in the timing of any break clouses, whilst also providing o
realistic timeframe to ochieve the current strategic goals.
The group haos a standard investment time horizon of three
years, and so again the director’s believe thot the three-
yeor assessment period sufficiently captures any current
investment plans.

The directors have assessed the future viobility of the group
by reviewing the base case and risk scenarios based an the
Principel Risks. These circumstances hove been evaluated
bosed on principal ond emerging risks identified by
management through its risk manogement process.

The directors have considered the principal risks that could
have o severe impact on the group's cosh heodroom and
compliance with covenants taking into account the group’s
cash ond cosh equivalents and debt facilities. The bose
case has been sensitised to model the key risks identified
which included a softening of scles growth assumptions,
distribution cost inflation ond a scenario with weakening

of GBP. Under each of these scenarios the group maintains
sufficient cash headroom over the assessment peried.

Depending on how these hypothetical scenorios unfold,

there are a series of mitigating actions within Seraphine’s

contrel thot could be token to protect the group’s activities

including to:

e Amend sourcing jocotions to reduce duty incurred and

change cost prices

Amend product range mix

Increose prices on products with lower price elosticity to

obsorb any additionol distribution costs

e Postpone longer-term capital expenditure in
enhoncement projects

e Leverage promotioncl octivity to attract more customers

« Reduce digitol marketing spend and redirect marketing
spend appropriately

» Renegotiote payment terms with suppliers

Following consideration of the various risk impact
assessments and scenarios ond stress tests models
performed ond taking into account the group’s current
position and principal risks the dicectors have a reasonable
expectotion thot the business will be able 1o continue in
operation and meet its liobilities as they foll due over the
Assessment Period.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Viability and Going Concern Statementd

Going concern assessment

The group has reported on odjusted EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16)
profit of £2.6m for the 12 months ended 3 April 2022 (2021
Adjusted EBITDA (pre-IFR% 14) of £6.2m} and is in a net
osset position of £20.4m as ot 3 April 2022 {4 April 2021: net
ligbility position £{5.3)m), with a net current asset position
of £2.5m (4 April 2021: £1.1m). The group had a cash
balance of £2.8m ot 3 April 2022 with £3.0im diuwn down
from our facility of £6.0m.

Since eorly 2020, the business has been exposed 10
extracrdinary market conditions due to the Covid-19
pondemic. During this period, despite disruptions to its
supply chain, the business has delivered angoing strong
gross sales growth, broodly aligned to levels delivered
through previous years. Supply chain disruptions have
meont that a shortage of summer stock impacted the
customer demand over summer 2021 ond increased
clearonce over the sale period ot the end of 2021.

The directors have reviewed the group's forecasts and
projections for the period to October 2023 {the ‘Forecast
Period’), including their ossessment of troding and
assccioted cosh flow forecosts ond forecost liquidity.

Base case

The strategic plan forms the base case for the scenario
modelling that underpins the viability ossessment and
going concern assessment, It has been built out from the
FY23 group approved budget. The base case assumes
double digit revenue growth off FY22 revenue and gross
margin improvement following the implementation of
sales price increases to mitigote inflotionary cost pressures
and; the absence of one-off tariff and duty costs incurred
entering new markets in FY22. Principal assumptions
include @ reduction in stock purchases due to the high
level of stock holding at the balonce sheet date; range ond
brand owaoreness investments driving sales and revenue
growth; margin benefits from pricing increcses; stobilisotion
of freight rotes; efficiencies in distribution costs with scale;
continued growth in overhead costs linked 1o scole ond
strategic initiative implementation; and ongoing capital
expenditure on key areas of technology, warehousing and
infrostructure.

In considering the appropriateness of adepting the going
concern basis in preparing the financial stotements the
directors hove assessed the potential cash generation and
caovenant compliance of the group and under a severe byt
plousible scenario which was infermed by a comprehensive
review of 1he inocroecénomic enviranment, including

the irmpact of the current invasion of Ukraine, and the
group’s expenence of trading through the pandemic

over the lgst two years. The severe but plousible scenario
represents o downside scenario where FY23 sales remain
flat with FY22 ond only increasing by 5% year on year
going forward, which is notably lower than revenue growth
rotes historically achieved. With the exception of variable
cost reductions thot would noturolly occur with the lower
soles there hos been no further offsetting cost mitigotion
modelled. Under this scenaric the group would still continue
to maintain liquidity and complicnce with bank covenonts
ot Qctober 2023.

The assumptions to which the forecosts are most sensitive
are the expected growth in soles and the continued freight
Cost pressures.

Under stress test conditions, sales would hove to foll by
more than 25% of FY22 before additional funding would be
required within the Assessment Period.

Following the various scenarios and stress tests performed
the gruup would comply with bank covenonts and hove
sufficient cash headroom and liquidity to continue trading
throughout the pericd to October 2023.

As such, the directors considered it appropriote 1o adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparotion of the
group's financicl statements.
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in Respect of the Financial Statements

The directors ore responsible for preparing the Annual
Report including the directors’ Remunerotion Report end
Policy ond the Finoncial Stotements in accordance with
opplicable law ond regulotions.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Financic!
Statements for each financial yeor. The directnrs are
required by the |AS Regulotion to prepare the group
Finonciol Stotements under UK-adopted internetiono)
accounting standards ond have elected to alse prepare
the compaony financial stotements in accordance

with UK-odopted internotione! occounting standards.

The Financial Statements are olso required by low to be
properly prepared in accordance with the Act and Article

4 of the IAS Reguiation. Under company law, the directors
must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
offairs of the company and the group ond of the profit or
loss of the compony and the group for that period.

In preporing the company financiol statements, the

directors are required to:

» Select suitoble accounting policies and then opply them
consistently

¢ Moke judgments and accounting estimotes that are
reasonabie ond prudent

» State whether applicable UK Accounting Stondards
have been followed, subject tn any moterial departurcs
disclosed ond explained in the Finencial Stotements; ond

# Prepore the Finonciol Staterments on o geing concern
basis unless it is inoppropriate 1o presume that the
company will continue in business

Internotionol Accounting Stondard 1 requires that the
Financiol Stotements present fairly for each financial

yeor the relevant entity’s finoncial position, financiol
performance, and cosh flows. This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transoctions, other events,
and conditions in occordance with the definitions and
recognition criteria for assets, ligbiities, income and
expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards
Board's ‘Framewark for the preporation and presentation
of Financia! Stoternents’. In virtually all circumstances, o
fair presentation will be cehieved by complionce with ¢ll
opplicable reporting stondards.

Directors are also required 10:

# Properly select and apply accounting policies ond
present information, including occounting policies, in o
manner that provides relevant, relioble, comparoble ond
understandoble information

Provide odditiunal disclosures when complionce with
the specific requirerments in UK-adopted international
accounting standords are insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of porticulor tronsoctions, other
events and conditions on the entity’s financiol position
and financiol performance

Make on ossessment of the compony’s ond the group’s
{as the case may be) obility to continue as a going
concern

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records thot are sufficient to show and
axploin the company’s and the group’s transactions on
an individual and consclidoted basis and disclose with
reasancble cccuracy at any time the financiol position of
the company and the group and enable them to ensure
thot the Financiol Statements comply with the Act. They
ore also responsible for safequarding the assets of the
company and the group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud ond other
irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financiol information
included on the group’s website. Legislotion in the UK
governing the preparation ond dissemination of Financial
Stotements may differ from legislotion in other jurisdictions.
Each director confirms that, to the best of his or her
knowledge:

# The group and company Financial Statements in this
Annual Report, which hove been prepored in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting fromework, give
a true and fair view of the assets, ligkilities, financiol
position and profit or loss of the company ond of the
group token as o whole; ond

o The Annuol Report includes o foir review of the
development and performonce of the business and the
position of the compaony, and the group taken os o whole,
together with a description of the principol risks and
uncerteinties they face.

This responsibility stotement was opproved by the boord of
directors on 31 July 2022 ond is sigred on its beholf by:

Lee Williams
Chief Financial Officer
31 Juty 2022

David Williams
Chief Executive Officer
3t July 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Seraphine Group plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

in our opinion:

& Seraphine Group plc's group financial statements ond company financial statements (the “financiol statements”) give o
true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the company's offairs os ot 3 April 2022 and of the group’s loss and
the group’s cash flows for the 52 week period then ended

o The group financial stotements have been properly prepored in occordance with UK-adopted internationat accounting
stondards

» The company financial statements have Leen properly prepared in occordance with United Kingdom Generclly Accepted
Accounting Proctice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, ond
applicable law)

+ The finoncial stotements have been prepored in accordonce with the requirements of the Componies Act 2006.

We hove audited the financiol stotements, included within the Annual Report for the 52 week period ending 3 April 2022
{the "Annual Report”), which comprise: the Consolidoted Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement
of Finoncial Position os ot 3 Aprit 2022; the Consolidoted Statement of Total Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated
Stotement of Changes in Equity, the Company Stotement of Changes in Equity and the Consofidated Stetement of Cash
Flows for the period then ended; ond the notes to the finoncial statements, which include o description of the significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) ("15As (UK)”) and applicable fow.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the oudit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient ond appropriote to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in occordance with the ethical requirements thot are relevont to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as opplicable to listed public interest entities,
and we hove fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in eccordonce with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-aoudit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Stondord were
not provided.

Other than those disclosed in note 14 of the financial statements, we have provided ne nen-gudit services to the company
in the period under gudit.

SERAPHINE GRCUP PLC
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Independent \uditors’ ﬂ('pm‘t Lo the Members of Seraphine Group plce

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our audit approach

Context

In July 2021 the Group completed an initial public offering (IPO) 1o the main market of the London Stock exchange

and these are the Group first set of financial statements in occordance with UK IFRS, During the period the Group has
continued to experience revenue growth in new and existing markets, but cost pressures and unexpected duty and sales
tox costs of entering new markets has impacted the results for the period.

in planning and executing our audit we hove considered the Group’s climate risk ossessment process (gs described in the
Sustoinobility section of the the Annual Report (“Product”) and TCFD reports) . As explained in these disclosures, the Group
is mindful of its impoct on the environment and focussed on ways 1o reduce climote related impacts as they continue

to work towords their Net Zero gool in 2050. Whilst the Group storted to qualitatively ossess the impacts that may arise

os they aim towards their net zero goal, the future financiol impacts ore clearly uncertoin given the medium to long

term time horizon ond further work is required to quantify all impacts and fully develop @ plon to achieve the Net Zero
geal in 2050. We have discussed with management and the Audit Committee thot the estimoted finonciol impocts of
climaote chonge will need to be frequently reassessed ond our expectation that climate change disclosures will continue to
evolve as greoter understanding of the actual and potenticl impocts on the Group's future operations are obtained. We
considered how cfimote chonge risks would impact the assumptions made in the forecosts prepared by mancgement used
in their impoirment ossessment and going concern, We also considered the consistency of the disclosures in relation to
climate change made in the other infarmation within the Annue! Repert with the financial staterments and our knowledge
from our oudit,

QOverview

Audit scope

We conducted full scope audit work over the muin trading entity, Serophine Limited, ond the parent cormpony, Serophine
Group plc. With respect to the remaining entities in the Group, we performed oudit procedures over certain finoncial
stotement line items where these entities contribution to the Group was 5% or more. This applied to balonces in Seraphine
France SARL, Kensington Bidco Limited ond Seraphine USA Inc.. The audit procedures performed accounted for 95% of
both the Group's revenue for the period ended 3 April 2022 ond 96% of net assets os at 3 Apnil 2022,

Key audit matters
» Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets (group)
« Coreying volue of Pic’s investment in subsidiaries {parent).

Materiality

e Overoll group materiality: £330,000 bosed on 0.75% of revenue from sales
» Overall company materiglity: £273,000 based on 1% of toto) assets

# Performance materiality: £165,000 {group) and £136,500 (compony).

The scope of our audit
As port of designing cur audit, we determined materiolity ond ossessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial

stotements.

Key audit maotters

Key audit maotters are those motters thot, in the ouditors’ professionaf judgement, were of most significonce in the cudit
of the financiol statements of the current period ond include the most significant assessed risks of moterial misstatement
{whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, inchuding those which had the greotest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; ond directing the efforts of the engagement team. These motters,
and any comments we maoke on the results of cur procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of

the finoncial statements as o whole, ond in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide o separote opinion

on these matters.
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Independent Auditors” Report to the Members ol Seraphine Group ple

Report on the audit of the financial statements

This is not o complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Key gudit motter

How our gudit addressed the key oudit matter _

Impairment ot gwaw-ill' and other intangible ossets {group)

As disclosed in note 19, the Group hos goodwill of £nil
{2021: £13.6m) ond others intongible ossets of £23.1m
[2021: £42.6m) ot 3 April 2022: These bolances are cfter
an impairment chorge of £13.6m hos been recorded
cgainst goodwill and £14.3m ogoinst intangible assets.
The ramoining intongible osset bolonce of £23.1m remains
significont in the context of the overolt bolance sheet of
the Group.

All goodwill ond intangible ossets belong to o single cash-
generating unit (“CGU") ond a single value inuse
("VIU") colculation is performed in order 1o assess their
recoverabifity.

We focused on the risk of impoirment os the impoirment
assessment involves @ number of subjective judgements
ond estimotes by menogement, mony of which are
forward-looking. These estimates include key assumptions
about the future results of the business, particularly
assumptions oround growth rotes and the discount rote
to be applied to future cash flow forecasts, where there is
o higher degree of sensitivity. Reter 10 Key judgements
and sources of estimotion uncertainty {note 7.2) ond
note 19, for management’s disclosures of the relevont
judgements and estimotes invelved in assessing goodwill
ond ather intangible ossets, Refer to the Audit
Committee report on poges 96 ond 97 for o description
of its ossessment of significont judgements.

We obtoined monogement’s annuol impairment assessment ond ensured
the colculotions were mothematicolly occurots ond thot the methodology
used waos in line with the requirements of LAS 36 ‘lmpairment of Assets’.

We evcluoted the future cash flow forecosts of the COU, and the process by
which the forecosts were drown up. In doing this, we confirmed thot the
forecasts used for the impoirment ossessment were consistent with the
fotest Boord-oppraved plans.

We performed o retrospective review of the prior period estimotes by
comparing to actugl results in the current pericd.

We evaolugted the inputs in the ViU colculotion and chollenged the key

assumptions including:

» Assessment of revenue growth by comporing ossurmptions used to third
party economic and industry forecosts

» Using our internal vajuation experts to assess the reasonableness of the
discaunt rote ard growth rate ossumptions used by monagement

» Assessing corroboroting or contradictory evidence reloting to significont
ossumptions in the cash How projections.

We recalculoted monogement’s own sensitivity onelysis of key assumptions
used in the ViU assessment and olso performed our own independent
sensitivity testing to include the applicotion of reasoncble olternative risk
scenarios. This included reduced revenue growth and the considerotion of
potential future costs which could crise o5 o result of climate change,
inctuding from corbon toxes.

We considered the morket copitalisation of the Group ot 3 April 2022 and
compared this to the outcome of our our VIU) ossessment, noting there was
alignment.

We reviewed the odequacy of disclosures made in the financiol statements
and assessed complionce with 1AS 36 including chollenging maenogement to
be tronsporent about the underlying risks which hove been ossessed ond
embedded into its future cosh How assumptions.

Baoseo on our work summerised above, we have concluded that the
impoirment booked cgoinst goodwill ond intangible assets balances is
appropriote ond the remcining bolance ot 3 Aprit 2022 is supportoble, end
that appropriote ossumption ond sensitivity disclosures hove been made in
the finoncial stotements.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Independent Auditors’” Report to the Members ol Seraphine Group ple

Report on the audit of the financial stotements

Key gudit motter

_How our audit oddressed the key gudit matter

Carrying value of plé'; investment in subsidiaries -(p:;rtnt)

As disclosed in note 5 1o the Company financial
statements, invastments in subsidiaries are £25.9m,
this is ofter impairment of £121.1m.

investments ore tested for impaitment it impoirment
indicators exist. The investment vakie being significontly
above the market copitolisation of the Group was
consigered a irigger in the current yeor. The recovercble
omaunts of the investments in subsidiaries hos been
estimated in order to determine the extent of ony
impoirment loss, The cocrying volue of the investment is
supported by the racoveroble amount which has been
colcuioted on o voiue in yse bosis (VIU™),

Judgement is required in this oreo, particulorly in
assessing whether the carrying volue of an osset con be
supported by the recoverable volue, being the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated bosed on
the cantinued use of the asset in the business. There are o
number of subjective judgements ond estimotes by
management, mony of which are forword-looking. These
estimates include key essumptions about the future
results of the business, porticulorly ossumptions oround
growth rotes and the discount rates opplied to future
cosh How forecasts, where there is o higher degree of
sensitivity.

Refer to Key judgements and soucces of estimation
uncertointy (note 1 in the company accounts) and note 6
in the company ogcounts for Mmanagement’s disciosures
of the refevant judgements and estirnates involved in
ossessing the corrying volue of investrments in
subsidiories.

How we tailored the audit scope

We have evoluated mencgement’s assessment of whether ony indicotors of
impaitment existed.

We have obtoined management’s colculetion of the impsirment of the
value of the investment ond verified thot the recoveroble value ot the
investment was consistent with the recoveroble volue of the CGU tested for
goodwill ond intangible assets for impairment purposes. Having contirmed
this we leveroged the audit work undertaken as port of the group oudit and
detoited in the Impairment of goodwill and other intongible assets key audit
matter.

We recalculoted the impairment required by comparing the investment
volue to the recoveroble amount os calculated in the VIU.

Based on our work summorised above, we have concluded thot the
impairment booked agoinst investments is oppropriate ond the remaining
bolgnce ot 3 April 2022 is recoverable.

We tailored the scope of our oudit to ensure that we performed encugh work to be able 10 give an opinicn on the financial
stotements as a whole, taking inte account the structure of the group and the company, the occounting processes ond

controls, end the industry in which they operate.

Seraphine Group plc has both its corporate and operating headguarters in the United Kingdom. As Seraphine Group plc's
corporate headquarters is based in the UK, the Group audit engagement teom is also based in the UK with no support
required from any auditars from other territories. The largest troding entity is Seraphine Limited. This entity, along with the
Company, were the only components requiring an audit of their complete financial infermaotion for the purposes of the
consolidated Group oudit. In oddition oudit procedures have been performed on certoin financial stotement line items in
respect of Seraphine France SARL, Seraphine USA Inc. and Kensington 8idco Limited. In total the oudit work perfarmed
accounted for 95% of consolidated revenue and 96% of consolidated net ossets.
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Independent Auditors” Report to the Mlembers of Seraphine Group ple

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Materiality

The scope of our audit wos influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quontitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with quolitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit ond the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financiol statement fine itemns ond disclosures ond in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individuolly and in aggregote on the financiol statements os o whole.

Bosed on our professional judgement, we determined motericlity for the financial statements as a whele as follows:

.. _Finonciol stotements - company

Financial statements - group

Overall moteriolity £330,000. " “g273,000

How we deterrmined it 0.75% of revenue from sales 1% of total assets

Rotionale for Revenue is considered to be the most appropricte The company does not trode. As a resuit we believe thot

benchmerk opglied benchmark for the finoncial yecr as this is o key metric  totol ossets is the most appropriote benchmarkto use
manegment use to meosure business performonce for the Company

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we ollocated o materiality that is less than our overall group
materiality. The range of materiality cllocated ocross components was £136,500 to £313,500, Certoin components were
audited to o local statutory gudit motericlity that was alsa less than our overall group materiality.

We use perfermance materiglity to reduce to an appropriately low ievel the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatemants exceeds overall moteriality. Specifically, we use performance moteriality in determining the
scope of our audit ond the nature ond extent of our testing of account bolances, closses of transactions ond disclosures,
for exomple in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiolity was 50% of overall matericlity, amounting to
£165,000 for the group financial stotements ond £136,500 for the compony financial stotements.

In determining the performonce materiality, we considered o number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk ond the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that on amount at the lower end of our
normal range wos oppropriate.

We ogreed with the Audit Cammittee thot we would report to them misstotements identified during our audit above
£16,500 (group oudit) and £13,600 (company oudit) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitotive reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group’s and the company’s ability to continue to adopt the gaing

concern bosis of occounting included:

+ Obtaining ond agreeing management'’s going concern assessment to the business’s board approved plon and ensuring
thot the bese case scenanio indicotes that the business generates sufficient cash flows to meets its obligations within the
going concern assessment period while complying with covenaont arrangements

+ Volidating the mothematical accurocy of the model and ossessing the reasonableness of the assumptions underpinning
monogement’s base cose

¢ Censidering whether manogement’s severe but plousible downside scenaric wos sufficiently severe in the circumstances
of the company and ensuring this is oppropriotely modelled through the cash flows

» Considering the level of octuct and forecost liquidity and the risk of breach of the covenant arrangements in place for
external borrowings under the severe but plausible scenario

o Performing further sensitivity anclysis on the severe but plausible scenario

e Considering the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial stotements,
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Report on the gudit of the financial statements

Bosed on the work we have performed, we have not identified any maoterial uncertainties relating to events or conditions
thaot, individually or collectively, moy cast significant doubt on the group’s and the company’s ability to continue os o going
concern for o period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issve.

in ouditing the financial statements, we hove concluded that the directors’ use of the geing concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financicl statements is appropriote.

However, becavuse not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not @ guorantee os to the group’s
and the company's obility to continue as a going concern.

In relation 1o the directors’ reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing
moteriol to add or drow attention to in relation to the directors’ statement in the financial stotements about whether the
directors considered it appropriate to odopt the geing concern basis of accounting.

Owur responsibilities ond the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report,

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the informaotion in the Annual Report other than the financial staterments and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors ore responsible for the other information, which includes reporting bosed on the Task
Force on Climate-related Financiol Disclosures (TCFD) recommendations, Cur opinion on the financial stotements does

not cover the other information ond, occordingly, we do not express on gudit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stoted in this report, any form of assuronce thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial stotements, our responsibifity is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the finoncial stotements or our knowledge
obtoined in the cudit, or otherwise oppears to be materially misstated. if we identify an apporent moteriol inconsistency
or moterial misstatermnent, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is 0 materiol misstatement of
the finoncial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, bosed on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a materiol misstatement of this other information, we ore required to report that foct. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report ond Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Componies Act 2006 hove been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Compaonies Act 2006 requires us also to report certoin
opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ Report

In our apinion, based on the work undertcken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strotegic report and
Directors’ Report for the period ended 3 April 2022 is consistent with the financial stotements and has been prepored in
accordance with opplicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify ony material misstotements in the Strotegic report ond Directors’ Report,

Directors’ Remuneration
in our apinion, the port of the Directors Remuneration Repaort to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.
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Report on the audit of the financicl statements

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’ statements in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that
port of the corporate governonce statement reloting to the compony’s comphiance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review. Our odditional responsibilities with respect to the corporate governance
stotement os other information are described in the Reporting on other information section of this report.

Besed on the work undertaken as part of our cudit, we hove concluded thot eoch of the following elements of the

corperote governance stotement is materiolly consistent with the financiol statements and our knowledge obtained during

the audit, and we have nothing materiol to add or draw attention to in relotion to:

» The directors’ confirmation thot they have carried out o robust assessment of the emerging ond principal risks

s The disclosures in the Annual Report thot describe those principol risks, what procedures ore in place to identify emerging
risks and an explanation of how these are being manoged or mitigoted

o The directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether they considered it oppropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of occounting in preparing them, and their identification of ony moteriol uncertainties 10 the group’s and
company’s obility to continue to do so over a period of at leost twelve months from the date of approval of the financiol
statements

® The directors’ explonation as to their assessment of the group’s and company’s prospects, the period this ossessment
covers and why the period is appropriate

e The directors’ staternent as to whether they have o reasonable expectation thot the company will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of its assessment, including any reloted disclosures
drawing attention to ony necessary qualifications or assumptions.

Our review of the directors’ statement regarding the longer-term viability of the group wos substontially less in scope than
on audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the directors’ process supporting their statement; checking
that the statement is in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code; and considering
whether the statement is consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge and understonding of the group and
company and their environment obtoined in the course of the oudit.

In oddition, bosed on the work undertaken as part of our oudit, we have concluded that each of the follnwing elements of
the corporote governance stoterment is materially consistent with the finoncial statements and our knowledge obtoined
during the oudit:

e The directors’ statement thot they consider the Annuol Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced ond understondable,
and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the group’s and compony’s position, performance,
business mode! and strategy

* The section of the Annual Report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk monogement and internal control

systemns
e The section of the Annual Report describing the work of the Audit Committee.

We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when the directors’ statement relating to the
company’s complionce with the Code does not properly disclose a deporture from a relevant provision of the Code
specified under the Listing Rules for review by the auditors.
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the qudit

Responsibilities of the directars for the financial statements

As exploined mare fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in Respect of the Financiol Stotements, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financici statements in occordance with the applicoble framework and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also respansible for such internal controt as they determine

is necessory to enable the preparation of finoncial statements that are free from material misstotement, whether due to
fraud or error,

In preparing the financiol stotements, the directors are responsible for ossessing the group’s ond the compony's obility to
continue as a going concern, disclesing, as applicable, motters related 1o going concern and wsing the going concern basis
of occounting unless the directors either intend to liquidote the group or the comnpany or to cease operations, of have no
reolistic aiternotive but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the oudit of the Financic! stotements

QOur objectives ore to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financicl statements os a whale are free from
materiol misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an ouditors' report thot includes our opinion.
Reosonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thot on audit conducted in atcordance with
15As (UK} will alwoys detect a maoteriol misstatement when it exists. Misstotements con orise from froud or error ond
are considered material i, individually ar in the aggregate, they could reosonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financicl stotements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instonces of non-complionce with lows aond regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect raterial misstatermnents in respect of irregularities, including froud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detgiled bealow.

Bosead on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principsl risks of non-compliance with laws
ond requlations reloted to employment laws and reguiotions, and we considered the extent to which nen-compliance
might have o materiol effect on the financiol statements. We also considered those fows and reguletions that have o direct
impact on the financial statements such as the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and UK tax regulations. We
evoluoted monagement’s incentives ond opportunities for froudulent manipulotion of the financiol stotements {including
the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inoppropriate journal
entries 10 increase revenue and monagement bias in significant occounting estimates. Audit pracedures performed by the
engogement team included:
¢ £nquiring of monagement ond those charged with governonce together with inspectian of policy documentation as to
the Group’s ond Compony's high-level policies ond procedures to prevent ond detect froud
e Enguiring of those charged with governance ond management os to whether they haove knowledge of ony octuai,
suspected or alleged froud and breoaches of lows and regulations
« |dentifying and testing journal entries, in porticular ony journal entries posted with unusuo! account combinations
(for example credit to revenue with o debit entry to an unexpected account) of journals posted by senior monagement
+ Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant occounting estimotes, in particular
in relation to impairment of goodwill and intongible assets.
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Independenmt \uditors’ Report 1o the Members of Seraphine Group ple

Report on the audit af the financial statements

There are inherent limitotions in the oudit procedures described above. We are less likely to become awore of instances
- of nen-complionce with laws and regulations that ore not closely related to events and tronsactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting o material misstotement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may invotve deliberate concealment by, for exomple, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certoin transoctions ond bolances, possibly using data
ouditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing
complete populations. We will often seek to target porticulor items for testing based on their size or risk chorocteristics. In
ather coses, we will use audit sampling to enchble us to drow a conclusion about the populotion from which the sample is
selected.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the oudit of the financiol statements is locoted on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/ouditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our ouditors’ report,

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, hos been prepared for ond only for the compony’s members os @ body in occordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 end for no cther purpese. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or ossurme responsibility for ony other purpose or to ony other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come stive where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we ore required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e We have not obtained all the information and explonations we require for our oudit; or

s Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, of returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from bronches not visited by us; or

e Certain disclosures of directers’ remuneration specified by law are not mode; or

e The company financiat stotements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be oudited are not in
agreement with the accounting records ond returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

~ Appointment
We were appointed by the directors on 30 Novemnber 2021 to oudit the financial stotements for the year ended 3 April 2022
and subsequent financiol periods. This is therefore our first yeor of uninterrupted engagement.

Other matters
The financio! statements for the period ended 4 April 2021, forming the corresponding figures of the financial stotements
for the period ended 3 April 2022, are unaudited.

As required by the Financial Conduct Authority Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule 4.1.14R, these finoncial
statements form part of the ESEF-prepared annual financial report filed on the Notionol Storage Mechanism of the
Financial Conduct Authority in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory Technicol Standord ('ESEF RTS'). This auditors' report
provides no assurance over whether the annual financial report has been prepared using the single electronic formot
specified in the ESEF RTS.

Kaﬂ’f LE rch- 5/6%‘./

Katherine Birch-Evans

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

31 July 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Total Comprehensive Income
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

15 weaeks

52 weaks endad 4 April

ended o0

3 April 2022 Unaudited

HNote . £ £

Revenue from sales 9 44,0'8,845 8,689,008

" P

Income from other sesvices 10 1,997,725 468,761
Total revenue 46,016,570 9,157,747
Cost af snles {21,357,620) {4,431,814)
Gross profit 24,658,950 4,725,953
Distribution costs {(4,853,338) {152,637)

Administrotive expenses

Exceptional items

13

| (21.792,464)  (4.759.446)
(29,922,900)  (4,728,733)

Operating loss
Finance costs
Loss before taxation

Toxotion

14
15

16

“(31,909,752) [4,917,843)
" (4,065,338}  (1,418,817)
"(35.975,090) (6,336,680)
" 2054517 20,449

Loss for the financial peried for the group

Other com prehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or lass
Exchonge differences on retronsiotion of subsidiory undertokings, net of tox

(33,920,573) (4,316,231)

(2,8921' 2,197

Total comprehensive expense for the period

{33,923,465) (46,307,034)

Basic loss per ordinary share (pence)

Diluted loss per ordinary shore {pence)

v
17 7

Loss for the financial period is ell attributable to the owners of the parent company.
Total comprehensive expense for the period is all attributable to the owners of the parent company.

0.76)
10.76)

t0.21)
{0.21)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Non-current assets

Goodwill

Cther intangible assets

Property, plont ond equipmént- owned ossets
Pfoben:y, plont ond equipment -~ rig-htraf-use

As ot 3 Aprif 2022

4 April 2021
3 April 2022 Unaudited
Note £, £
iy -7 13,604,406

. .
19 23,095,305 41,390,058
200 454,456 223504

260" 3,740,398 3,519.914

Total non-current ossets

27,290,150 58,737,884

Current assets

Inventories

Trode ond other feceivables
Cash and cosh equivolents

22" 14662738 7510108
23 1,996,048 1,189,442
2847116 3,168,542

Total current assets

19,505,902 11,848,002

Total assets

46,796,081 70,505,976

Liabilities

Current tiabilities

Trade and other peycbles '
Borrowings ’
Leose liohilities

24" (12,836,059)  (7,241,797)
27 - ~ {2.819,049)
37 (31268) (915,911

Total current liabilities

(13,973,324} (10,776,751)

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

5,532,578 1,091,341
52,822,737 59,829,225

Naon-current liobilities
Long-term pravisions
Bormwings:

invesmr loan notes
Leose liobilities

Deterred tox liobilities

26 (47450)  (102,708)
27 {3,000,000) {10,075,000)
27 -7 (42,618 808)
25 (3,638,797) (5,129,504}

29 (5749216} (7,835,239}

Total non-current liabilities

(12,435,463} (65,161,259}

Total liabilities

(26,408,787} (75.938,010)

Net assets/{liabilities)

20,387,274 (5,312,034)

Equity

Called up share capital

Shqre Premivm oceount

Foreign exchonge translotion reserve
Capital reargonisction reserve
Accumuloted losses

300 509,020 97,500
30" 49,436,003 877.500
3 6,305 9,197
3 672,750 -

31 (40,236,808) (6,316,231

Total equity

10,387,274~ (5,532,034)

These consolidated financial statements for Seraphine Group plc on poges 138-141 (registered in Englond number 13454003)
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 July 2022 ond were signed on its behalf by:

DO

David Williams
Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2022

Lee Williams
Chief Finonciol Officer
31 July 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Forelgn
Share exchange Capitgl
Colied up premium transiction reorgonisation  Accumnuloted

share copital Qocoun resgrva raserve losses Toral equity

N Note £ £ £ £ £

At 21 Decemnber 2020 1 - - - - 1

Isyve of ordinary shares ’ 07,499 877,500 - - - 975,000

Transactions with owners 97,500 877,500 - - - 975,000
Lass for the period - - - - (6,516,231)  (6,316,231)

Ei;change differences - - " 9197 - - 9,197
Tatal comprehensive expense for the period - - ©,197 - (6,316,231) (6,307,034)
At 4 April 2021~ unoudited 97,500 877,500 9,197 - {6,316,231) (5,552,034)

Group reorganisotion 204,750 (877,500} - 672,730 - -

Shares .issued. net of tronsoction costs 30 ’ 206,770 59,434,003 - . - 59.64.2,773

Transactions with owners 411,520 58,558,503 - 872,750 - 59,642,773
Loss for the period - - - - (33,920,573) {33.920,573)
Exchange differences - - Tpedy T . (2,892)
Total comprehensive expense for the period - - (2,892) - {33,920,573) (33,923,445)

At 3 April 2022 509,020 59 434,003 5,305 872,750 {40,236,B04) 20,387,274
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Operating octivities
Group loss for the period
Toxation

Loss before tax

3 Aprili 2022 4 April 2022
Unaudited
£ £

T (33,920,573)  (6,316.231)

(2,054,517) (20,449)

"135,975,090) (5,336,480)

Adjust ments for:

De}:reciction chorges

Amortisotion chorges

Right-of-use asset - goin on leose modifications
Lease modifications ’
Goodwill ond intangible osset impoirment
impoirment of right-of-use assets

flnance costs

Changes in:

Increase in inve::tories

Increase in trode and ather receivobles
Increase in traode ond other poyobles
{Decrecse)/increose in provisions )

Cash generoted from operating activities

1,105,897 263,885
4,490,870 1L172,649
(1.590,0C0) .

4

- 168,223
27,860,406 -
2739 2,292,377
4,065338 1,418,817

(7152.630)  (2,177,542)
(625.608)  (672,856).
5,913,321 152,565

(55.258) 20,819

{1.941,105) {3,697,953)

Toxes paid
Net cash flow from aperating activities

(530,674)  (503,423)
(2,471,779)  (4,001,375)

Investing activities

Business acquisition net of cosh ocquired

Payments to acquire proper;y, plant and equipment
Payments to ocquire intongible fixed ossets

Net cash out flow fram investing activities

. (46,824,459)
(379,109) (1,954)
{451,944) (114,695}

(B31,053) (46,941,108}

Financing activities

Proceeds of issue of shares

Share issue tronsoction costs ,' .- - - -
Proceeds of issue of o and b loon notes

Loon issue tronsaction costs

Froceeds of bonk borrowings

Poyment of principcl elements of lease liobilities
Repoyment ot A and B loon notes

Repoyment of benk borrowings

Net interest poid .

60,997,182 975,000
{1,354,409) -
- 42,833,680

- (2.032,133)
3,000,000 12,694,049
(581,423)  (167.912)

" (40,801,547) -
(12,627.789) -
(5,348,85¢)  (201,556)

Net cash inflow from financing activities

2,982,985 54,101,128

{Decrease)/increase in cash in the period

(319,877) 3,158,644

Cosh ond cash equivalents, at the beginning of period
Effect of foreign exchonge rotes on cosh ond cash equivolents

3,168,542 -
{1,549) 9,598

Cash and cash equivaients, end of period

2,847, 3,168,542
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

1. Generol information

Serophine Group pic {"the company) and its subsidiories ("the group’) is o global wholesale ond retail sale of women's
maternity wear through Seraphine online, retail standalone stores, franchise stores and digital partners. The company is a
public limited company which is listed on the London Stock Exchange (L5E) and is incorporated in the United Kingdom and
registered in England. The address of its registerad office is 2nd fioer, 265 Tottenham Court Road, London WIT 7RQ.

2. Basis of preparation

These consclidoted finoncial statements for the 52 weeks to 3 April 2022 have been prepared in accordonce with UK-
odopted international occounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. This is
the group’s first International Finoncicl Reporting Standards (“FRS”) financial stotements. They hove been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, ond were approved by the boord of directors on 31 July 2022,

The consolidated finoncial statements are prepored in sterling, which is the presentotional currency of the group ond the
functional currency of the Parent. Monetary amounts in these financiol statements are raunded to the nearest £1.

The comparative figures within the consolidated finoncial stotements, for the 15 week period ended 4 April 2021 ore
unaudited.

3. New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted

The company and group has applied the following standords, amendments ond interpretations for the first time for the
annucl reporting period commencing 04 April 2021:

= [nterest rote Benchmark Reform Phase 1& 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

+ Leases Covid-19-reloted rent concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16)

_ The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods ond ore not expected
to significantly affect the current or future periods.

4. Going concern

The directors have considered Seraphine Group plc and its subsidiary undertokings' {together "the group”) cash flows for
the periad to October 2023 along with the current trading and forecast liquidity. The directors hove aiso considered the

net asset position of £20,387,274 ond the loss for the yeor to 3 April 2022 of £33,920,573. The directors hove prepared their
detailed forecasts ond plans toking into account their experience of troding in the year to 3 Aprit 2022, including the impact
of COVID-19 on profitability ond cash flows. The assessment pericd determined by the directers for going concern is the
15-month period from the date of approving the consclidated financial statements to October 2023

The base case assumes double digit revenue growth off FY22 revenue ond gross morgin improvement following the
implermentotion of sales price increases 1o mitigote inflotionory cost pressures and the absence of one-off document costs
incusred entering new morkets in FY22. Principol ossumptions include o reduction in stock purchoses due to the high leve)
of stock holding at the balance sheet date; ronge and brand awareness investments driving sales and revenue growth;
margin benefits from pricing increoses; stobilisation of freight rotes; efficiencies in distribution costs with scale; continued
growth in overhead costs linked to scale and strategic initiative implementation; and ongoing copital expenditure on key
areas of technology, warehousing and infrastructure,

In considering the appropricteness of adopting the going concern basis in preparing the finoncial stotements, the directors
hove assessed the potential cash generation and cavenant compliance of the group under o severe but plausible scenario
which was informed by o comprehensive review of the mocrogconomic envircenment, including the impoet of the current
tnvasion of Ukraine, ond the group experience of trading through the Covid-19 pandemic over the lost two years. The severe
but plausible scenario considers downside scenario representing a 22% reduction in forecast sales on the bose case to
being flat on FY22 end anly increasing by 5% going forward, with no offsetting mitigating cost reduction actions, at which
point the group wouid still continue 16 maintoin liquidity and covenont complionce in October 2023,

The group has ot the dote of opproval of these consolidated financiol stotements, sufficient existing financing available for
- its estimoted requiraments for ot least the next 12 months. At the dote of signing, £5,000,000 has been drawn from the
revolving credit focility with HSBC, with an additional £1,000,000 being cccessible to draw down os ond when required.
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ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 5 APRIL 2022
142



Notes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

The above, together with the obility to generote cosh from trading octivities provides the directors with the confidence
that the group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully in the context of current financial conditions and
the general outlook in the global economy. The directors believe, after careful consideration of forecasted cash flows and
expected trading performance thot the group will have sufficient cash to meets its licbilities os they foll due, no covenant
breaches are aiso forecasted. The directors have therefore concluded that it is appropriate to odopt the going concern
basis for the preparation of these consolidated finoncial staternents.

5. Signiﬁénnf accaunting policies
The accounting palicies applied by the group and its subsidiaries in this set of consolidated financial statements ore
presented below.

5.1 Business Combinations

Capital recrganisation was applied to subsidiories acquired following o group reorganisation in July 2021. The copital
reorganisation method of occounting is applied to the group reconstructions as if the entities hod alwoys been combined.
The totol comprehensive income, assets ond liobilities of the entities are amended, where necessary, to align accounting
policies. The corrying volues of the entities’ assets and liabilities are not odjusted to foir value. Any difference between the
nominol value of shares issued plus the fair volue of other consideretion ond the nominol value of shares received is ioken

1o other reserves in equity.

The ocquisition method of occounting is used to account for the previous ccquisitions of subsidiaries by the group. The
cost of an acquisition is meosured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, and liabilities incurred or
ossumed ot the dote of exchange. Contingent payments are remeosured at foir volue through the Income Statermnent. All
transaction costs are expansed to the Income Stotement.

Identifioble assets acquired ond liabilities and contingent liobilities assumed in a business combingtion ore measured
initiolly at their foir values ot the acquisition date; the group hos 100% ownership over each subsidiary and thus no non-
controlling interest policies to consider.

Transaction costs that ore directly ottributoble to the issue of shares ore deducted from the share premium occount as
permitted by s610 of the Companies Act 2006. All other transoction costs ore expensed to the stotement of comprehensive
income and included within exceptional items,

5.2 Revenue from soles

The group obtoins revenue from contracts with customers reloting to soles of goods through its own digital plotform,
digital partnerships and stores. Revenue represents the amount the group is entitled to for the sale of maternity clothing,
ond is stoted net of discounts, value odded taxes ond returns, The tronsoction price is determined on an item-by-item
basis. The main promotion mechanic other than price reduction is a blanket % off the items.

For all revenue types the primary performance obligotion is the transfer of goods to the customer.

Digital Platform
For own digital pletform revenue, control is considered to transfer when the goods ore delivered to the customer. Revenue

for goods is recognised on delivery 1o the customer but accounted for on despatch for practical reasons.

Digital Partnerships
for digital partnerships revenue, control is considered to transfer when the goods are delivered 1o the whaolesaler. Accounts

receivable balances ore mainly for digital portners and wholescle customers. Revenue for goods is recognised on delivery to
the customer but cccounted for on despatch for proctical reasons.

Stores

For store revenue, control is considered to tronsfer when the customer 1okes possession of the goods in store ond pays for
the goods, Revenues are recognized when realized ond earned-not when cash is received i.e. revenue is recognised ot the
point of sale, when the goods hove been provided.

Accruals for sales returns are estimated on the basis of historicol returns and are recorded so os to allocate them to
the same period in which the criginal revenue is recorded. These accruals are reviewed requiorly and updated to reflect
management’s lotest best estimotes.
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Notes Lo the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

5.3 Grants
Government grants ore recognised when there is reasanoble assurance thot the gront conditions wilt be met ond the
grants will be received.

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (“CJRS™)

Under this scheme, HMRC reimburses up to 80% of the woges of certain employees were asked to stop working but were
being kept on the payroll (“furloughed”). The scheme wos designed t6 compansate for stoff costs, so amounts received are
recognised in the income Statement over the same period os the costs to which they relote. Payroll costs in relation to this
are shown net of grant income within the Income Statement.

5.4 Goodwill

Goodwil! arises on the acquisition of subsidiories ond is the excess of the cost of the acquisition together with the value of
any non-controlling interest, over the fair volue of the identifioble net ossets acquired. Goodwill on acquisition is recorded
as an intongible asset, recognised at cost. Goodwill is nat amortised but is tested annually for impeirment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstonces indicate that the corrying value may not be recoverable.

At the year end the value of Goodwill has been tested ond largely due to an increase in the level of discount rate used, on
impairment of the value has been made. Refer to note 19 for detaits on the impairment ossessment.

5.5 Other Intangible Assets

The cost of acquiring other intangible assets, such as brand volue and Website & Business Systems, is capitolised ot
purchase price ond amortised by equal annual instolments over the period inwhich benefits ore expected to occrue.
Tradermarks is considered to hove an indefinite life and on annual impairment review is corried out on this volue. The rotes

applied are:

Brond value ’ 10 years
Website end business systems S years
Trodemarks Indefinite Life

Intangible ossets ocquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are recognised initiolly at
their fair volue at the acquisition dote {which is regorded as their cost}. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible ossets
acquired in a business comhinotion ore reported at cost less accumuiated omortisotion and accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired seporately.

5.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Tangible fixed assets are stoted ot cost less accumuloted depreciation ond impoirment.

Depreciation is colculoted to write off the cost or deemed cost, less residuo! volue, of the assets in equal onnual instalments
over their estimated useful lives ot the following rates:

Leasehold improvement 10 years
Orffice tixtures ond fittings 5 yeors

Profits and losses on the disposal of property, plont ond equipment represent the difference between the et proceeds ond
net book value at the date of sale. Disposals are occounted for when the relevant transaction becomes unconditional.

5.7 Impairment of non-current assets

All non-current assets are reviewed ot each yeor end for indicotors of impaitment. Assets that have an indefinite useful life
are not subject 1o omortisction ond ore reviewed annuolly for impoirment. If ony impaoirment orises, on impoirment loss

is recognised for the omount by which the carrying value exceeds its recoverable omount. The recoverable armount of on
asset is the higher of its foir value less costs of dispesal and its value in use.

In ossessing volue in use, the estimoted future cosh flows are discounted to their present volue using o post-tax discount
rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money ond the risks specific to the osset. Given thot
the company is significantly driven by its e-commerce plotform, the group overall is ane opergting segment and analysis of
impairment has been based on one cash generating unit in the group.
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All non-finoncial assets other than goodwill ore reviewed ot each year end for indicators thot an impaoirment loss
recognised previously should be reversed or partially reversed. If any impairment reversal aiises, an impairment reversal
is recognised for the amount by which the recoverable omount exceeds the corrying value. impairment recognised on

geodwill is never reversed.

5.8 Cosh and cash equivalents
Cosh ond cash equivalents comprise cash balances at bank or held in the business and on-call deposits. Bonk overdrafts

repayable on demand and forming an integral part of the yroup's cosh management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpese of the stotement of cash flow only,

5.9 Inventories
Inventories are initially recognised ot cost, and subsequently ot the lower of cost and net reclisoble value. Cost comprises

of alf costs of purchase, cost of conversion, design costs and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. At each reparting date, the group assesses whether stocks are impaired or if an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods hos reversed. Any excess of the corrying amount of stock over its estimated selling price less
costs to complete ond seli, is recognised as on impairment loss in the Income Stotement.

The cost of inventories is determined using o first-in-first-out (FIFO) method, taking account of the fashion seasons for
which, the inventory was offered.

5.10 Leases
On commencement of o contract, or o portion of o controct, they are accounted for as a lease when it conveys the right

to use an asset for o period of time in exchange for consideration. Legses ore those contracts that sotisfy the following
criteria:

¢ There is on identified osset

» The group obtoins substontiolly oll the economic benefits frorn use of the osset

+ The group has the right to direct use of the asset.

The group considers whether the supplier has substantive substitution rights. if the supplier does have those rights, the
contioct is not identified as giving rise to a leose. In determining whether the group obtains substentiolly all the economic
benefits from use of the asset, the group considers only the economic benefits thot grise from use of the osset. In
determining whether the group has the right to direct use of the asset, the group considers the purpose the osset is used
for throughout the lease term. If the controct or portion of o contract does not satisfy these criterio, the group opplies

other opplicable IFRS.

Lease liobilities are measured at the present volue of the controctuol poyments due 1o the lessor over the lease term, with
the discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless this is not readily determinable, in which
case the group's incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used. Varioble lease payments are only
included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on on index or rate. In such cases, the initial measurement
of the lease tiobility assumes the voriable element will remoin unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable leose
payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

The group has also taken advontoge of the proctical expedient ovailable under the omendment to IFRS 16. As such the
group assessed if rent concessions thot occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandermic meet the following

conditions:
e The change in leose poyments results in revised consideration for the lease thot is substantially the some as, or less thon,

the consideration for the leose immediately preceding the change;
s Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments criginally due on or before 30 June 2022; and
* There is no substantive chonge to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Where these conditions were met the change in the lease poyments were not accounted for os a leose modification.
Qualifying rent concessions are recorded in the Stotement of Comprehensive Income.

The incrementel borrowing rates used in the colculation of the lease liabilities ore between 2.3 per cent. and 3.9 per cent.
The group leases o number of properties in the UK, U.S. and Fronce.
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Noles Lo the Consolidated Finaneial Statements
For tha 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Right of use ossets are initially measured ot the amount of the iease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received, and

increased for:

e Leose poyments made at or before commencement of the lease;

& Initiol direct costs incurred; ond

e The amount of cny proviston recognised where the group is contractually required to dismontle, remove or restore the
feased asset.

Subsequent to initiol megsurement lease liabilities increase as o result of interest charged ot @ constant rate on the
balonce outstanding and ore reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are omortised on o straight-fine basis
over the remaining term of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are included in the review for impuirment of property, plant and equipment ond intangible ossets with
finite economic lives, if there is an indication that the cosrying amount of the cash generating unit may not be racoverable.

The group has elected not to recognise right of use assets ond lease liabilities for leases of low-volue ossets aond short-term
leases. The group recoganises the lease payments associated with these leases 03 an expense in the Income Statement an a
straight-iine basis over the lease term.

5.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when either o legal or constructive abligation s a result of @ past event exists ot the Balance
Sheet date, it is prabable thot an outflow of economic resources will be required 10 settle the abligation, and @ recsonable
estimate can be made of the omoumt of the obligation.

Leasehold dilapidotions relate 16 the estimated cost of returning a leasehold property to its original state ot the end of the
lease in accordance with the lease terms. Dilapidation provisions are calculated by applying o calculated rate ocross the
square footage of each store. The monthly accrual for dilapidation is recorded os expense. The main uncertainty relates to
estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end of the lease, as the omount is not @ contractually agreed amount ond
relates to general wear and tear and restaring the fit out to its former condition if required.

Leasehold decommissioning provisions are recognised within provisions and copitalised within leosehold improvernents as
they relate to dismantling the improverments. The armounts recognised within leasehold improvements ore deprecicted over
the useful economic life of the osset.

The provisions are discounted to reflect the time value of money where moteriol.

5.12 Financial instruments

Recognition, initial measurement and derecagnition

A financial instrurment is any controct that gives rise to a financial asset in one entity ond a finoncial liability or equity
instrument in another entity.

Finoncial instrumenis are initiolly recegnised ot foir volue plus directly ottributable tronsaction costs on the Bolonce Sheet
when the entity becomes a party 1o the controctual provisions of the instrument. A finoncial dsset Is derecognised when
the contractual rights to the cash flow expire or substantially alf risks and rewards of the asset are tronsferred. A finencial
liobility is derecognised when the obligatien specified in the controct is dischorged, concelled or expired.

Financiol assets ot amortised cost

Financial ossets at amortised cost are non-derivative finoncial ossets with fixed or determinable poyments that ore not
quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these ore measured at omortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immateriol. The group's
cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments.

The group recognises o loss ollowance for expected credit losses (ECL} on finoncial assets that are meosured at emortised
cost. The amount of expected credit losses is updoted ot each reporting dote to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective finonciol instrument.
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The group oiways recognises lifetime ECL on trade receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are
estimated using ¢ provision matrix bosed on the group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factars thot are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions a1 the reporting dote, including time value of money where appropriate.

All income and expenses relating to finoncial assets thot are recognised within the Income Stotement and are presented
within finance costs or finance income, except for impairment of trode receivobles (Enil ot FY22 (£3,309 at FYZ21)) which is

prescated within other administiotive expenses.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The group's financial liabilities include trade and other poyables, lcans and borrowings.

Subsequent to inftiol recognition, all finorkiol liabilities ore stoted ot amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

The fair value of the group’s financiol assets ond liobilities held ot amortised cost mostly approximate their carrying
amount due to the short maturity of these instruments. Where the foir value of any finenciol asset or licbility held ot
omortised cost is materially different to the book value, the fair value is disclosed.

5.13 Taxotion

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payoble and deferred tax cherge. Taxation is chorged or credited
to the Income Statement unless it relotes to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred
tox is occounted for using the liabilities methad, on temporary differences arising between the tox boses of essets and
liobilities and their carrying omounts in the consclidated financicl statements.

Deferred tox ossets ore recognised 1o the extent 1hot it is proboble thot future toxable profits will be available ogoinst
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tox is provided on temporasy differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by The greup ond it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets und liabilities are offset when there is a legolly enforceable right to offset current tox assets ogainst
current tax liabilities and when deferred tax ossets and liohilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxotion
authority on either the some taxoble entities or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances

on a net basis.

Deferred tax is colculoted ot the tax rotes thot ore expected to apply in the peried when the liobility is settled or the asset
is realised bosed on tax laws and rotes that have been enacted or substantively enocted at the reporting date.

5.14 Foreign currency

The group includes foreign entities whose functionel currencies are not Sterling. On consolidation, the assets ond liobilities
of those entities ore transloted ot the exchange rotes ot the Bolonce Sheet dote ond income ond expenses are tronsloted
at the weighted averoge rates during the period. Transiation differences are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies ore tronslated into the functional currency ot the exchange rates prevailing
on the dote of the tronsaction. Monetary assets and liobilities denominated in foreign currencies are transloted into the
functionol currency ot year-end exchange rotes. Exchonge differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive lncome.

When gains or losses are recognised on non-monetary items recognised in other comprehensive income, the related
translation gain or loss is alse recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes Lo the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

5.15 Finance costs
Interest expenses are accrued with reference 1o the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate, and expensed os

incurred.

5.16 Employee and retirement benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised os a liability ond an expense.

The costs of the defined contribution pension schemes are charged to profit or loss in the year they are payoble. Differences
between contributions payabie in the yeor and contributions poid are shown as either occruals or prepoyments.

5.17 Exceptional ltems

Exceptional items are significant items of income or expense, profit from operations, net finonce costs, taxation which
individuolly or, if of o similar type, in oggregote, are relevant 1o an understonding of the group’s underying finoncial
performance becouse of their size, nature or incidence. In identifying ond quontifying exceptional items, the group
consistently opplies a policy thot defines criterio thot ore required to be met for an item to be clossified os exceptionol.
Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The group believes that these items are useful to users of the Consclidated Financict Statements in helping them to
understand the underlying business performance ond are used to derive the group’s principal non-GAAP meosures of
adjusted EBITDA, which is before the impact of exceptional itemns, and which ore reconciled from profit from operotions. A
detailed anclysis of all exceptionol items which are not port of the group’s adjusted EBITDA review can be seen within Note
13. By keeping this seporoted, it altows users to view merely company operational driven results and whot EBITDA would be
if these one-off exceptional costs were not incurred.

5.18 Share-based payments

The group provides benefits to certain employees {including executive diractors) in the form of shore-bosed poyment
tronsactions, whereby employees render services as consideration in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”). This equity settled share schemed cormmenced in July 2021 ond has a vesting period of 3 years to July 2024.

The cost of equity-settled transoctions is meosured by reference ta the fair value of the equity instruments at the dote
on which they are gronted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period, which ends on the dote the relevant
employee becomes fully entitied to the award.

The foir value is colculoted using o Block-Scholes model and considers the impact of ony morket perfermonce conditions.
The impoact of non-market performance conditions is not considered in determining the foir value at the date of gront.
Vesting conditions which relate 1o non-market conditiens ore allowed for in the assumptions used for the number of
options expected to vest. The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based payments
would have no impact on the carrying omounts of ossets and liabilities within the next reporting period but may impoct
profit or loss and equity.

The level of vesting is reviewed at eoch balance sheet date and the charge adjusted to reflect octual ond estimated
levels of vesting. The cost of share-based poyment tronsactions is recognised os an expense over the vesting peried of the
awaoards, with a corresponding increase in equity.

Further details of share-based awards granted in the year con be found in note 32,
5.19 Income from other services

COrher operating income includes revenue from cif other operating octivities which are not related to the principal activities
of the compaony This includes carriage income which is recognised on delivery of goods.
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6. Reporting period

The company was incorporated on 14 June 2021 and on 16 July 2021 it acquired the entire shore capitol of Kensingten Topco
Limited. The Seraphine Group plc consclidoted financial statements are prepared os a copital reorgonisation which means
that the financial stoterments are presented os if the cormpony, and the subsidiary undertakings, hod been combined since
21 December 2020, the dote on which Kensington Topco Limited wos incorporoted.

These consolidated financial statements cover the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022. The compoarative period (Uunaudited)
covers the period from 21 Decembes 2020, the dute on which Kensington Tepco Limnted was mcorporated, to 4 April 2021,
Kensington Bideo Limited ocquired Stork Topco Limited on 30 December 2020, which represents the date when the trading
business wos combined.

7. Key judgements and sources aof estimation uncertainty

The group makes certain estimotes ond assumptions regording the future, Estimates ond judgements are continually
evaluated based en historicol experience ond other factors, including expectations of future events thot are believed to be
reasonoble under the circumstances, In the future, octucl experience moy differ from these estimotes ond assumptions,
The estimates and assumptions that have ¢ significant risk of causing a matericl adjustment to the carrying amounts of
ossets ond fiabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

7.1 Judgements in applying the group's accounting policies
Lease terms
In coleulating the lease liability, the lease terrm used corresponds 1o the duration of the controcts signed. h is the groups

policy to use the full lease term (as opposed to the first exercisable breck date) for oll leases unless there is o specific
intention to exit the property early. Lease terms hove been modified where there hove been negotiations with the londlord
during the year, and the lease term shortened accordingly. The judgment revalved around the discount rates used as this is
based on www.tradingeconomics.com, where the rote was oligned to motch the reduced leose terms.

Exceptional costs
Judgement is used to determine those itemns that should be separately disclosed os on exceptional item to allow a better

understanding of the underlying trading performance of the group. The judgement includes ossessment of whether on item
is of @ noture that is not consistent with normat troding activities or of sufficient size or infrequency. See note 13.

7.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty ot the reporting date that
may have a significant risk of causing o material adjustment 1o the carrying omounts of assets and liobilities with the next
financial year are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

Projected Cashflows

The estimated future cash flows used to assess the impairment of goodwill are based on management’s assumptions. The
five-year forecasts performed ot each yeor-end represent the lotest detoiled forecaosts by manogement at each reporting
dote. These forecosts include management ossumptions ond estimates for future performance. The carrying omounts of
the goodwill can be seen in note 19. The impairment assessment is performed by considering the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit against corrying value. A review ot yeor end indicated that the value of goodwill needed to be fully

impaired.

Discount Rates

The estimated future cash flows used ta assess the impairment of goodwill ore based on monagement’s assumptions.

A weighted averoge cost of copital of 14.0 per cent (post tax rote) has been ossumed in ossessing the volue in use for

the single cash generoting unit. The post-tax discount rote used in the value in use calculations represent the group’s
assessment of the current market and other risks specific 1o the group following external advice. This has impacted the
cosh fiows ond impaired goodwill te nil. Although long term growth rates have been maintoined in the five-yeor forecosts,
the margin rote reduction as well os the increase in the discount rate has seen cash flows negotively impocted which has
occordingly required the geodwill, other intongible assets ond property, plont ond equipment 10 be impaired by £27.9m.
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Notes Lo the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Delivery versus despatch |
Revenue for goods is recognised on delivery to the customer but is accounted for instead on despatch for proctical recsons.
The impact of this is assessed ond is immaoterial te group revenue ond profits.

7.2 Key sources of estimation uncertointy {continued)

Returns Provisions

The provision for sales returns is estimoted based on recent historical returns and monagement’s best estimotes ond is
allocated te the period in which the revenue is recorded. Actuol returns could differ from these estimotes. The historic
difference between the provision estimates and the actual results, known at o later stage, has never been, nor is expected
to be, material. The recent increase in the return rotes has been reflected in the provision ot 3 April 2022. The carrying vaiue
of the provision for sales return os at 3 April 2022 is £2,020,820 (2021: £1,084,050}. If the rote of returns increased by 10%, it
would leod to a further reduction in sales totalling £535,839.

Impairment of right-of-use assets

The estimated future cash flows used to ossess the impairment of right-of-use assets ore bosed on management's
ossumptions. The five-year forecasts performed ot each year-end represent the lotest detaiied forecosts by monogement
at each reporting date, which include monogement’s ossumptions ond estimaotes for future performance. A detailed
analysis over impaoirment hos olso been performed to assess impact, taking into consideration the full term of each lease.

The carrying amounts of the right-of-use ossets can be seen in note 20b. Sensitivity anclysis on the key assumption of the
value in use valuations hove been undertaken.

Business combinations —valuation and asset lives of separately identifioble intangible assets

{n determining the foir volue of intangible ossets arising in o business combination, management is required to moke
judgements regarding the timing and amount of future cosh fiows applicable to the intangible assets being acquired,
discounted using on appropriate discount rate. Such judgements are based on current budgets and forecasts, extropoloted
for an appropricte period taking into account growth rates ond expected changes 1o selfiing prices ond operating costs. The
directors estimate the appropriate discount rate using post-tax rates thot reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the businesses being acquired. Further detuils regarding these ossets ore provided
in note 33.

The useful life of the brond vaiue, recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition of 30 December 202G, is deemed to be
10 years. ’

8. Segmental analysis

IFRS B requires operoting segments to be determined bosed on the group’s internal reporting to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) . The CODM has been determined to be the boaord gs it is primarily responsible for the allocation of
resources to segments and the assessment of performance of the segments.

The group has one operating segment being the sale of goods, ond three different revenue channels which are own digital
plotforms, digital partnerships and retail stores but all ore supplied from the same centrol warehouse. The three chonnels
ore:

& Own digital plotforms which comprise 11 transactionol websites for dedicated morkets in the UK, US, Conado, France,
Spain, Germany, the European Union, the Netherlands, Switzerland, Itoly and Australia, through which it sells moternity
wear direct 1o consumers

» Digital portnership which comprises wholesale customers ond rarketpioce partners such os Amazo

e Storeis which comprise flogship retoil stores located in areas with highly offiuent residentiol orea and areas of high tourist
footfall, and two concessions located within Macy’s stores in New York ond California.

No further segrmentotion onolysis hos been provided here os this reflects the some informotion os is included within the
Statement of Total Comprehansive Income.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

9. Revenue from sales

The group’s revenue from soles, oll of which is derived from its principal activity, is ochieved in the geogrophical markets

below: )
15 weaks

52 weaks ended 4 April

ended 3 April 2021

2022 Unauodited

- £ L] E
UK @.962,009 2,135,319
Europe 12.816,81 3,547,023
North Americo 14,44 110 2,533,303
Rest of World 1,798,915 473,561
44,018,845 8,689,006

All revenue is sotisfied at ¢ point in time, being when the customer has poid ond token possession of the goods, or when

the goods have been delivered.

Sales by type is detoiled below:

1% weeks
52 weeks ended
ended 4 April 200
3 April 2022 Unouditmz
£
Own Digito! platform 37,006,775 7,533,608
Digital Partnerships 4,376,045 891,388
Stores 2,636,025 264,010
44,018,845 8,489,006
10. income from other services
All of the income from other services relates to carriage fees charged to customer.
11. Employee expenses
15 weeks
52weaks ended 4 April
ended 5 April 200
2022 Unaudited
£ £
Woges ond solaries 3,251,656 694,679
Social security 349,943 76,886
Cther pension costs 72177 11,199
3,678,776 782,764

The amount recognised in the Consolidoted Income Stoterment an expense in relotion to the group’s defined contribution

schemes is £77,177 (2021: £11,199).

The average monthly number of persons employed by the group (including directors) during the period was as follows:

4 Aprid 2021

3 April 2022 Unaudited

Store sales stoff 34 25
Administrotive stoff 81 41
15 B6
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Finaneial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

12. Directors and Key Management Personnel Compensation
The aggregate remuneration paid to directars (who are also considered the only key monogement personnel in the group)
during the period was os follows:

15 weeks

52 weeks ended

anded SApril & April 2021

2022 Unoudited

, . i, £

Remuneration for qualifying services 797.758 201978
Short-term employee benefits . 2,498 . 594

Other pension costs 18,508 A 46,012
B18, 7564 208,584

The number of directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined contribution schermes is 4 {2021: 4).

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include the following amounts poid to the highest paid director:

- -

15 weeks
) 52weeks anded 4 April
endad 3 April HH
2022 Unaudited
- £ E . i
Rermunarotion for quolifying services 262,418 83,624
Other pension costs 7,290 2,500
269,708 86,124
13. Exceptional items

1% weeks
52weeks  ended 4 April
ended 3 Aprit 202t
2022 Uneuydited
. E 14
IPO costa 3,521,564 47,400
Business combination costs - 2,387.156
Goin on eorly terminotion of lecses (129,000} -
Gain on lease modificotion (1,461,000) -

N .
Impairment of right-of-use asset - 2,292,177
Impoirment of Goodwill ond other intongible ossets 22,860,406 -
Other exceptionol iterms 130,930 -

29,922,900 4,726,733

IPQ costs of £3,521,564 reflect associoted expenditure with the IPO process thot took ploce from July 2021,

£2,387,156 of business cornbination costs incurred in the prior period represent the cost of professional adviser fees ond due
diligence expenses.

Changes to two of the US store leose agreements resuited in @ gain on early termination, os well as a goin on lease
medificotion in the period of £129,000 and £1,461,000 respectively.

An impairment of £27,860,406 has arisen upon monagement’s assessment of impairment in refation to the cofrying volues
of non-current gssets.

Included within other exceptional items is design infringement costs, head office expenditure and redundancy costs.

The impairment of goodwill above is stated gross of a tax credit of £3,564,000 (2021: £nil}. The bulk of the IPQ costs and
business combinotion costs are disallowed for tax purposes and therefore have no tax impact, with onky £161,557 (2021
£nif) of those costs being allowable deductions in the tox computation. Aside from the impoirment discussed cbove, none
of the exceptibnal items have a recogaised tax impact in the cusrent or comparative period on the basis that the group is
loss making and o deferred tax asset is not recognised in respect of trading losses carried forword.
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Notes o the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

14. Operating loss
The operoting loss is sinted ofter chorging/{crediting).

Depreciation of tangible tixed gssets - owned {note 200)

Amortisation of trund value {rote 19}

Amortisation of gther intongible cssets'(note 19)

Right-of-use usset depreciation (note 20b)

Gdin o;\ lease modificot:ions (note 20b)

Irmpairment of inventories (note 22)

Caost of stocks ;ecognised s on expense in cost of sales

Government grants in respect of Job Retention Scheme and Lockdown support

Foreign exchange loss

[ -

15 weaks

52 wesks ended 4 Aprit
ended 3 Apri 2021

2022 Unoudited
£ £

145,845 30,875

\ 4125299 1,085,008

365,571 87,641
980,052 233,010
(1,590,000} .
342,469 44,320

15,545,759 3,045,674
(34.545)  (121,033)
39,953 9,197

Auditors’ remuneration

Fees poyable to the compqﬁy's ouditors for:

15 waeks

52 weeks  endad 4 April
ended 3 April 2021
2022 Unoudited

£ £

L v

Audit of the company's finonciol stotements and the consolidated financiol statements 200,000 ' -
Fees poyoble to the company's ouditors ond its essaciates for other services to the gioup:

Audit of the subsidiaries of the company’s subsidiaries financial stoternents 50,000 -

Total qudit fees 250,000 -

Audit reloted pssurcnce services 122,000 -

Cther ossurcnee services 81,920 -

Total non-audit fees 203,920 -

15. Finance costs

15 weeks

52 weeks  ended 4 April

ended 5 April 20n

2022 Unoudited

£ £

Interest expense on loons and borrowings 3,813,087 1,349,704

Release of orrangement fee for ioon notes 57,051 20,042

195,200 49,071

Interest expense on lease licbilities

4,065,338 1,418,817
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Notes 10 Lthe Consolidated Finaneial Statements
For the 52 waeks ended 3 Apri) 2022

16. Taxation
The tax charge ossessed for the period is higher {2021: higher) thon the stondard rate of corporotion tax in the UK of 19%
(2021:19%). A reconcifiotion between the expected tox credit and octual tax expense/(credit) is provided below:

15 weeks
52weeks  ended 4 April
anded 3 April won

2002 Unocudited
. £ A £
Curcrent tox expense

Current ;ox on UK loss for the year 107,772 ) 174,942
Adjustments in respect of prior periods ) (80.558)- 1,834
Ov-ers;o-s tc;x " 4,321 ’ .
Total current toX expense . 31,505 176,776
Deferred tox credit

Origination ond reversal of timing differences ' 1.477.978 ) (195,292)
Adjustments in reSpeét of prior periods ’ ’ - (1,933)
Exceptional items -~ impairment goodwill and intangible assets (3, 564,000).‘ -
Total deferred tax credit : {2.086,022) (197,225)
TJotal tax credit (2,054,517) {20,449)

The tax chorge assessed for the period is higher {2021: higher) than the standord rote of corporation tax in the UK of 19%
(2021:19%) . A reconciligtion between the expected tox credit and actual tax credit is provided below:

15 weeks
§2weaks  ended 4 April
ended 3 April 01
2022 Unaudneg

£

Loss an ordinary octivities before tox ’ " (35.975.090) {6,336,680)
Loss on ordinory Getivities multiplied by the standard rate of corporcte tox in the UK of 19% (2021:19%) (6,835,267)- . (1,263,969)
Expenses not deductible for tox purposes 754 497 ) 1,147,733
Incoime not taxable ‘ - (636,109}
Carporate Interest Restriction disaliowance ’ 7 352,030 154,270
Adjustrnents in respect of prior periods ’ (80,588} (®%)
Effect of chenge of rote on deterred tox ’ Coazsan .
Fixed asset timing differences ' ’ 14,772 -
Ditference in averseas tox rates - . 2,260
Rate difference reloting to impairment of intangibie assets - exceptional items l (855.360). -
Permonent ditference relating to goodwill impcirment - exceptional iterns ’ 2,584,837 -
Other movements 9,358 514,682
Cther permanent differences (255,968)A 783
Total tax credit (2,054.517) {20,449)

For further information on deferred tax balances see note 29.

Factors that may offect future tax charges

The standard UK Cerporation Tex rote for the occounting pediod is 19%. On 3 Morch 2021, the UK Government announced
its intention to increase the rote of UK Corporation Tax from 19% to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023. This change was
substantively enccted on 24 May 2021, This will impact the current tox in the UK going forward. Deferred tox liabilities hove
been remeasured using the rote substontively enocted on 24 Moy 2021

Assets and linbilities on UK gperations have deferred tax applied at o rote of 25% (2021:19%), as this should be based on
the corporation tox rote at which they are onticipated to unwind. Assets and liabilities arising on foreign operotions have
been recognised at the applicable overseas 10x rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

17. Loss per share
Both the basic and diluted loss per share have been colcufated using the profit ofter tax attributable to shareholders of

Seraphine Group plc os the nurnerator. The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the profit ottributoble to
ordinary shareholders divided by the weighted overoge number of shores in issue during the period. As the employee option
sthemes are not likely to vest there ore no dilutive ordinary shares to include within the loss per shore calculation, Options
contingent on performonce conditions are only included where performonce conditions would hove been met up to the

reporting dote.

15 weeks

52woeks  ended 4 April

anded 3 April Ungudited

. N 2022 o
Loss for the period ottributable to ordinary shoreholders (£) . (33,920,573). {6,316,231)

44,871,216 30,255,000
.

44,871,216 30,255,000

Weighied overcge number of ordinory shores
Weighted averoge number of dilgtive ordinary shores
Total weighted average number of ordinory shares

Bosic loss per ordinory share {pence) , (0.76]: {0.21}
Diluted loss per ordinary shore {pence) _ . {0.76) {C.21)
1§, Dividends
No dividends have been paid or proposed during the period ended 3 April 2022 (4 April 2021: INil).
19. Intangible assets )
Website ond
Business
Goodwill Brand Value Tradamarks Systems Totol
£ £ £ £ £

Cast
At 21 December 2020 - - - -
Additions - - 3,696 110,999 114,695
Acquisition of subsidiories 15,604,406 41,252,900 20,904 1,104,924 56,053,134
Foreign exchonge differences - - - [961) {2613
At 4 April 2021 -unaudited 13,604,406 41,252,900 94,600 1,214,962 56,166,868
xdditions - - 7,226 444,718 451,944
Disposals - - - (420,194) (420,194)
FC;reign exchm:\ge differences i - e - 208 208
At 3 April 2022 13,604,406 41,252,900 101,824 1,239,694 56,198,826
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 21 December 2020 . - - - -
Charge for the period ' - (1,085,008) - (a7.641)  (1172,649)
Foreign exchonge differences - s - 245 245
At 4 Aprit 2027« unaudited - (1,085,008} - {87,3948) (1,172,404}
Chorge for tive period - (4,125,299) - {345,571}  (4,490,870)
Impoirmeat (13,604,406) {15,835,049) (32,583) (388,348) (27.8560,4048)
Disposals - - - 420,159 420,159
At 3 April 2022 {13,804,404) {19,045,356) {32,583) {421,176) (33,103,521}
Net book value
At 3 April 2022 - 22,207,544 69,243 218,518 23,095,305
it 4 April 2021 - unaoudited ' 15,604,406 40,167,892 94,800 1,127,566 54,994,464

Goodwill is derived from the Stork Acquisition Limited acquisition ot the beginning of the prior period. Separately
identifiable intangible assets from the acquisitien including brond, have been separated, to feave o residuat goodwill
bulance. Refer to note 7 within the key judgments section, for details regarding ossumptiens ond impairment testing used
within the discounted cash flow model. The omortisation charge for Brand Value and Website & Business Systemns for the

period are recognised within administrotive expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

As at 3 April 2022, the Brand Value intangible asset has o remaining amortisation peried of 8 years @ months.

Impairment testing for cash-generoting units containing goodwill

As goodwill is not omortised, the group tests goodwill for impairment on an onnual basis, or more frequently if there are
indicators of impairmeant. The group tests for impairment of goodwill and brond value at group level as there is a single
cash generating unit (CGU). The impairment assessment is performed by considering the recoverable cmount of the cash-
generoting unit against carrying value.

The impaisment testing of goodwill involved aggregoting the carrying volues of all non-current assets comparing this to
value in use calculations derived from the latest, boord approved group cosh flow projections.

The recoverable amount of the single cash-generating unit hos been determined on a value in use basis. The key
assumptions are those regording the projected operating cosh flows, the long-term growth rote and the discount rates
applied.

Estimoted future cosh flows are determined by reference to the budget for the yeor following the reporting date ond
forecosts for the following 5 years, of ter which @ long-term perpetuity growth rote is applied. The most recent financial
budget approved by thé boord of directors hus been prepared after considering the current economic environment in
each of the group’s markets. These projections represent the director's best estimate of the future performance of these
businesses.

Long term growth rotes are applied after the forecast period. A termina!l growth rate of 2% has been opplied which is
based on external reports on long-term GDP growth rotes for the morket in which the group operates, adjusted for the
stoge in the life cycle thot Secaphine is at in entering those morkets.

The post-tax discount rote used in the volue in use colculations represent the group’s ossessment of the current market and

- other risks specific to the group following external advice. A post-tax discount rote of 14.0% per annum was used, the pre-

tax discount rate is 18.67%.

The volue used in the model assumes a compound annuol sales growth rote over the five-year forecast period of 18.6 per
cent, A reduction in the long-term margin rote has been ossumed based on FY22 experience and cost pressures, This has
negotively impacted the cosh flows which has correspondingly reduced the goodwill voluation to nil.

The tox rate has been assumed at 25.0%.

We have considered the impact of climate change on the group and have included all known climote related costs in the
impoirment assessment model.

The group has undertaken g sensitivity analysis bosed on chonges 1o key assumptions considered to be reasonably possible
by management, These sensitivities of revenue growth rote and operating profit growth rote hove been considered as to
whether they are reosonably possible 16 further increase impoirment or give risk of material odjustrent 1o corrying volues,
Analysis showed when applying o reasonably possible sensitivity scenario further impairment to intangibles could occur.
For example, a 1% increase in the discount rate would resuit in a further impairment of £2.5m. A reduction in the revenue
growth of 1% would result in a further impairment of £1.3m. An increose in operating expenses of 1% would result ina
further bnpairment of £2.2m.
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“oles 1o Lhe Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

20qa. Property, plant and equipment -Owned assets
Leasehold

Fixtures ond

impiovements Httings Toral
£ £ £
Cost
At 21 December 2020 - - -
Additions . 1,954 1,954
Acquisiticn of subsidivries 78,458 173,967 252,425
At 4 April 2021 - unaudited 78,458 175,921 254,379
Additions 324,437 54,672 379,109
Exchonge ditferences (4,722) 507 {4,215)
At 3 April 2022 398,173 231,100 629,273
Accumnulated depreciation ond impairment
At 21 Decemnber 2020 - - -
Charge for the period o (12,153) (18,722) (30,875)
At 4 April 2021-unaudited {12,153) (18,722) {30,875)
Chorge for the period (67,824) {78,021} (145,845)
Exchange differences 2,894 {99) 1,903
At 3 April 2022 {77,083) (97.734) (174,817}
Net book vaiue )
At 3 April 2022 ) ' 321,090 133,386 454,456
At 4 April 2021 - unaudited 48,305 157,19% 223,504
20b. Property, plant and equipment - Right-of-use
Leasehold
property
£
Cost
At 21 December 2020 -
Acquisitioh of subsidiosies 6,399,951
Lecse Modificotions (354,825)
At 4 April 2021 -unaudited 6,045,106
Additions 1,406,273
Lecse modifications (1,665,000)
5,786,379

At 3 April 2022

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 21 December 2020
Impeoirment (2,292,177
Charge for the period [233,010)
At 4 April 2021 =unaudited (2,525,187}
Charge for the period {960,052)
Impoi}merrt chorge o (21,742)
Goin on leose modificotions ’ 1,461,000
At 3 April 2022 (2,045,981)
Net book value
At 3 April 2022 3,740,398
3,519,916

At 4 April 2021 - unaudited
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Noltes Lo the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

The impairment testing of right-of-use ossets consisted of comparing the carrying value of the asset to the recoveroble
omount derived from the latest, board approved group cash flow projections.

The recoverable amount has been determined on o value in use basis. The key assumptions are those regarding the
projected operating cosh flaws, the long-term growth rate and the discount rates applied. A long-term growth rate of 2
per cent has been opplied for all leases.

Estimate future cash flows are determined by reference to the budget for the year following the reporting dote and
forecasts for the following 5 years, ofter which o long-term perpetuity growth rate is applied. The most recent financial
budget opproved by the board of directors hos been prepored after considering the ¢current economic environment in
eoch of the group’s markets. These projections represent the director’s best estimate of the future performance of these
businesses.

The right-of ~use asset is also considered as port of the overcll cash generating unit impoirment assessment, with off
relevont assurnptions detailed within note 19,

Long term growth rotes ore opplied ofter the forecast period. These ore bosed on externat reports on long -term GDP
growth rotes for the market in which the group operotes.

The group has undertaken sensitivity onolysis bosed on changes to key ossumptions considered to be reosonably possible
to monagement. These sensitivities of revenue growth rate and operating profit growth rote have been considered os to
whether they are reasonably possible to either erode headroom or give risk of moterial adjustment 1o carrying values.

Changes in two of the US store lease ogreements resulted in reduced future rental payments for the group. These chonges
resubted in a gain on lease modifications equol to all previous impairment recognised on these stores. In aggregate, the

gain on lease modifications totalled £1,461,000.

There was also a remeasurement of o lecse as the group agreed with the londlord before the period end thot the lease will
terminate in August 2022, The remeasurement resulted in o modification goin of £129,000.

The £1,590,000 gain on lease madifications included in note 13 is the toto! of the two goins above.
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Notes o the Consolidated Financeial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

21. investments in subsidiaries

A list of investments in subsidiaries, all of which have been included in the consclidated financial statemnents, are as follows:
% Hokiing % Holding

Subsidiary

Kensington Topca Limited
Ker_\sington Midco Limited
Kensingten Bidco Limited
Stork Topco Limited

Stork Midco Limited

Stork Acquisttion Limited
Serophine Limited '
Seraphine Hoidings Corp
Seraphine USA, inc
Serophine Maternity LLC
Seraphine Concessions LLC
Seraphine (Europe) Limited
Sarophine Fronce SARL
Shoetherapy Limited

CR Fashion Limited

Choss of shares
Ordinory
Ordinery
Ordiraiy
Ordinary
Ordincry
Ordinary
Ordinory
Qrdinary
Ordinury
Commeon stock
Common stock
COrdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary

Country of

incorporation  Noture of business

Guernsey Holding Cempeny

UK Holding Company

UK Holding Compony '
UK Holding Compony '
UK Holding Company

VK Holding Compony

UK Retsil, E-Commerce, wholesale mot'ernity wear

usa Holding Company

UsA, E-Commerce and wholesale soles of moternity wear ,
USA Retail Soles maternity wear ) ’
USA Retoil soles maternity wear

UK Holding Company

France Retail Sales maternity weor
1914 Bormant Company
UK Dormont Compeny

Kensington Topco Limited and Stork Acquisition Limited ore the only directly held subsidiaries.

The registered office oddress for each subsidiary is detailed in the table below.

Subsidiary

Kensington Topco Limited
Kensington Midco Limited
Kensingto.n Bidco Limited
Stork Topco Limited

Stork Midco Limited

Stork Acquisition Limited
Seraphine Lirmited
Seraphine Holdings Corp
Seraphine USA, Inc
Serophine Maternity (LC
Seraphine Concessions LLC
Seraphine (Europe) Limited
Seraphine France SARL
Shoetherapy Limited

CR Fashion Lirnited

Registered office

at 3 April
2022
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Graund Floor, Cambridge House, Le Truchot, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 TWD

B Honover Street, Londen, United Kingdom, W15 WY@

B Honover Streex, London, United Kinédom, WIS 1YQ

2nd Floor, 265 Tottenham Court Rood, London, Englend, W1T 7JRQ
2nd Flocr, 265 Tottenhom Court Rood, London, Engiond, W1T 7RG&
2nd Floor, 265 Tortenhom Court Rood, London, Englend, WIT 7RG
2nd Floor, 245 Tottenham Court Roed, London, Englond, WIT 7RQ
2nd Floar, 265 Tottenham Court Reed, Londen, Englend, W1T 7RQ
464 West Broadway New York NY 10012

2nd Floor, 419 Park Avenue South, New York, 10014

28th Floor, 120 Broadwoy, New York, 10271

2nd Floor, 265 Tottenhem Court Rood, London, England, WIT 7RQ
2-4 Paloce Sulpice 75006 Poris

2nd Flgor, 265 Tottenhom Court Reod, London, England, W1T 7RG
2nd Floor, 265 Tottenhom Couwrt Rood, London, Englond, W1T 7RG

e
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Notes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements
for the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

A porentol guarontee is being provided by this compony to certoin subsidiory cornpanies claiming the exermption from
audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. These are:

Company nome Company aumber
Kensington Midco Limited (Compaony number) 13095130
Kensington Bidco Limited {Compony number) 13095294
Stork Topco Limited (Company number) ) 107668223
Stork Midco Limited (Compony number]) 10769841
Stork Acquisition Limited {Compony number) 10746329
Serophine Limited (Company number) ' ) 04406761
Sercphine (Europe) Limited (Compony number) 10139367

Dormaont subsidiary companies cloiming the exemption from audit under section 480 of the Companies Act
2006 ore:

Compony narne . Company number
Shoetheropy Limited 07458784
CR Foshion Limited 09869261

22. lnventories
4 April 2011
3 Aprif 2022 Unoudited
£ E

Finished goods and gaods held for resale 14,662,738 7,510,108

During the period, impoirment of inventories cmounting to £342,469 (2021 unaudited: £44,320) has been recognised within
administrative expenses within the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Included within inventories is £699,824 (2021:
£nil} of expected inventory returns.

23, Trade and other receivables

4 Apeil 2071

3 April 2022 Unaudited

£ £

Trade :eceimt;les ’ 1,086,082 ' 479,394
Provisions for impairment of trade re:ei&oblcs ' - (3,309)
Trode receivobles - net 1,086,082 474,08%
Other receivobles © a7 173,355
Corporation tax receivabile ’ 180,908 -
Prepayments | 305327 540,002
Total trade and other receivables 1,994,048 1,189,442

Inciuded within other receivables are rent deposits of £24,000 (2021: £135,779) which will be repeaid in more thon ene year.

Impairment of Financiol Assets

The group applies IFRS 9 Simplified Approoch to measuring expected credit losses using o lifetime expected credit
loss provision for trade receivables and controct ossets. To meosure expacted credit losses on a collective bosis, trade
receivables are grouped based on similor credit risk and ogeing.

The expected loss rates are bosed on the group's histarical credit losses experienced over the 12 months prior to the year
end. The historical loss rotes are then adjusted for current and forward-lacking informetion on macroeconomic foctors
offecting the group’s customers, A toble of loss rotes hos not been presented due to the credit risk being minimol and
expected credit loss ollowonces recognised being immaterio! to the consolidated financial statements,
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Noles Lo the Consolidated Finaneial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

The group hos taken out an insurance policy in order 1o cover the year end trade receivables balance and to reduce credit
risk. The policy covers customers on an individual bosis with o credit limit applied bosed on the payment history of each
customer. The policy is reviewed on o regulor basis to ensure thot materiol customers are covered and that the credit risk is
sufficiently mitigated. Moverments in the impoirment ellowance for trade receivobles were as follows:

4 April 2021

3 April 2022 Unaudited

oo € £

Opening provision for the impairment of trode receivobles 3,309 3,287
.

Movement in impoirment in the year (3,309) 22

- 3,309

Closing provision for the impaiwrment of trade receivables

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair vatue. Due 1o the nature of the group’s
operating model, coupled with the group’s insurance policy, baod debts are negligible each yeor and no provisions for
expected credit losses have been mode at 3 April 2022,

24. Trade and other payables

4 April 2001

3 April 2022 Unaudited
£, £
6,931,418 3,075,970
1,205,334 488,394
- 358

- 319,053
4,699,307 3,155,054

Trade poyables

Other toxation and social security

Other payobles .
Corporotion tox poyoble

Accruals

Total trade and other payables 12,835,059 7,241,791

Trade payobies, other payables and occrucis are classified as financial liabilities, with their corrying omount opproximating
to their fair volue.

25. Leose liabilities

Leasehold

property

£

At 21 December 2020 -
Acquisition of subsidicries 6,399,231
Lease modifications (186,605)
Lease payments {interest end principal) (216,983}
Lease interest occrued 49,071
At 4 April 2021 -unaudited 46,045,414
At 5 April 2021 5,045,414
Lease addition 1,406,271
Leose modifications {1,794,000)
Lease poyments (interest and principol) (1,074,823)
Leose interest accrued 195,200
4,776,062

At 4 April 2022

Lease liobilities relote to leosehold properties used within the group os stores and office premises. Lease terms ore typically
5-10 years with no options 1o extend.
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Notes Lo the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Rent concessions
Due to Covid-19 and resulting government policies, stores were closed for various periods during 2021 and 2022,

The group has received rent concessions fram lessors due to the group being unable 1o open for significant periods of timne.
These concessions were in the form of rent reductions for vorious lengths of time.

As discussed in the accounting policies {see 510}, the group has elected to apply the practical expedient introduced by the
armendments to IFRS 16 1o oll rent concessions thet sotisfy the criteria, All rent concessions, other then those extending
further than June 2022, satisfy the criteria to apply the practical expedient.

Modification of leases resulted in a net gein on fease modifications of £129,000. This is g result of two US stores where one
wos terminated early and the terms of ancther was madified.

Maturity anaclysis of leose liabilities

4 Aprit 2021

3 April 2022 uAnz:dIud

. i £, £

Less than one yeor . 1,137,265 915,9M
Batween two ond five years 3,089,028 3,777,138
Owver five yeors 549,769 1,352,366

4,776,062 6,045,415

Amounts recognised in the Income Statement are as follows:

15 weeks

S2wasks  ended 4 April

ended 5 Aprijl 2021

00 Unaudited

. £ £

Interest expense 195,200 49,071
Depreciotion of right-of-use ossets 960,052 235,010
Impoirment of right-of-use csset 21,159 2,292177

Goin on lease modifications (1,590,000)' -

The group's total cash cutfiow in relotion to leases during the period is £1,076,823 (2021: £216,983). There were no expenses
relating to short-term leases or low value assets expensed to the Income Stotement during the year (2021 NiY).

26. Provisions

Laasehold
dilopidations
£

Non-current

At 21 December 2020 ' -
Acquisition of subsidiaries ‘ 81,889
Provided fo:during the period ) 10,819
At 4 April 2021~ unaudited 102,708
Utilised during the period (55,258)
At 3 April 2022 47,450

Leasehold ditopidations relate 1o the estimated cost of returning o leasehald property to its original stote ot the end of the
lease, The cost is recognised as an increcse to the right-of -use osset as incurred, with the main uncertainty relating to the
estimate of actuc! costs that will be incurred ot the end of the lease.
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27. Loons and Borrowings
- ¥

4 Apnil 2021
3 April 202: Unuudite:

Current
- ]

Bonk loans and revolving credit focility ) - 2,619,049

Non-current

Bank loons ond revolving credit focility 3,000,000 10,075,000

£41,585,171.0% Fixed rote A Loon notes 2026 - 41,176,089
£1,335,862.00 Fixed Rate B Loon notes 2024 - 842,719
- 42,018,808

Total Investor Loan notes

Total leans and borrowings 3,000,000 54,712,857

The £41,586,171.09 fixed rote A Loan Notes 2026 was entered into on 22 December 2020 and was due for repoyment

on 30 December 2026. Interest is compounded each yeor ot a fixed rote of 10 per cent and interest of £1,262,659 was
compaunded during the period (2021: £1,093,773}. There are capitalised arrangement fees in relation to these loan notes
of £nil (2021 unoudited: £2,120,486) which ore released aver the period of the notes. Loan notes were fully repaid during
the current period as part of the group re-organisotion.

The £1,335,862.00 fixed rate B Loon Notes 2026 was entered into on 22 December 2020 ond was due for repoyment
on 30 December 2026. Interest is compounded each year ot a fixed rate of 10 per cent, and interest of £40,560 {2021
unaudited: £35,135) was compounded during the period.

Both the fixed rote A Loan Notes and fixed rate B Loan Notes were repaid as part of the PO process on 16 July 2021.

Bonk loans as ot 3 April 2022 consist of 0 £3,000,000 drawdewn under o revolving credit facility taken out in July 2021,
with o facility limit of £6,000,000. A fixed interest rote of 2% applies and repoyment is due on the last doy of the interest
period unless the loen is refinanced. Bank loans at 4 April 2021 consisted of two £500,000 drawdowns under a revelving
credit facility, o bonk loon of £11,200,000 and an import lean focility of £494,049. The two £500,000 drowdowns under a
revolving credit focility were repeid on 24 Moy 2021 and 30 June 2021 and carried o fixed rote of interest at 4.06013% ond
4.031% respectively, These facilities were secured on the ossets of the group’s subsidiary, Serophine Limited.

The remaining bolance relotes to o bank loan repayabie in instalments comrmencing 30 September 2021 as follows ond
carries o fixed rote of interest at 4.0 per cent. plus LIBOR:

4 April 2021

3 April 2022 Unsudited
t £

- 2,619,049

Due within one yeor
L3

Between one and two yeors S 1,625,000

Between two and five years 3,000,00C 8,450,000

3,000,000 12,694,049

At the 3 April 2022 the rate for the period to 30 Jume 2022 is fixed at 2% (2021 4.031 per cent}. The loans are secured on a
fixed and floating charge over the assets of the group.
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Notes Lo the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

28. Financial instruments

The group is exposed through its aperations to the following financiol rigks:
e Credit risk;

= Liquidity risk; and

o Foreign cursency risk

The principal financial instruments used by the group, from which financiol instrument risks orise, are as follows:
» Trade ond other receivables

« Cash and cosh equivalients

e Trade and other payobles

e Loan ond borrowings

The group’s financial instruments moy be onolysed os follows:

Finoncial assets measured ot omortised cost

4 Apri 2021

3 April Zoli Ung udﬁﬂé

- . 4
Trode ond other receivables 1,239.813 . 649,210
Cosh and cosh equivelents 2,847,118 3,168,542

4,354,929 3,817,752

Financiaol tiabilities measured at amortised cost

4 April 2021

3 April 3022 Unaudited

. i £

TJrade and other poyobles M,630,725) (6,234,344)
Loans and borrowings {3.000,000) (54,712,857)

(14,430,725} {60,947,201)

Financiol assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade receivables, ather receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Financial liabilities megsured ot amortised cost comprise trade payables, other payables, accruals, loans and borrowings.

The group is exposed ta a variety of financial risks through its use of financial instruments which result from its operating
octivities. The group does not actively engage in the trading of financiol assets for speculative purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the group is exposed are described below:

Credit risk
The group's maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of the financial assets recognised at the
reporting date, as summarised below:

4 Aprit 201
3 April 2022 Unaudited
£ £

Financiol ossets meosured ot emortised cost 4,356,929 3,8i7,752

The group's exposure to credit risk orises from cash ond cash equivalents, as well os outstonding receivables (refer to note 23).

The group’s cosh and cosh equivolents are ofl held on deposit with teading interngtioncl banks end hence the directors
consider the credit risk associoted with such bolances to be low. The group only uses HSBC for its banking needs; credit
roting for HSBC as ot 03 April 22 was AA- from Fitch,

The group provides credit to customers in the nosmal course of business. The emounts presented in the Statement of
Financial Position in refotion to the group's trade receivables are presented net of loss allowances. The group measures
loss allowances at an omount equol to the lifetime expected credit losses (ECL's) using both quolitative and quantitative
information and analysis besed on the group’s historicol experience and forward-looking infarmotion.
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far the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the group’s managernent of working capital ond the ameount of funding required for growth, h is
the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial abligations os they foll due.

The group manages its cash and borrowing requirements through preparation of annual cash flow forecasts reflecting
known commitments and onticipated projects in order te moximise interest incorme and minimise interest expense, whilst
ensuring that the group has sufficient liquid resources to meet the operating needs of the group. Barrowing facilities are

arranged as necessory to finonge requirements

The following toble shows the maturities of gross undiscounted cash flows of financial liobilities:

As at 3 April 2022

Carrying Contractuol 5 years and

omount cash Hows <1 yeor i -Syeors over

. . i £ £ £ £
rode and other poyables {11,630,725) (11,630,725) (11,630,725} - -
Loons and borrowings {3,000,000} {3,000,000) - (3,000,000 -
Leose linbilities {4,776,062) (4,776,062 (1.137,265) (3,089.028) {549,769}
Totol financeiso! liabilities (19,406,787) (19,4068,767) (12,787,990) (6,089,028) {549,76%9)

As at 4 Aprit 2021 - unaudited

Carrying Coentroctuc| Syears ond

amount cash flows «lysor T -5 yeors ovar

. £ & £ £ £

Trade ane other poyables (6.254,344) (6,234,344) (6.234,344) - -

Loans and borrowings

(54.712,857) (54,712,857)

(2,619.049) (52,093,808)

Lecse liabyilities (6,045,415)  (6,045,415) (915,911} (3.777,138)  {1,352,346)
Totol financiol liabilities (66,992,616) (66,992,616) (9,769,304) (55,870,948) (1,352,366}
Changes in liobilities orising from financing activities
Bank loans Loan Motes  Leose liobility Total
£ £ £ £
Balance gt 21 December 2020 - - - -
New leose liobility on ocquisition - - 6,399,931 6,399,931
Loon interest 152,485 1,217,261 49,071 1,418,817
Lease magifications - - (188,605)  (186,605)
New borrowings 12,694,049 40,801,547 - 53,495,595
Interest/ copitol poid [152,485) - {49,071) {201,556)
Capital repaid - - {167.912) {167,912}
Net cash from/{used in) financing octivities 12,492,493 40,801,547 (216,983) 53,495,596
Balance at 4 April 2021 - unaudited 12,694,049 42,018,808 6,045,414 60,758,271
Loon interest 534,?6? 3,335,351 195,200 4,065,338
Acquisitian of leoses . -0 - 1406271 1,406,271
Lease moditications - - (1,794,000) (1,794,000}
New borrowings 3,000,000 - - 3,000,600
Interest poid {601,047) {4.552.612)  (195,200) (5,346,859)
Capital repaid {12,427,789) (40,801547) (881,623} {54,310,959)
Net cosh used in fincncing octivities (10,228,B36) (45,354,159) (1,076,823) (54,659,818)
Baolonce ot 3 April 2022 3,000,000 - 4,776,062 7,776,062
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Noles Lo Lhe Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that movements in exchange rotes affect the profitability of the business. A propartion
of the group's purchases and soles are denominated in US dollars ond eures. The group does not hedge ogoinst foreign
exchange risk given forecasted overseas transactions ore anticipated to be minimel. The group monitors exchange rate
movements closely and ensure odequate funds are maintained in appropricte currencies to meet knawn liobilities.

A proportion of the group’s purchases which are settled in US dollars are completed using Letter of Credit focilities from the
company's bank. In the period $6,211,455 (2021: $2,486,115) was utilised. As ot the bolance sheet date, the company had
$990,063 (2021: §580,547) commitrments in respect of these contractual facifities.

The group’s exposure to fareign currency risk ot the end of the respective reporting period wos os follows:

4 Aprit 2021

3 April 2022 Unaudited

£ £

s (1,417,754) 840,816
EUR ' (1.336,239)  (623,589)
AUD 17,213 138,394
my - 937 937

(2,635,843] 376,558

Liabilities include the monetary assets ond liabilities of subsidiaries denominated in foreign currency.

The group is exposed to foreign currency risk an the relationship between the functional currencies of group companies and
the other currencies in which the group’s material assets ond liabilities ore denomincted. The table below summarises the
effect on reserves hod the functional currencies of the group weokened or strengthened ogainst these other currencies,
with all other variables held constant. :

10% strengthening of functional currency

4 April 2027

3 April 2022 Unaudited

i £ i

usD (1,275,979) 944,898
EUR (4,202,615} {561,230}
AUD 128,934 141,827
JPY 1,030 1,030
(2,348,630) 528,525

10% weakening of functional currency

4 April 2021

3 April 1022 Unaudited

. € £

ust (1,559,529) 774734
EUR (1,469,863) {685,948)

AJD 105,492 124,555

JBY 843 843

(2,923,057) 214,184

The impact of @ change of 10% hos been selected as this hos been considered recsenable given the current level of
exchonge rotes and volatility cbserved both on a historical bosis ond market expectations for future movements.
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Notes Lo the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of all financial ossets ond liabiities approximartes to their carrying value.

Capitel management
The group’s objectives when maintaining capital ore:
e To safeguard the entity’s ability to continue os o going concern, so thot it can continue to provide returns for

shareholders ond benefits for other stokeholders; ond
» To provide on adequate retuen to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurotely with the level of risk.

The group sets the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The group monages its copital structure and mokes
adjustments ta it in light of chenges in economic conditions, and the risk characteristics of the underlying ossets. In order
to maintoin or odjust the copitol structure, the group may odjust the amount of dividends paid to sharehelders, return
copitol 1o shoreholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

For the purpose of the group’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, shore premium and ofl other equity
reserves ottributoble to the equity holders of the parent.

The primary objective of the group’s capital management is to maximise the sharehelder volue and to ensure that it has
the copital required to operate and grow the business ot a reasonable cost of caphtol without incurring undue financial

risks.

'I"he group manages its capitol structure and mokes odjustments in light of changes in econemic conditions.

To maintain or adjust the copital structure, the group may seek to raise funds by issuing new shares to reduce debt.
The management of debt is considered 1o be on importont element in contralling the copital structure,

Following the impairment of the investments in Stork Acquisition Limited, the board is intending to undertake o Copitol
Reduction of its Shore Premium to free up necessary reserves in other group componies.

The group hos arranged modest debt facilities in the form of a Revelving Credit Facility to ollow for fluctuations in working
copital requirements,

29. Deferred tax i

Arising an

Fined ossat business
differences combinations Total
£ £ £

194,412 7,838,051 8,032,463
Utilised through profit & joss 8,927 (206,153)  (197,225)

At 21 December 2020
Acquisition of subsidiories

At 4 April 2021 - Ungudited ) 203,339 7,631,899 7,835,238
Utilised through profit & loss 99,227  (2,185,249) (2,086,022)

At 3 April 2022 302,568 5,446,650 5,749,216

At the reporting date, the group hos unused tax losses of £nil (202 £nil) availoble for offset ageinst profits.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 3 APRIL 2022
167

suiydpiag 3noqy

yioday nbsnoig

£53uiEng sjgisucdsay o Guibouay

AJUCUIIN0D IR

$3|nsay InQ



Notes Lo the Consolidatéd Financial Statements

For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

30. Equity
4 April 2001
3 April 2022 Unaudited
. . £ £
Ordincry shore copital allotted, colled up and fully paid
Sergphine Group plc
50,902,010 A ordinary share capital {£0.01 ecch} 509,026 -
Kensington Topco Limited
823,556 B ordinory share capitel {£0.1 eoch) 82,355
24,454 B ardinary share capitol (£0.1 eoch) - 2,045
125,800 C ordinory share capital (£0.1 each) - 12,500
509,020 97,500
During the period ended 3 April 2022, the following new ordinary shares were issued:
Total
Share copital Share premium  eeasideration
£ £ £
50,202,010 A erdinary shore copital (£0.1 each) 509,020 59,436,003 59,945,023
Ordinary shore copitel allotted, colled vp ond fully poid: . )
4 April 2021
3 April 2022 Unoudited
. Numbaer Number
At beginning of period 75,000 975,000
Extinguished on reorganisation {973,000} -
Allotted during the yeor 50,902,011 -
At end of period 50,902,011 975,000

On 14 June 2023, 1 ordinory share of £0.01 wos issved. On 16 July 2021, 50,902,010 ordinary shares of £0.01 each were issued.
30,224,999 ordinary shares were issued in connection with the acquisition of the entire share copital of Kensington Topco
Lirmited. The remaining 20,677,011 ordinary shares were issued for cosh at £2.95 per shore.

Transaction costs of £1,354,409 in connection with the issue of shares during the year has been offset agoinst share

premium in the table above.

Shore premium

£59,436,003 was recognised in share premium on the issue of ordinory shares during the period, net of transaction costs.

Qrdinary shares have full voting and dividend rights attached to them.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Noles 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

31. Reserves
o) Share capital account
Share capitol represents the nominal volue of shore copital subscribed for.

b) Shore premiurn account
The Share premium account records the amount above the nominal volue received for shares issued, less transaction costs

raised on listing of the compony.

¢} Copital reorganisation reserve
In @ capitol reorgunisation when Seraphine Group plc acquired Kensington Topco Limited vio share for share exchange, the

group applied merger relief which means that ne shore premium on the Serophine Group plc shares issued in the share for
shore exchange was recorded, The group reorganisation reserve represents the reversal of the previously recorded share
prernium less the difference between the nomingol shores of Seraphine Group plc ond Kensington Topco Limited.

d) Foreign exchange translation reserve
The foreign exchange translotion reserve arises from the retronslation of foreign subsidiories to the presentational currency

of the group on consolidation.

e} Accumulated losses
This reserve represents the total of all current ond prior retained earnings net of distributions to owners.

32. Share based payments
The group’s equity-setiled shore scherme wos opproved by the shareholders in July 2021 ond has a vesting period of 3 yeors

1o July 2024, The scheme is designed to award ernployees through an option plan, to provide long-term incentives for senior
managers ond above to deliver long-term shoreholder returns. Under the plon, participants are granted options which only
vest if certain perfarmonce standards are met. Porticipotion in the plan is at the board's discretion, and no individual has o
controctual right 1o participate in the plon or 1o receive any guaronteed benefits.

The amount of options thot will vest depends on the group’s total shareholder return, including share price growth,
dividends and capital returns. Options ore granted under the plan for no considerotion and carry no dividend or voting

rights.

When exercisoble, each option is convertible into one ordinory share. The exercise price of options is based on the weighted
average price at which the company’s shores are troded on the London Stock Exchonge during the week up to and
including the dote of the gront.

o~ v

2022 2021 Unaudited
Average Avgroge
exercise price exercise price
pershare Mo, of per shore No. of
option options option eptions

£o.0 463,034 - -
£0.01 453,034 - -

As ot 4 April 2021 - unoudited
Granted during the year
As ot 3 April 2022

Vested and exercisgble ot 3 April 2022

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the period ended 3 April 2022 wos
£2.95 (2021: Not applicable}

No options expired during the period covered by the tables obove.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2622

Share options outstanding ot the end of the period have the foliowing expiry dates ond exercise prices:

Shore options
Share options 4 April 202V
Granat dote Expiry dote Exarcise price 3 April 2022 Unaudited

16 July 2621 18 July 2024 £G.01 £1,365,950 -

The weighted overoge remaining contractual life of options outstonding ot the end of the period was 2.29 years (2021: not
opplicable).

Fair value of aptions granted

The ossessed foir volue ot grant dote of options gronted dwing the period ended 3 April 2022 wos £2.95. The foir volue
ot gront date is independently determined using on adjusted form of the Black-Scholes model which includes a Monte
Carlo simulation model thot takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impoct of dilution (where
materiol}, the share price ot grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield,
and the risk-free interest rote for the term of the option.

The model inputs for options granted during the pericd ended 3 Aprit 2022 included:
a) Exercise price: £0.1

b) Gront date: 16 July 2021

c} Expiry dote: 16 July 2024

d) Share price ot grant date: £2.95

e) Expected price volotility of the company’s shares: 0.7%

f) Expected dividend yield: 0%

g) Risk-free interest rate: 0.34%

The expected price volatility is based an the historic volatility, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due
te publicly avoilable information. The share-bosed payment compensation included in the consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income in respect of share options was Enil {2021: £nil), given leatest forecast predict thot the finencial
targets will not be met ond the share options will not vest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finanetal Sistements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

33. Business combinotions - unaudited

On 30 December 2020 the group purchased 100% of the share capital of Stork Topco Limited, a retoiler and wholesoler of
women's maternity wear and occessories for o consideration of £54,331,673. The financial results of Stork Topco Limited

have been included in the group’s consolidated results from 30 December 2020,

At foir value
£

Consideration ’ : 54,331,673
A;sets '
Troderngrx 20,904
Brond value 41,252,900
Oti-ner intongtble ossets 1,104,924
Praperty, plant ond equipment 252,425
Right-of-use assets ) 6,399,931
Cash ond cash eq;:ivo!eﬂts ) 6,299,414
Trode ond other receivab'es 516,575
Inventories 5,332,550
Liabilities
Frade and other payables {6,008,073)
Lease Liabilities L. L . . (6,399,931)
Provisions : T o ) (81,889) -
Deferred tox liabilities ) (8,032,463)
Net identifiable assets ac&uired 40,727,267
Goodwill 13,604,406
Tatal 54,331,673
The adjustments arising on acguisition were in respect of the following:
a} The uplift in Brand volue was to a third-porty valuotion.
b) Deferred tax adjustment arising os a result of the acquisition adjustments.
Consideration
i £

Cosh 53,123,873
Contingent cons'deration 1,207,800
Cash paid 53,123,873
Less cash acquired ’ B (6.299,414)

464,824,459

Totol cash outflows for payrment of business acquisition

OFf the £53,123,873 cosh consideration, £23,129,260 waos paid to the moncgement of the business as settlement of previous
loon netes. Contingent considerotion is payoble based on the EBITDA of the Stork Topco Group for the period ended 4 Aprit
2021. The amount payable is copped at £3,000,000. The amount recognised in the business combination is based on the

consclidoted occounts of Stork Topco Group for the period ended 4 April 2021.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

The goodwill on acquisition of the business represents the value derived from future incrementol profitability over and
obove that which existed ot the time of the gcquisition, including synergies and cost sovings through economies of scole.
None of the goodwill recognised is deductible for income tax purposes.

from the dote of acquisition 1o 4 April 2021, the Stork Topco Group contributed £8,689,006 of revenue and loss before tox
of £360,378 to the group.

Costs directly attributable to the acquisition of Stork Acquisition Limited of £2,387,156 were expensed in the period to 4
April 2021 a5 non-recurring exceptionol items.

34. Guarantees and other commitments
The group's parent company, Seraphine Group plc, has bank facilities with HS8C Bank Plc where the group has pledged o
fixed and floating chorge over its assets in respect of these facilities.

The group hos the foliowing focilities with HSCB Benk Plc:

« Revolving Credit Focility of £6m with an expiry dote of 30 December 2024

e Documentary Letters of Credit $3m, with the options of sight terms, usance terms and on import loon option
» Bank guarantees facility of 185,000 euros

» Forward foreign exchenge contracts focility of $250,000

Asg at 3 April 2022 the following focilities were drawn:

# Standby Letter of Credit dated 17 Octaber 2014 in fovour of GW Properties LLC for 5159,000 (2021: $159,000)

» Standby Letter of Credit doted 13 May 2015 in fovour of 1321 Madison Avenue Corp for $148,568 (2021: 5148,568)
& Bonk guorantee dated 4 August 2017 in favour of Mr Lourent et Didies Hirsh for 131,250 euros (2021: 35,412 eurcs)
® Bank guarantee doted 11 Jonuary 2021 in favour of Financien Fiscaliteit KMO for 39,500 euros (2021: 22,000 euros)
e Usance Letter of Credit commitments of $990,063 (2021: $580,547) for bolonces included in trade payables

35. Pensian costs

The group operotes o defined contribution pension scheme and an auto-enrolment pension scheme for employees. The
pension chorge for the period represents contributions payoble by the group to the schemes and amount to £77,177 (2021
unaudited: £54,970). ENil (2021: £Nit) of contributions were outstending to the outo-enrolment scheme and ENil {2021:
ENil) were autstanding to personal pension plans ot the bolance sheet date.

34. Reloted party transactions
QOn 16 July 2021, the group underwent an initicl public offering {“IPO”) which involved variaus transactians with the
directors of the Serophine Group ple, which is detailed within the toble below:

Gross proceeds

Repayment of from share
loan notes Stamp Duty  Cofmmissions sale Total
Oirector £ £ £ £ £
John P Bailey 434 845 (3.762) (20.6590) 752,374 1,162,787
Dovid N Williarns 705,779 {9,189) (50,542} 1,837,891 ) 2,483,939
Chetsey C Oiiver 270,914 (5,428} (29,852} 1,085,514 1,321,148
Shaton E Flood 125,383 - - - 125.383
Williom D G Ronald 50,153 - - - 50,153
1,587,004 (18,379) (101,084) 3,675,779 5,143,410

During the period the group paid monitoring fees to Moyfoir Equity Partners LLP of £28,562 {2021: £25,000).

During the period the company accrued £1,262,659 interest (2021: £1,093,773) on the £41,586,171 Fixed Rate A Loan Notes
2026 1o Moyfoir Equity Partners LLP ond £40,560 interest (2021: £35,135) on the £1,335,842 Fixed Rote B Loon Notes 2026
to the directors, Dovid Williorns, John Boiley ond Chelsey Oliver.

Bolances between the company ond its subsidiaries, which are reloted porties, hove been efiminated on consolidetion. Alf
related party transactions were performed on an arm's length bosis.

SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Notes to the Consolidatled Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 Aprif 2022

37. Uitimote controlling party
Following the IPO process, there is no longer on ultirmate controlling party.,

38. Post balance sheet events - t
During May 2022, the New York Madison Avenue store was closed down. This was due to the store operating in a loss- |

moking position throughout the financial yeor, with EBITOA of -£98,589 for the year ending 3 Aprif 2022.

Subsequent to the period end, an additicnol £2,000,000 has been drawn down from the revolving credit fadility, leaving
£1,000,000 avoilable to be drawn down:

39. Tronsition to IFRS
This is the first year the group hove presented its financial statements in accordance with Internotional Financial Reporting
Standords (IFRS) as adopted for use in the UK. The last unoudited financiol statements under FRS 102 were for the 15 weeks

ended 4 April 2020, and the date of transition to IFRS was 22 December 2020.

Set out below is the FRS 102 to IFRS reconciliction for the Stotement of Total Comprehensive lncome and Staterment of
Financial Position, for the 15-week period ended 4 April 2021. At the date of tronsition to IFRS, being 22 December 2020,
there were no odjustments to the group’s opening Stotement of Financiol Position, given this represents the dote of
incorporation of Kensington Topco Limited. As g result of this, o transitional Statement of Financial Position at 22 December

2020 hos not been presented.

Effect on cash fiows
The transition to IFRS had no effect on the coshk flows reported in cccordance with FRS 102, except thot the presentotion in

the Consolidoted Statermnent of Cosh Flows in accordonce with IFRS differs from the presentetion in occordance with FRS
102 gs follows: ‘

The implementation of IFRS 16 has resulted in various changes throughout. The rentol poyments of £252,251 previously
included within the underlying loss before tax for 15 week period ended 4 April 2021, hos now been replaced with a
depreciation charge of £233,010 und lease interest of £49,071, both reported within operoting activities. In oddition, lease
repoyments of £237,296 are included within financing octivities to represent the payrmem of rentals from the unwinding of
the lease liabilities.

e e I —— e ——— . ——— — e P . a— —
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Reconciliation of transition to IFRS
Refer 1o the following table for the reconciliotion between FRS 102 ond IFRS for the 15 week period ended 4 April 2021,

Consolidated Statement of Total Comprehensive Income
For the 15 weeks ended 4 April 2021

£
ioss as éreviously reported under FRS 102 - unoudited ’ ’ _(1,715,052)
Adjustments arising fram transition: ' ’
t) Leoses (2,742.977)
2) Goodwill omartisation 482,030
3) Tronsaction casts. £2,525,477)
4) Other 194,412
Loss as restated under IFRS {£&,307,034)
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Notes 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
For the 15 weeks ended 4 April 2021

FRS 102 Transactian Reclassifi- IFRS
unaudited Leoses Goodwill costs Other cations restated
£ 3 s £ £ £ £
Assets .
Non-current als-ets - ) ’ )
Goodwill 17,845,178 (359.604)  4B2,030  (4557610) 194412 - 13,604,406
Other intangible ossets 46,262,492 e - - - L127566 41390058
Property, plant ;nd equipment - | 1,351,070 - - - - (1,127,566) 223,504
owned ossets
Prloperty, plont and equiprne.nt-righ‘t- - 3,519,?1.6 - - T - 3,519.916
of-use
Total non-current assets 59,458,740 3,160,312 482,030 (4,557,610) 194,412 - 58,737,834
Current assets
Inwentories 7,510,108 - T - - - 750,108
Trode and other receivables 1,387,289 (19-7,847) - - - T 1,189,442
Cash and cosh equivolents 3,168,542 - - - - T . 3168,542
Total current ossets 12,065,939 (197,847} - - - - 11,848,092
Total ossets 71,524,679 2,962,465 482,030 [4,557,610) 194,412 - 70,605,976
Liabilities
Current liabilities )
Trade and ather payables (7,735,840) . T ' - 494,049  (7,241,791)
Borrowings {2,125,000) - - - - (494,049)  {2,619,049)
Leose liabilities - [¢15.91) - - - - {915,911}
Toral current liabilities (9,860,840} {915,911} - - - - {10,776,751)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 2,205,099  (1,113,758) - - - - 1,091,341
Total assets less current liabilities 41,653,839 2,046,554 482,050 (4,557,8410) 194,412 - 59,829,225
Mon-current liabilities
Long-term provisions {442,682) 339,974 - - - - {102,708)
Borrowings A {10,075,000} - - - - - (10,675,000)
Investor loon notes {44,050,941) - - 2,032,133 - - (42,018,808)
Lease liabilities ' - (5029.504) - . - {5.129,504)
Deferred tox liobilities (7,835,239) - - - - - (7835239
Tatal hon-current liabilities {&62,403,842) (4,789,530} - 2,032,133 - - {65,181,259)
Total habilities (72,264,702) (5,705,441) - 2,032,133 - - (75,938,010)
Net assets/{liabilities) {740,022) (2,742,977} 482,030 (2,525,477) 194,412 - {5,332,034)
Equity
Colled up share copitol 97,500 - - - - - 97,500
Share premium 877,500 . - .z . - B77,500
?oreign exchonge'trcnslotion reserve - - - - - 2,197 ?.197
Accumulated losses (1,715,022} (2‘.742,977) 482,030 (2,525,477} .194,412 (9,197)  [6,316,23%)
Total equity {740,022) (2,742,977) 482,030 (2,525,477 194,412 - {5,352,034)
SERAPHINE GROUP PLC
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Noles 1o Lhe Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

Explanation of reconciling items between FRS 102 and IFRS

The financial impacts on the Consolidated Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position have been exploined
below, Within the notes to the consolidated financiol statements, odditional information has been provided where there was
& moterial adjustment on transition to IFRS.

1) Leases

Under FRS 102, leases where the group is the lessee are treatad as operating leases where appropriate, and rentols

charged on a straight-line basis. On adoption of IFRS 16, the group recognisees iease liabilities in relotion ta leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under FRS 102, using the cumulative catch-up approach. These liabilities are
meosured at the present value of remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental barrowing rate {IBR)
os at 30 Decemnber 2020. The IBRs opplied 10 the lease lighilities on 30 December 2020 ore between 2.3% and 3.9%.

Adjustments recognised on odoption of IFRS 16 ore as follows:
£

Operating ease commitments ot 22 December 2020 ) 6559406
Discount ot tronsition {514,051)
Lease liability recognised at 30 December 2020 4,045,415

The ossocioted right-of-use assets for leoses were meosured ot the omount equal 1o the leose liability, odjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments reloting 1o that lease recognised in the Stotement of Financial Position os
at 30 December 2020. Right-of -use ossets recognised of £3,519,916 at 30 December 2020 are all in relation to properties.

There is no impact on the group’s IFRS opening Statement of Financial Position at 22 December 2020. The pre-tax impact for
the 15 weeks ended 4 April 2021 is @ decrease in operating charges of £252,251 due to the rentals chorged offset by increased
depreciation of £233,010 ond an increase in finance costs of £49,071.

2) Goodwili

Under FRS 102, goodwill on acquisitions is capitalised and amortised over its useful ecanornic life. Under IFRS, amortisation
is no longer charged; insteoad, goodwill is tested for impairment annually ond egain where indicotors are deemed 1o exist.
Goedwill is carried at cost less accurmulated impairment losses.

The tronsition provisions to apply IFRS 3 prospectively meons that there were no adjustrment to the group’s IFRS opening
Statement of Financici Position ot 22 December 2020. The pre-tax impoct for the 15 weeks ended 4 April 2021 wos £482,030,
representing o reduction in operations from reversal of goodwill amortisation.

3} Transaction costs

Under FRS 102, transaction costs were copitalised as part of the cost of the invesiment. However, under IFRS, the costs
associoted with the business combinotion ore expensed os incurred. £2,120,485 of costs related 1o the investor loon notes,
with £2,032,133 being reclossified against the investor loan notes as ot 4 April 2021, and £88,352 being released to Statement
of Total Comprehensive income. The remaoining £2,387,156 of transaction costs have been expensed within the Statement of
Total Comprehensive income during the 15 week period ended 4 April 2021

4) Cther

IFRS accounting adjustment have been tax-omended where appropriote. Under FRS 102, deferred tax is accounted for on the
basis of taxable timing differences that have originated by nat reversed at the Staterment of Financial Position date Under
IFRS, the Statement of Finoncial Pesition method recognises current tox consequences of tronsoctions and events and the
future tax consequences of the future tax recovery or settiement of carrying amount of an entity's assets and lagilities.
Under IFRS, the Statement of Financial Position method recognises current tax consequences of tronsoctions and events and
the future tax consequences of the future tax recovery or settlement of carrying amaount of an entity’s assts and ligbilities.

There is no impoct on the group's IFRS opening Statement of Financial Position at 22 Dacember 2020. The pre-1ax impact for
the 15 weeks ended 4 April 2021 includes an increase of £194,412 against corporation tox crising from tronsition differences.
There is not expected to be @ materiol chonge to the group's underlying tox rate os o result of the implementation of IFRS,

5) Reclassificotions
Cn trorsition to IFRS, these items were identified, and menagement deemed it appropriate to change the classification of
these iterns.
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Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 3 April 2022 '

Seraphine Group plc
‘ ) ) — o \SA‘pril 001 !

Note . £
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments 5 25,884,050
Total non-current assets 25,884,050
Current assets
Trod; and ot.her receivobles .6 : 1,474,652
Total current assets 1,474,652
Total assets 27,358,702
Liabilities
Current ligbilities ) i )
Trode end other poyobles 7" (2,783,556)
Net current liabilities " (1,308,904).
Total assets less current liabilities 24,575,146
Net assets 24,575,144
Equity

&' 509,020

Called up shore capitol
Share premium gccount
Retoinad deficit

Total equity

8 59,436,003
8 (35369.877)
24,575,146

As permitted by s408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own statement of comprehensive
income and related notes os it prepares group accounts. The company's loss after tox for the period was £35,369,877.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

As at 3 Aprit 2022

Called up Shore premium Retoined
shore copital account deficit Tolei equity
.. e £ i f
At 14 June 2021* - - - -
tssue of ordinary shores 509,020 59,436,003 - 59,945,023
- Transoctions with owners 509,020 59.4356,003 - 59,945,023
Loss for the finencicl period and totol comprehensive expense - - {35,349,877) {35.349,877)
- At 3 April 2022 509,020 59,436,003 (35,349,877) 24,575,148

* Seraphine Group plc was incarporated on 14 June 2021
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
For the 42 weeks ended 3 April 2022

1, Accounting Policies
To the extent that on accounting policy is relevant to both the Seraphine Group plc and company finoncial stotements,

refer to tha consolidated financiol statements for disclosure of the occounting policy.

Statement of compliance
The company's finenciol staterments have been prepored in accordance with International Accounting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and Finencial Reporting Stondard 101 Reduced Disclosure

Framework (“FRS 101%).

Basis of preparation

The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under application of Financial Reporting requirements 100
os issued by the Financial Reporting Council. Accordingly, the company financial statements hove been prepared in
accordance with finonciol Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure framework (“FRS 1017).

This is for the 42 week period from incorporation, being 16 june 2021 to the reporting date, representing the company’s first
FRS 101 financial statements.

They are presented in Pounds Sterling, with values rounded to the nearest £1, except where otherwise indicated. The
financial stetements have olso been prepared under the historical cost convention, on a going concern basis.

Summary of disclosure exemptions

As the compony is o member of o group which prepares publicly aveilable consolidated finoncial statements, it is o
qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 10t. Accordingly, the following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS hove
been opplied in the preporation of these financial stotements:

# Presentation of Cash Flows and reloted notes

# Financial instrument disclosures

* Disclosure of key manogement personnel remunerotion

* Related party disclosures for transactions with wholly owned members of the group

» Disclosures of the objectives, policies ond processes for managing copital

» Disclosure of the future impact of new International Financiol Reporting Standords in issue but not yet effective ot the

reporting dote.

Going concern
The diractors haove reviewed the group's forecasts end projections for the period te October 2023 (the *Forecast Period’),

including their assessment of trading and associated cash flow forecosts ond forecast liquidity. In considering the
approprioteness of adopting the going concern bosis in preparing the financial statements the directors hove assessed the
potential cash generation of the group ond considered a range of downside scenarios. The scenarios were informed by a
comprehensive review of the macroeconemic environment, including the impact of the current invasion of Ukraine, and the
group’s experience of troding through the pandemic over the last two years.

Following the various scenarios and stress tests performed, the group would have sufficient cash heodroom and fiquidity to
continue trading throughout the pericd 1o October 2023. Consequently, the directors hove concluded thot using the going
concern basis for the preporotion of the Financial Stotements is oppropriote,

Summary of accounting policies

investments in subsidiory undertokings

A subsidiary is an entity controlled, either directly or indirectly, by the company, where control is the power to govern the
financial ond operating policies of the entity so 0s to obtain benefit from its octivities. Investments in subsidiories represent
interests in subsidiaries thot ore directly owned by the company and ore stoted at cost less any provision for permonent

diminution in value.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
for the 42 weeks ended 3 Aprif 2022

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivobles are recognised initiclly at fair value. Subsequent 1o initial recognition they ore meosured ot
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Trade and other payables

_ Trade and other paycbles are recognised initially ot fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Share capital
Ordinary Shares ore classified os equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of Ordinary Shares are
recognised os a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Dividends

Dividends receivable from the company's subsidiaries are recognised only when they ore approved or paid by the
shareholders. Dividend distributians to the company’s shoreholders ore recognised in the period in which the dividends ore
paoid.

Key judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The company makes certain estimotes ond assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements ore continuolly
evaluoted based on historical experience ond other factors, including expeciotions of future events thot are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, octunl experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions.

The estimotes and assumptions thot have o significant risk of causing o moterial adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of
assets ond liobilities within the next financial yeor are discussed below:

Recoverability of investments

Investments are subject to impgirment reviews at the end of the reporting date based on whether current or future events
ond circumstances suggest that their recoverable amount may be less than their carrying value. Recoverable amount is
baosed on the higher of the value in use and fair volue less costs 1o dispose. Value in use is calculated from expected future
cash flows using suitoble discount rotes and includes monagement assumgptions and estimates of future performance,

os disclosed within note 19 of the consolidated financiol statements. This resulted in an impairment of investrnents in
subsidiaries for the period ended 3 April 2022 of £121,140,000.

Recoverability of intercompany receivables

At each reporting dote, monogement determines whether there is objective evidence that the loan to its subsidiory

is impaired. If there is such evidence, monogement calculates the omount af impairment as the difference between
the recoverable omount of the loan to the subsidiary ond its corrying volue ond then recognises the loss in the income
stotement. Our assessment has shown no indication of impairment.

New and amended standards adopted by the company
There ore no relevant new standords and interpretotions adopted or not yet adopted.

2. Auditors’ remunergtion

3 April 2022
£

Fees payable to the compony's ouditors for the oudit of the company's finonciol stotements 50,000

3. Directors’ Remunerations and employee costs

Detoils of directors remuneration in respect of services defivered 1o the group are contained in the Directors” Remuneration
Report on pages 100-118. The remuneration received by the directors in respect of directly ottributable services to this
company is inconsequential in the context of the remunerotion figure. The company has ne employees other than the
directors and the directors gre not remuneroted through this company other than by issues of share-based poyments

os described in Note 1 to the campany financial statements. The directors are considered tc be the Key Management
Personnel of the compony.
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Notes 1o the Company Financial Statements
For the 42 weeks ended 3 April 2022

4. Dividends
The company received dividends of £85,472,996 from other subsidiary undertakings during the period ended 3 April 2022.

5. Investments in subsidiories
Investments in the company’s staternent of financial positicn consist of investment in subsidiory undertakings as follows:

3April zozz
At cost ond ret book voiue: ‘
Ar the i)egir\‘ning of the c;er;od ‘ ! -
Additions 147,326,300
Return ot capital from Xensington Topco Limited ’ (302,250}
Impoirment i ’ (121,340,000)
At the end of the period 25,884,050

On 14 July 2021, Serophine Group plc ocquired Stork Acquisition Limited ot market value. As at 3 April 2022, the
market value has been assessed for impairment indicators. Impoirment of £121,140,000 hos been identified following
monagement’s assessment and application of assumptions detoiled within note 19 of the consolidated finonciol

stotements.

A list of investrnents in subsidiories included in the conselidated financiol stotements, are detailted within the table in note
21 10 the conscliduted finoncial stotements.

6. Trode ond other receivables

3 Aprit 2022

£

Armounts owed from subsidiory undertokings 1,474,452
The omounts owed by group undertakings ore interest free, unsecured and have no fixed repayrment dote.

7. Trode and other payables _

3 April 2022

E

Taxction and sociol security 132,702

Accrugls ond other payobles 134,358

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertokings 2,428,724

Carporation tox payable 107,772

2,783,556

The omounts owed to group undertokings are interest free, unsecured and have no fixed repoyment date.

8. Share capital and reserves

The share capitol and share premium are consistent with Seraphine Group plc censolidated financiol stotements. Refer to
notes 30 within the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Retained deficit represents the total of alf current iosses net of distributions to owners.

9. Related party transactions
Armgounts owed by ond to subsidiaries ore disclosed within notes 6 and 7 respectively, of the compony financial statements.

The remuneration of the directors of the company is disclosed within the Remuneration Report on poges 100-118.

interests and related party transactions are disclosed in note 36 of the consclideted finoncial statements.
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Company Information and Advisors

Shareholder information

Seraphine Group pic is o public company limited
by shores ond registered in England Woles,
Registered number 13454003

Registered office and head office
2nd Floor

265 Tottenham Court Rood
Landon WI1T 7RG

Corporate website
www.seraphinegroupplc.com

Consumer website
wwiw.seraphine.com

E investor.relations@seraphine.com

Qur ordinary shares ore listed on the London Stock
Exchange (standard listing)

Legal Entity Identified (LEI}
254900CQ8TMKUDDOL294

International Securities identification Number
GBOGBNXGTY25

Ticker Symbol
BUMP

Design: Buchonon Communications
Production: Empress Litho

WORLD

LAND

TRUST™
www.carbontabuncadiper com

Advisors
Corporate Communications
Buchanen Communications

Helen Tarbet, Simon Compton, Kim van Beeck

T +44 (0) 20 7466 5000
E Serophine@buchonon.uk com

Lawyers

Pinsent Masons

30 Crown Ploce

Earl Street

London ECZA 4ES

T +44 (0)20 7418 7000

Brokers

Numis Securities

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square

London EC4M 7LT

T +44 ()20 726G 1000

Registrar

Ruth Cole

Relationship Monager

Link Group

Centraf Square

29 Wellington Street

Leeds LS1 4DL

M «44 (Q)7795 827 269

E ruth.cole@linkgroup.co.uk

Auditor

PwC LLP

Kate Birch-Evans
43 Clarendon Road
Wetford WDI7 14
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